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GSK Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Limited is proud to present its Annual
Report for the year 2020. This report focuses on Stakeholder Information,
Corporate Governance, Directors’ Report and Financial Statements for the
year ended December 31, 2020.

For any feedback, suggestions or queries, kindly contact the following:

Dilawar Meghani
Chief Financial Officer
Email: dilawar.x. meghani@gsk.com

Abdul Haseeb Pirzada
Head of Corporate Affairs and Administration
Email: haseeb.x.pirzada@gsk.com



mile

We present to you our Annual Report 2020 with our Company’s vision and mantra
to go The Extra Mile in all absolutes in 2021. As we step in this new era with
courage and growth mindset; our active drive has and will continue to take

accountability to act ethically in all our business matters.

In this unprecedented time when the world is seized under the restraints of
COVID-19, GSK Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Limited (GSK CH) stands its ground
showing agility, obsession and world class team execution. Our employees wear
the GSK CH values at heart, set aside their fears, egos and relentlessness. During
this year, we went Extra Mile in achieving all challenges, driving our full
capabilities under the guidance of expert leadership to ensure availability of our
products in lock-down markets at all times.

Being consumer and customer-obsessed our agile and growth mindset easily
integrated finance and supply chain network with our distributors, experts and
stakeholders enabling us to execute our marketing and sales plan achieving net
revenue of Rs. 19,186 million, with a growth of 22% in comparison to last year
helping GSK CH to excel in the industry with more profound strength.

Our mantra to go The Extra Mile by leveraging digital, data and analytics has
exceeded our customers and consumers expectations in 2020 as we led, created
and drove category growth by responding to the everchanging economic demand
with precise and timely execution.

Here, we take this opportunity to Thank our customers, consumers and especially
stakeholders for their continuous trust and support to make GSK CH the number
one choice for our consumers in Pakistan.
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GSK Consumer business demerged from GSK Pakistan Limited.
GSK Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Limited formed.
GSK OTC (Pvt.) Limited formed from Novartis OTC portfolio.

GSK Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Limited starts operations
as an independent company.

GSK Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Limited gets listed on
Pakistan Stock Exchange

Transfer of Market Authorization and Jamshoro manufacturing
License to GSK OTC (Pvt.) Limited

GSK OTC (Pvt.) Limited merged with and into GSK Consumer
Healthcare Pakistan Limited

GSK Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Limited inherits
manufacturing facility (Jamshoro) & its portfolio with leading
brands like Cac-1000 Plus & Qalsan-D

Transfer of Marketing authorizations and manufacturing license of
GSK OTC (Pvt.) Limited to GSK Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Ltd.
Deployment of SAP in the manufacturing division of the Company

Transfer of Marketing authorization of Panadol, Eno, Hydrozole and
Brevoxyl in the name of GSK Consumer Healthcare Pakistan
Limited from GSK Pakistan Limited

Deployment of SAP in the Commercial division of the Company

to have a standard set of processes with ONE ERP.

1



Our Vision

GSK CH's vision is inspiring:

éé

The opportunity to make a difference
to millions of lives every day #9

At GSK CH we perform in unison by following our strong value
system and ethical guidelines as a source of guidance and
inspiration to achieve our vision. Every member of the GSK CH
family plays a vital role in improving the quality of human life.
GSK CH's growth and development can be attributed to the
contribution of the skills, talent and passion of its people.

GSK CH follows its core values of keeping consumers first,
demonstrating respect for people, acting with integrity, and
operating with transparency. We are proud of our commitment
that enables us to enhance the quality of peoples’ lives and helps
us provide them with quality products.

Our mission is to improve the quality of human life by enabling
people to

“Do More, Feel Better, Live Longer”

Our Mission

At GSK CH our mission acts as an underlying principle to
whatever we do. We follow a legacy of great science and
innovative healthcare that provides people around the world with
healthier and fulfilled lives, every single day.
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What We Do

We are a science led
Global Healthcare

Company that
researches and
develops innovative

Consumer Healthcare
products.

. Our
Business

Global
Research

Our

How
Are We

Structured

GSK has a significant
global presence in
more than 150
markets, a network of
manufacturing sites
globally and large R&D
centres in the UK, USA,

Our commercial operations
are structured as a
combination of regional
units and areas of focus.
Each business benefits
from GSK's global
commercial infrastructure,
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Belgium and China.

Consumer Healthcare is a global unit, represented by
GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Limited.

Our Core Values

international supply
networks, innovative R&D
and significant scale.

At GSK CH, we are committed to delivering results underpinned by our values. These values
guide our actions and behaviours and lie at the heart of every decision we make.

Our core values are:

Consumer First:

The strength of our
business lies in the
consumers we reach
out to. Our dedicated
leadership team drives
brands that have strong
purpose, and together
we ensure that the
needs of our consumers
are catered to in the
best possible way.

E GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Ltd.

Respect:

We cultivate an
environment of
support, inspiration and
development, and
ensure that as an
organization, we create
diversity in culture,
thought and in how we
operate, in order to
collectively work
towards achieving our
shared vision.

Transparency:
Transparency is vital to
the way we work and
helps build trust. We
strive to be honest and
open about what we do
and how we do it. This
improves how we
collaborate with each
other and the way we
are seen by the
communities we work
with. It demonstrates
that we do not avoid
challenges or
discussions and
confront problems as a
team.

Integrity:

We must live up to the
highest standards of
integrity expected of us
by our consumers,
partners and
stakeholders. We go
beyond abiding by the
law and do all we can
to maintain the trust
and respect of, and
protect the interests of,
the organisations and
communities we work
with.




Our Expectations

To thrive in an
ever-changing world and
achieve our purpose, we
need to adapt some of our
behaviours to keep us
competitive, all while
staying true to our values.

That's why we have our four
expectations:

Courage

Development

Code of Conduct:

Compliance and Ethics:

Putting our values and
expectations at the heart of
everything we do, we
become a high performing
team. One that works
together to achieve our
goal, in the right way.

Every GSK CH employee and complementary worker is required to
complete mandatory training on the Code of Conduct annually. Our
employees have completed the training which covered topics such as
safety, health and wellbeing, third party oversight, data breach
reporting, sexual harassment, and anti-bribery and corruptions (ABAC).

We are committed to creating an ethical, values-driven culture, in

which any issues are responded to swiftly and transparently. We expect
everyone at GSK CH to live our values and expectations, speak up if they
have any concerns, engage appropriately with stakeholders and respect
human rights. We also extend these ethical expectations to the third
parties we work with.
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Ownership and
Operating Structure

GSK CH Pakistan was incorporated in Pakistan as a public unlisted company on March 31,
2015. The Company is listed at the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited since March 22, 2017
with 85.79% shares being held by GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare B.V. The ultimate
parent of the Company is GlaxoSmithKline plc, UK. The Company is engaged in
manufacturing, marketing and sale of consumer healthcare products. The registered office of
the Company is situated at 35-Dockyard Road, West Wharf, Karachi.

Significant Changes
From Prior Year

There were no significant changes from prior year.

Composition of
Local Versus Imported Materials

GSK CH procures its materials from both local and international sources. Composition of

local versus imported materials during the year ended December 31, 2020 was as follows:

Local
17%

Imported
83% )

For a sensitivity analysis related to foreign currency, please refer page 185

m GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Ltd.




Plant
Operations

GSK CH's Jamshoro plant, is the state-of-the-art facility, serving three markets, Pakistan, Vietnam,
and the Philippines. It manufactures and packages consumer healthcare products for GSK CH
and pharmaceutical products for Novartis Pharma (Pakistan) Limited. The site has the capability
of manufacturing and packaging tablets, capsules, syrups/suspensions, creams, and gel products.
The plant also has a dedicated facility for vitamin products, namely calcium effervescent
(CaC-1000 PLUS) and chewable tablets (QalSium-D). All products are manufactured and packed
as per cGMP, high standards of quality following international, and local standards. The plant
complies with NEQS (National Environmental Quality Standards) as per EPA (Environmental
Protection Agency) and SEPA (Sindh Environmental Protection Agency). During the pandemic
situation, the site has managed to deliver its products to patients, consumers and customers
without several challenges of material connectivity and availability of manpower. The
manufacturing plant ensured full compliance to the guidelines issued by the government for the
health and safety of employees during the pandemic while fulfilling the market demand for
during COVID-19.

Actual annual Volumes
produced in 2020

71.02 Million packs)

Planned annual
volumes for 2021

103.42 million packg

No. of SKU
Manufactured

65 )
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Organizational Structure - GSKCH

SHAREHOLDERS
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Mr. Mazhar Shams
Head of Regulatory Affairs
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Mr. Sohail Ahmed Matin
Chief Executive Officer

Ms. Mashal Mohammad
Company Secretary

Mr. Dilawar Meghani
Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Faisal Rafiq
Head of Expert

Ms. Mariam Maqgsood
Chief Internal Auditor

Mr. Khurram Khan
Head of Commercial
Excellence (Commex)

Mr. Irfan Qureshi
Head of Supply Chain

Mr. Ahmed Jamil Baloch
Brands Director

Syed Abrar Ali
Sales Director
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Geographical
Presence

AMERICAS
Latin America

Argentina

Brazil .

CariCam NORTH AMERICA

Chile

Colombia Canada

Ecuador Puerto Rico Pharma
Mexico United States of America

E GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Ltd.

EUROPE
Southern Europe

France
Iberia
Italy
Portugal
Ireland




Central and
Eastern Europe

Romania
Russia

Ukraine & CIS
Adriatic

Poland

Norther Europe
Great Britain
Ireland

ASIA PACIFIC

Australia and New Zealand
Greater China

Indian Sub-Continent
Japan and Korea
Southeast Asia

MgDLE EAST AND‘FRICA @

East Africa /

Egypt

Gulf and Near East
Pakistan

Saudi Arabia
South Africa
Turkey

West Africa

Annual Report 2020 E




GSK’ S Finance
Position
In the Value
Chain
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Group Structure

GlaxoSmithKline PLC

No 03888792 incorporated 06/12/1999,
England

Address: 980 Great West Road, Brentford
Middlesex Tw89Gs

Public Company with shares on the London

GlaxoSmithKline 00%

Consumer
Healthcare Holdings

Pfizer, Inc.

See separate Letter from Pfizer Inc.
Schedule B

Limited

No 8998608 incorporated 15/04/2014,
England

©68%

32%

.ﬁ

PF Consumer
Healthcare Holding LLC

No 374151 incorporated in Delaware,
USA

GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Holdings (No.2) Ltd.

No 11961650 incorporated 24/04/2019, England

100%

m GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Ltd.

Consumer Healthcare Holdings Limited
No 11985432 incorporated 09/05/2019, England

g

PRISM PCH Limited
No 11986381 incorporated 09/05/2019, England

100%

GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare (Overseas) Limited
No 09237639 incorporated 29/09/2014, England

68%

PF Consumer Healthcare B.V.
No 24243225 incorporated 08/12/1993, Netherlands

100%

GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare B.V.
No 33147823 incorrporated 23/03/1977, Netherlands

85.8%

GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Limited
No 0092738 incorporated 31/03/2015, Pakistan




Our Business Model

'( Inputsj

Organization operates on robust systems
and process based on comprehensive and
reliable inputs in respective areas of the
business.

Commissioning most effective
financial models to continue tracking
business sufficiency and risk
management

Driving forecast accuracy to enable
efficient sourcing and manufacturing.

Empirical understanding of category
insights to design winning strategy for
consumers, experts & shoppers.

)
Outputs ]

Integrated business strategy and reliable
inputs result in actionable outputs:

Sustainable growth in Sales in line
with growth objectives.

Coverage expansion across
geographies and regions.

Delivery of financial plans

Business Activities J

Winning strategy for sustainable growth is
driven by following salient business
activities:

Consumer sight driven campaigns
and activations based on empirical inputs.

Well defined expert strategy with
expansion mind set. Aim to improve
prescription share with Best-in-call
detailing practices

Winning at point of purchase with
Best-in-Call instore strategy serving to
facilitate shoppers and enable customers
for a better mutual relationship

Route-to-market strategy for a
national footprint and better consumer
outreach.

Compliance to responsible ways of
working

Outcomes

Compliant business conduct

Sustainable growth in business
value and volume

Growth in category and
prescription share

Customer satisfaction and
brand loyalty

Shareholders trust and confidence
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Panadolh SENSODYNE

NS

Market

e WY Y

in Pain Relief in Sensitivity
Category ' Category

*IQVIA/Nielsen MAT Dec’20

m GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Ltd.




o

TAX
I GROSS Rs.1,262
PROFIT

miillion
S
miillion
<> SHARE

TURNOVER Rs.10.78

Rs.19,846
million

CaC-1000pPLus V°'tra|Emulge|® parodontax

1 1 1

in Vitamin and in Topical Pain Fastest Growing
Mineral Category ' Category + in Toothpaste Category
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Our Brands

Panadol is the market leader in the pain
category with a market share of 21.6%". In
2020, the brand not only maintained its
category leadership but also emerged as the
No. 1 Pharmaceutical brand of the country,
achieving another major milestone.

Owing to its medical heritage and superior
science, Panadol has been the first choice for
fever and pain relief among consumers and
doctors. It the most prescribed brand by
experts in the analgesics category with a
prescription share of 32.99%*,

Marketing activities have always been at the
heart of the brand and 2020 was no different.

Multiple marketing campaigns were rolled out

including “Lady Dr” and “Cinderella”. The first
campaign reinforced consumer trust with
Panadol being the the No 1 prescribed brand
whereas the second one strengthened brand
relevance by emerging as a safe and effective
solution for fever relief.

Being a socially responsible brand, Panadol
responded with a “COVID-19 public awareness
campaign” within weeks from the onset of
COVID-19. The big idea was to launch an
educational campaign on protection against
this virus. The campaign theme was “Fighting
Tough Pains Together” reinforcing that
Panadol stands shoulder to shoulder with the
consumers during these tough times.

*IMS MAT Dec’20 Sales data
**IMS H2'20 Prescription data

E GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Ltd.

By building on the key consumer insights and
by reinforcing brand relevance, Panadol
delivered exceptional business results with a
36.8% growth over last year, translating into a
PKR 7.5 billion brand.

The portfolio consists of a diverse range
including solution for Fever, Pain and Cold &
flu with varying strengths for all age groups.
In line with its strategic vision, Panadol will
continue to deliver innovative solutions to
cater to a wide range of pain sufferers.

“SO THAT

EVERYONE CAN
CONTINUE TO RELY

ON ME ALWAYS.”
, Tt Prter
it




CaC-1000pLus

Driven by purpose

Calcium deficiency is a prevalent issue in
Pakistan as every 1in 2 women' suffer from this
condition. GSK CH, being the market leader in
the Category, took it as a challenge to build
awareness of this problem among the masses
and in the process of doing so, fueled the
Category growth in Pakistan.

Maintaining Market Leadership

CaC-1000 PLUS is the biggest brand in the
Vitamins & Minerals Category with a value share
of 33.4%? driven by utmost trust of Consumers
and Healthcare Professionals alike. CaC-1000
PLUS is an effervescent tablet, available in 4
flavors; Orange, Cola, Lemon and Mango
(sugar-free).

Celebrating Records

The year 2020 saw CaC-1000 PLUS deliver
phenomenal results as it achieved the milestone
of PKR 4Bn in local sales and a growth of 43%3
vs last year.

We launched a new Calcium Awareness
Campaign “#1000WaysICan” that celebrated
women who do more regardless of age by
prioritizing their bone health with regular

1. National Nutrition Survey, ‘11
2. IMS MAT Dec 20
3. Secondary Sales Data, Dec 20

Calcium intake. It was awarded the “Best
Consumer Campaign of 2020" in GSK's Middle
East & Africa (MEA) region. Moreover, with the
rise of digital penetration in Pakistan, we
produced the first-ever GSK CHC Global-first
Web Series called “Ayesha” to engage with our
audience through an impactful story. Other
achievements in 2020 include a massive digital
and on-ground campaign on World
Osteoporosis Day, BMD activations testing ~120K
consumers for Calcium deficiency through free
testing and clutter-breaking trade visibility
drives, to name a few.

#1 Prescribed Calcium Supplement

CaC-1000 PLUS has strong scientific credentials
as it has double Calcium in the form of Calcium
Carbonate and Calcium Lactate Gluconate in an
effervescent formulation. Combined, the
quantity of Calcium is in line to support the
average daily requirements of an adult. These
factors along with a pleasant taste are
acknowledged by Healthcare Professionals and
their confidence in our brand has resulted in
CaC-1000 PLUS constantly and successfully
maintaining the #1 Prescribed Calcium
Supplement position in Pakistan.
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SENSODYNE

2020 for Sensodyne, with the arrival of the

COVID-19 pandemic, was a challenging year to

begin with. Sensodyne had to tactically
change its strategy with the changing market
dynamics throughout the year.

Now, more than ever, there was an increasing
focus on health, and a rise in conscious
consumption - trust and quality had become
imperative in purchasing decisions. Building
on this human-centric approach and the fact
that every 2 in 5 people suffer from sensitivity,
Sensodyne pivoted to a 360 strategy
championed by Rapid Action, because it’s a
trusted variant amongst both consumers and
dentists, providing quick sensitivity relief in 60
secondsa.

Furthermore, in times when dentists were
only able to consult critical patients,
Sensodyne, owning social responsibility,
created an opportunity for dentists to meet
patients through a series of online short
videos, in which dentists were giving tips and
advice on how to maintain oral health during
lockdown.

Later in the year when COVID-19 related
regulations were eased, Sensodyne showed
agility and resumed building direct to
consumer connections through trademark
Check Up activation. It also introduced a nhew
partnership with ice cream and juice joints - a
strategic initiative building relevance of the
brand with key sensitivity triggers.

Despite the challenges Sensodyne faced in
the beginning, it closed the year with +1.7ppt*

*Nielsen Retail Audit Data Dec’20
AlIPSOS Expert Performance Tracking

24

GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Ltd.

increase in market share, growing 5.3X the
Category*. Additionally, Sensodyne still stands
as No. 1 Dentist recommended toothpaste for
sensitive teeth A,

Sensodyne understands that sensitivity pain
can be a hindrance in enjoying life’'s pleasures
and is dedicated to creating a future where
every life is sensitivity free. The portfolio
includes 7 variants of toothpastes, 4 brushes
and a mouthwash - all designed specially to
treat sensitivity, supported by their own
unique propositions.

SENSODYNE

BEAT =
SENS)r TIVITY

FAS T

Clinically proven relief in just --"“--_

60 SECONDS SENSODYNE RA?}

"t e twice by

cr 0 s plsame b 13 prech e . oy achmess v psans ot (1K Cormamas asihcars # 54 _pharmnstety i com ot S5-01-111-478. 778




parodontax

Parodontax is a gum care toothpaste to help
stop and prevent bleeding gums. Since its
launch, Parodontax has been creating
awareness in Pakistan on how bleeding gums
can be a sign of gum disease and can lead to
much worse.

The biggest excitement for the brand in 2020
was entering the Oral Health Herbal segment,
with a 360 launch of Parodontax Herbal Fresh
(with Ginger, Mint and Eucalyptus extracts),
designed to scientifically be 4X more effective
at removing plaque, the main cause of
bleeding gums. However, soon after, with the
arrival of COVID-19 in Pakistan, the brand’s
major on-ground/in-store activations were put
to a halt and Parodontax had to show agility
in responding to the changing marketing
dynamics.

The Parodontax Time campaign remained
universally relevant and was run throughout
the year on TV and digital platforms with
Herbal Fresh as the hero variant. Explaining
the cycle that begins from bleeding gums and
ends with loss of tooth, it emphasized the
seriousness of the issue and urged action to
be taken, while building relevance for
Parodontax as the solution.

—rr— e N T ———
A e il - R W S —

To overcome the halt on on-ground activities
due to the pandemic, digital channels were
utilized to the maximum, ensuring reaching
consumers at the right touchpoints. A new
addition was made to our campaign called
the MythBusters. Played on all digital
channels, these videos clarified common
myths held by consumers and encouraged
better oral health practices. Towards the end
of the year, Parodontax also introduced
special web series featuring dentist
influencers explaining gum disease symptoms
and recommending Parodontax as the
solution; the testimonies gave consumers
Mmore reasons to trust the brand.

When lockdowns were eased, Parodontax
reconnected with consumers and dentists
face-to-face by condition awareness and
sampling in stores and leveraging science in
dentist chambers.

Despite the pandemic, Parodontax closed the
year delivering a high double-digit growth and
increased its penetration. The brand will
continue driving condition awareness to win
the fight against the devastating progression
of gum disease in Pakistan.

NEW

DAILY SODIUM BICARBONATE & FLUORIDE TOOTHPASTE FOR HEALTHY GUMS & STRONG TEETH

Ginger, Mint
& Eucalyptus
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Other Brands

Cream

A topical anti-fungal cream
designed for the treatment of
fungal infections

For the treatment of oily,
pimple, and acne prone
skin

Voltral Emuigel

QalSium-D

Topical Emulgel for neck, back and Chewable calcium tablets for
strong bones and teeth

muscular pain

For systematic relief of nasal
congestion, rhinitis or cough
associated with upper
respiratory track disorders

E GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Ltd.



Anti-allergic )

T-Day

(Levocetirizine Dihydrochloride)

Anti-allergic treatment for
sheezing, blocked nose,
itchy skin rash and itchy
watery eyes

The only antacid in the market that
helps relieve heartburn symptoms
by effectively beginning the
process in just six seconds

HYDROPHASE AQ
Brevoxyl
Benzoyl peroxide BP 4%w/w

For the treatment of mild acne

Hydrozole

Cream

An anti-fungal cream that targets
inflammation and fights the fungi
that cause it. Hydrocortisone, the
core ingredient in this product,
distinguishes it from other
antifungal products in the market

IODEX

For topical pain segment to
provide relief from head, neck,
back and muscular pain
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Expert Testimonial

| have been using the Panadol Pediatric
range for my pediatric patients for the last
20+ years. | have found this range to be
highly effective, trustable, with minimal side
affects in all age groups.

Dr. Mohsina Noor Ibrahim
Assistant Professor

Consultant Pediatrician & Pediatric Endocrinologist

| have been prescribing my patients
Sensodyne; they express having felt instant
relief. As a dentist, | wish to recommend a
toothpaste where | feel assured that my
patients would see results and have a
quality experience each time they brush
their teeth.

Dr. Ashar Jamelle
HoD Assistant Professor Periodontology

Fatima Jinnah Dental College

: m GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Ltd.



SWOT Analysis

L

Strengths

1)

2)

Global footprint with operations in
nearly 150 countries and diverse
portfolio of category defining brands
that have established themselves as
the leading products in their
respective markets.

Strong distribution network with
collaboration of 34 distributors
nation-wide.

Global thinking with local execution,
which means that it pursues global
strategies that make it win the
hearts and minds of consumers.
State of art manufacturing facility in
Jamshoro serving three markets,
Pakistan, Philippines and Vietnam.

Weeknesses

1)

2)

Challenging price-controlled
environment in the OTC portfolio
where absence of conducive policies
by the regulatory authorities is a risk.

Dependence on imported raw material.

Opportunities

1)

4)

Great potential in the export market
to capture new markets and grow
consumer base across the globe.
Strong e-market potential in the
Consumer Healthcare business,
further enhancing the customer
growth.

Increasing awareness and demand
for healthcare products.

New product innovations and
additional variants can grow and
diversify the portfolio.

N
I

Threats

1)

Weak implementation of
Intellectual Property Rights can lead
to loss of market share.
Deteriorating exchange rates pose a
high risk to our profitability as we
depend heavily on imported raw
materials.

Consistent increase in cost of doing
business including raw material
prices and associated handling and
freight bill amid COVID-19
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Competitive Landscape
and Market Positioning

GSK CH has progressed to deliver over-the-counter healthcare needs of Pakistan. Over the
years, it's grown brands such as Panadol, CaC 1000 PLUS and Sensodyne to a status of
heritage. With a state-of-the-art production facility, it has continued to gain market share
across the different categories the entity operates in.

Oral Health

Oral Health is a heated category across all fronts, one that is highly
penetrated across the country. In terms of landscape, Sensodyne is
the #1 player in the Sensitivity category while Parodontax is the #1

recommended brand for Bleeding Gums by Dentists. Sensodyne is
also #1 in share for recommendation for consumers suffering from
Sensitivity.

Pain Relief

The Pain Relief category in Pakistan is dominated by systemic pain
segment with around 95% of the share and topical pain
contributing towards the remaining 5%.

The Systemic Pain segment is further divided into two
subcategories Analgesics and NSAIDS. Even though the category
is dominated by NSAIDs (both in terms of value market share
(60%) & volume market share (55%), Panadol, despite being an
Analgesic brand, leads the market with a 219% Market Share (Value)
which reflects the strong equity & heritage of the brand.

Vitamins & Mineral Supplements

This subcategory has a fragmented market landscape with various
product offerings. There are 8 sub-segments, out of which
Calcium is the biggest with 36% contribution to overall VMS sales.
Within VMS, CaC-1000 PLUS is the market leader with 15.7% value
share.
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Threat of Substitutes

Healthcare is essential for the people and the demand for it in the
country must be met. GSK CH undertakes extensive research to
come up with a product that would help the consumers in
fulfilling their demand of healthcare needs. Threat of substitute is
always there since for every treatment, pain or disease there are
multiple medicines being made. Technological advancement also
plays a huge role in development of these products as GSK CH
continues to incorporate innovative enhancements in its offerings.

Power of Customers

GSK CH has been serving its customers with excellence for over 5
years. The Company prioritizes its relationship with its customers
and the trust they have in the company. GSK CH has played a
major role in shaping the healthcare sector of Pakistan. They
introduced Protective Counter Units in pharmacies for customers
well-being and to minimize exposure of pharmacists during
COVID-19.

Power of Suppliers

Supply chain department at GSK CH holds a crucial area of
operational excellence. For the company to keep growing they
need a sustainable framework that allows smooth and
uninterrupted supply of input. GSK CH has good strategic
relationship with its suppliers; be it for smooth access of raw
materials or capital inputs.
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Objectives and Strategies

Objective

Enhance '+ Achieve | Ensurereliable | Continuously

Plpellne valye : ' profitable : ' supply of : | evo-lv.e our !

by introducing E:growth, increase quality policies to :

new brands, ' market share and | productstothe @ Pecomea :

Strategy FiRnts and "1 enhance liquidity ' | customers 11 modern :
line extension | ! X 1! employer '

% Medium to ' Shor.t to '| Long term ' Long term !
long term . mediumterm . !

Timeline ¥ ¥ : |
Advertising and ! EVaIue engineering E : E :

promotion, ::initiatives, deploy ' Fmbed an ¥ :

research and ' shopper ' integrated, ' Human resource

X i .+ end-to-end o :

Resource development, ] :marketlr\g.tools X o chai X investment .
Allocation Plan HRZCHETENELN ' and optimize ', SuUpply chain L :
sourcing . working capital . . :

Annual sales of || Gross margins || . :

recently :Esustainability, :E Forecast '\ Employee :

launched ¥ Share of Voice ', accuracy and ' engagement :

Relevant productsasa % ' and Cash ', OnTimelInFull ' survey scores :
KPIs of total sales '} conversionratio | . |

Future Relevance

The KPIs will remain relevant in the future./
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Objectives and Strategies

Significant changes in Objectives and Strategies
from previous period:

There have been no significant changes in objectives and strategies from
last year.

Significant Plans and Decisions:

The Company plans to continually invest in the manufacturing capacity
upgradation in a sustainable manner under improved capital
governance and oversight of the Board.

Liquidity Position of the Company:

The company maintains healthy operating cashflows, which are 164% of
its Profit before tax as compared to 78% as at last year. The acid-test ratio
of the Company has also improved from 0.72 to 0.78 during the year.

Strategy to Overcome Liquidity Problem:

The Company has no liquidity problem and manages its working capital
in the most efficient manner. Our treasury department invests the
surplus funds at the most beneficial rates, which, in turn, adds to its
investment income and duly provides the Company with additional
funds to meet its operational needs. Furthermore, better Capital
Expenditure planning and healthy operating cash inflows have helped to
eliminate the Company's dependency on running facility by the year end
31 December 2020.
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Risk Management

Board’s Statement on Risk Management

Board of Directors rigorously works to develop
and monitor risk management policies to
determine the Company’s level of risk
tolerance. Our Board's main responsibility
includes establishing and overseeing an
effective risk management framework in the
Company.

Risk Management Framework

Our risk management framework is well
embedded within the processes of the

business and continually reviewed with oversight
at Board level through our Audit Committee.
This framework enables the Board to identify,
evaluate, manage our principal risks and is
designed to support our long-term priorities. It
provides our businesses with a framework for
risk management and upward escalation of
significant risks. In conjunction with our values
and expectations and Speak Up processes, it
ensures that the risks associated with Company
business activities are actively and effectively
agreed and mitigated and provides reasonable
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Board of Directors monitors various compliance
initiatives and promotes risk management and
compliance culture in the Company. Board has

Risk and Opportunity Report

Risk & Opportunity

or Risk

Opportunities

Environment, Health &
Safety and Sustainability n
(EHS&S)

Information Security

Volatile Law and Order
Situation

Counterfeit products

Pricing Policy

n Risk ] High Low

5 Opportunity Long Short
Term Term

Information about default in payments of debts

n Medium

Related Opportunity or Risk

Unable to protect people, the environment
and the communities in which we operate.

IT infrastructure or data maybe exposed to
misuse or unauthorized disclosure.

Potential damage to Company’s Property,
plant and equipment, unstable economic
conditions and safety threat to employees.

The availability of low-cost generics in the
market.

Opportunity to sustain and thrive in longer
run through conducive price increases.

( Internal

Medium ’ External

Term

There were no defaults in payments of debts during the year ended December 31, 2020.

Inadequacy in the capital structure

The Company does not have any inadequacy in the Capital Structure.
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delegated the responsibility of monitoring
and control of business risks to the
management of the Company.

Assessment of Principal Risks

Our Risk Management and Compliance
Board (RMCB) is responsible to effectively
identify, assess, mitigate, monitor and report
major risks that the business may encounter.
All critical business risk units are governed
by the RMCB, which promotes the ‘tone
from the top’, establishes the culture
regarding risk and oversees internal controls.

The RMCB has formed a structure whereby
designated Risk Owners are responsible for

Mitigation measure of

risk /Description of opportunity

We are actively managing our EHS&S obligations
and seek to ensure practices that are
environmentally sustainable and compliant.

Proper controls in place that are commensurate
with the changing nature of the security threat
landscape.

Company ensures security measures are in place
and rolls out effective communications to alert
employees in such situations.

Through capacity enhancement/plant upgrading,
new product launches, R&D and providing
affordable healthcare solutions to maintain the
company’'s market share.

Secure price increases to offset ongoing inflation
and devaluation in the prevailing economic
environment.

Key Quantitative Information

identifying and treating significant risks, each
Risk Owner then performs a review of their key
Principal Risks, take corrective and preventive
approaches to ensure controls are in place and
wherever gaps are identified, clear plans are
assighed to address them. The Compliance
Officer facilitates in instilling a risk- based
approach to establishing internal controls
system. This eventually makes risk management
an integral part of decision making and business
operations. The RMCB held four (04) meetings
during the year.

The Board monitors the various compliance
initiatives and promotes risk management and
compliance culture in the Company.

Human Capital

(’ ?/Inadn ufactured

Capital

Intellectual

Human Capital
’
Manufactured
Capital
n Social and

Relationship
Capital

Financial

Number of persons employed as on the date of financial statements and average number of
employees during the year are present in the financial statements in note no. 41. However, details of

factory employees are as follows:

. Employees working in the Company
factory as of December 31, 2020

Average employees working in the
Company'’s factory during the year

[}
(]
[}
]
7

’
e
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Significant Factors Affecting the External
Environment and the Organizational Response

Environmental

High inflation and interest
rates, increasing labor cost,
and low economic growth
adversely affects the
profitability.

Corporate Social
Responsibility program
initiated to increase
awareness amongst the
people and to promote a
healthy lifestyle for them.

Increasing awareness about
the surroundings and the
condition in which a person
operates.

Organizational Response

Initiatives taken to reduce
costs and price adjustment.

Various steps taken as part of
our CSR campaign.

The Company complies with
local regulatory compliance
requirements to
environmental safety

Technological

Companies Act 2017, Income
Tax Ordinance 2001, Sales
Tax Act 1990, Pakistan Stock
Exchange listing regulations,
SECP Act, Drug Regulatory
Authority of Pakistan Act,
2012

Continuous technological
changes and advancements
lead to obsolescence and
excessive training.

Political instability and
uncertainty.

Organizational Response

The Company ensures
compliance with all the
applicable laws and
regulations.

Continuous training provided
to the employees regarding
evolving ways of working.

Diversification of inventory
holding across the country
and across the
route-to-market. Use of
technology to manage
business operations during
uncertainties.
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Effect of Seasonality in
terms of production
and sales

With continued availability of our wide range of consumer healthcare products, our products
are in high demand throughout the year. Sales of Pain portfolio increase in winters whereas
Wellness portfolio is sold more during the summers. The Company manages seasonality
through alignment on production planning cycles involving multiple stakeholders and
inventory management as well as distributor warehouses to ensure enhanced availability of
our products for patients without any supply limitations enabling them to do more, feel
better and live longer.

Significant changes
from prior year

There are no significant changes from prior year.
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Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

Grants and Donation (G&D) is embedded in our ways of working, with our commercial
practices keeping at heart the patient first and focusing on ethical selling. This is also
demonstrated in principle by our core values. Through the above initiatives, we are driving
the GSK mission of "helping people to do more, feel better, live longer..."

As a responsible member of the community, GSK CH recognizes the importance and role
that GSK as a company can play in supporting worthy social causes.

As important as Grants & Donation is for the community, it is equally respectable and
valuable for the Organization. Such initiatives help build a stronger bond between
employees and corporations, boost morale and help employees feel more connected with
the community around them. The purpose is such to give back to the community and
provide positive social value.

Grants & Donation Projects are the work that GSK CH does as a part of its Grants and
Donation communities in Pakistan. These are approved in G&D Working Group and G&D
Committee. Our product offering is such that our aim through this Committee is to ensure
accessibility regardless of circumstances / background.

We have facilitated “The Pakistan Association of the Deaf” for enhancing living standard of
the deaf and enabling them to play an active and respectable role in the society by
supporting with operational expenses. Additionally, we have also contributed to Green
Crescent Trust for adding great academic value and transforming lives through continuous
enhancement of knowledge and empowerment. Also, supporting the underprivileged with a
food drive during COVID-19.

Our purpose is to add great value of living and benefit to the underprivileged community in
Pakistan .
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Analysis of Financial and Non-financial
Performance Using Key Indicators

Non-Financial Performance

Bring differentiated,
high-quality and needed
healthcare products.

Balanced business growth

Focusing on three priorities -
Innovation, Performance and
Trust.

'“

We invest in scientific and
technical excellence to
develop and launch a
pipeline of new products
that meet the needs of the
patients, payers and
customers.

Putting our values and
expectations at the heart of
everything we do, we
become a high performing
team.

We aim to achieve industry
leading growth by investing
effectively in our business
and ensuring the quality and
reliable supply of our
products.

Manufactured Capital

Human and Intellectual
Capital

Intellectual Capital

'“

Market share, Ranking as per
IQVIA.

Market share, Channel Share
and Innovation Sales

Employee Engagement

Financial Performance:

The Company continuously monitors
all KPIs to ensure that its objectives are

being achieved.

Financial Performance using indicators is explained on page 110 and onwards.
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We commit to be more agile
as we develop faster and
simpler decision making by
encouraging more risk
taking and learning.




Response to COVID

The COVID-19 pandemic is considered as the
most crucial global health calamity of the
century and the greatest challenge that the
humankind faced since the World War Il. It has
rapidly spread around the world, posing
enormous health, economic, environmental and
social challenges to the entire human
population. The coronavirus outbreak has
severely disrupted the global economy. Almost
all the nations are struggling to slow down the
transmission of the disease by testing & treating
patients, quarantining suspected persons
through contact tracing, restricting large
gatherings, maintaining complete or partial lock
down etc.

Even in such times the companies must operate
while taking all the necessary precautions and
actions and that is what GSK CH did to ensure

Response in COVID

Quickly responded to
changing market dynamics

People Safety

m Ensured team and front-
line workers were safe

|

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I
® Work from Home + |
Electronic Approval |
process implemented for !
Employees (Ergonomics !
allowance provided) !

42

Dentist Awareness message on
Oral Health habits by Sensodyne
during COVID-19

Protective shields
installed in medical stores
for safety of pharmacists

GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Ltd.

that company keeps functioning while providing
safety to its employees. Firstly, they introduced
work from home for their employees to ensure
their safety and well-being. Secondly, they ran a
COVID-19 awareness campaign by Panadol and
Sensodyne to raise awareness among masses. In
order to reach doctors, the expert team started
remote detailing in which they hosted online
conferences. Besides this, protective kits were
given to doctors, experts, and sales team for their
safety. For the safety of Pharmacists & customers,
safety shields were installed in medical stores. To
deal with the upsurge in demand of CaC-1000
PLUS and Panadol, strong BCGS were put into
place. COVID-19 Pandemic had an impact on all
companies in and outside of Pakistan and this is
how GSK CH responded and tackled all the
hardships ensuring Company continues to
function while keeping safety as its top priority.

@laa)
Expert team started
Remote Detailing to

reach doctors;
hosted online conferences

Protective Kits given to
Doctors, Sales & Expert
team for their safety




Supply Chain Operations Put customers & consumers first

|_ Impact Analysis —|

Testing &
Maintenance

Recovery
Strategies

Business
Continuity

|— Plan Development _'

Strong BCPs put in place to cater to upsurge
in demand of Panadol & CaC

COVID-19 has led to massive change in
consumer sentiments and behavior. Since the
onset of the pandemic, people have started
shifting into protection mode, minimizing their
exposure to potential virus contraction. While
other sectors remained under lockdown,
pharmacy was one channel that remained
operational to facilitate provision of public
healthcare. In turn, this caused high exposure to
pharmacists resulting in a surge in COVID-19
cases amongst them.

Living the GSK attribute of customer obsession,
we introduced Protective Counter Units in this
channel to not only minimize exposure for
pharmacists and consumers but also leveraged
on the branding opportunity in a disruptive way.

Pandemic Recovery Plan

There is nothing in the world which didn’t get
impacted by the Pandemic of COVID-19. From
poor to rich, small businesses to corporate
giants, lifestyles, social activities, just everything
got terribly impacted. The entire world
implemented alternate measures & execute
Business Continuity Plans (BCPs) to cope up with
the situation.

GSK CH put in place a strong governance

Additional inventory of RM/PM
purchased to support
continuous operations

BCPs agreed with LSPs to ensure
d Finished Goods are delivered to
customers on time and in full

process, firstly to ensure the safety of the
employees along with the business continuity.
BCPs were executed at all levels to ensure that
remote working doesn’'t hamper the product
supply to the patients and consumers. Starting
from the procurement of materials to the final
distribution of finished goods, the entire chain
worked with great collaboration to avoid any
disruption. On one hand Factories played an
integral role to run the production machines
with full capacities while following the COVID-19
related SOPs and precautionary measures; on
other hand, a strong alliance with 3rd party
Logistics business partners really helped in
executing a BCP around warehousing and
distribution operation which resulted in robust
On time and In Full Performance (above 98%
throughout the year).

Furthermore, our team underwent a
transformational journey, with the onset of
COVID-19 giving rise to new ways of working. The
country-wide lockdown meant that all
face-to-face interactions with HCPs had to be
halted indefinitely. However, continuing to
engage HCPs in scientific dialogue while
safeguarding the wellbeing of our field force was
our utmost priority. Hence, we successfully
navigated to a hybrid detailing model, using
digital channels to engage HCPs where
face-to-face interaction was not possible. During
this time, our team also conducted numerous
digital presentations and hosted informative
webinars in partnership.
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Deployment of One ERP

GSK CH deployed SAP in the commercial division during COVID-19 and faced several challenges but
overcame them through strong governance and decision making. It helped the company in many
ways as it centralized data base that supports all core processes and simplified systems and processes
to support businesses. It added value to business by simplifying operating models and unifying them
onto one platform.

ONE ERP: Remote Deployment in Pakistan
Extraordinary Project Management during unprecedented times

Simplyifying systems and

process to support business

‘jf%ﬁ Future Ready ||l

Making technology work
harder for us

Ensure business as jc‘;‘?
oo

_oo-% Establish new online usual while BCP was in
éﬁ,.gg distributor ordering place
system ;‘ """""""""""

Stock build with 5%/

é%fg; Agile deployment channel partners and  ¢$5%;

258 approch with negitiate trade terms
challenging timelines  AVA AR -~~~ T o m T e e e
Fully remote deployment %,.ijg

%22, Project cutover due to COVID-19

00°2 Qactivitieswereatrisk £/ /0 BEEEEREER-S - """ — - — - - - - - -
due to COVID-19

Challenge
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How we did it virtually:
Strong Governance & Decision making

&

Virtual One ERP
Journey

Stong ONE-ERP
project
managment
executed through
effective activities
conducted
remotely.

Governance

The project was
tracked on a
weekly and
fortnightly basis by
focus group
including LT
members from the
LOC and key
project sponsors to
ensure adequate
support and timely
completion of the
deployment.

First successful virtual

go-live

Online integrated portals

for Procurement and
managing Travel and

Entertainment

Virtual accounts and

online customer

portal

Successful stock

building

Supply chain,
logistics and
GMS Sites

Effectively and
efficiently
managed stock
build
requirements

Winning mindset
& Inclusive
Behaviour

Success
Factors

Decision Making

Warehousing Finance

and Distribution

Played a pivotal
role in robust
decision making,
effective Gross to
Net management,
business
partnering and
timely submission
of group and
statutory
reporting’s.

Ensured products
delivery before
cutiver freeze
across all
warehouses.

Efficient working
capital management

Bl & Lumira reports

Efficiencies on the area
supply chain &
Warehousing &
Distribution

Standard Ways of

Working aligned with
global policy

One GSK
One Team
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Stakeholders Engagement

The Company recognizes that stakeholder engagement, particularly under the challenging
circumstances of a global pandemic, should be more than an exercise undertaken for its own
sake, but rather an opportunity to drive positive change for business, its employees, the
environment, local communities / society as a whole and to create value for its shareholders.

The Company engages with a wide range of stakeholders through day-to-day interactions
with customers; engagement with the government and regulators; regular dialogue with

employees; suppliers, partners, distributors and investors to follow its business priorities of
Innovation, Performance and Trust in letter and spirit.

Dialogues with stakeholders enable the Company to identify and prioritise significant issues
and develop responses that are in the best interests of society, as well as shareholders.
Engagement with the Company’'s main stakeholder groups, including patients, shareholders,
consumers, customers and employees, at all levels of the organisation and across the
enterprise is summarised below:

Shareholders and Investors

Annual General Meetings

Corporate Briefing Sessions

Annual Reports

Quarterly Financial Statements and Directors’

- The Company's website

Dedicated email address for investor relations

Consumers

Advertising campaigns

Press releases

Radio Messages

Multichannel / digital campaigns
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Employees

Biannual employee Surveys

Let’s Talk sessions with Leadership teams across
the GSK universe

Townhalls with local leadership

Several engagement initiatives as a part of the
‘Play Above’ programme, including skip level
sessions with +1 line managers

Healthcare professionals
(HCPs)

Conferences and seminars
Regular visits by field force
Advisory Board meetings

Suppliers and Distributors

GSK's Third Party Oversight programme and
external platforms to help monitor
performance.

Miscellaneous trainings like QMS training
sessions and regular QMS audits

Distributor conferences

Market visits

Governments and
Regulators

Scheduled meetings
Industry conferences
Trade associations
Written communication
Facility visits

Local Community

CSR initiatives
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Corporate Governance

OUR CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
STATEMENT

The Company’'s governance structure
operates from the Board of Directors and
underpins its ability to deliver the
Company’'s strategy and create long-term
value and benefit for shareholders and
stakeholders. The Company’s Purpose and
Values have always been a source of great
pride for the Board and employees. It is a
powerful force in attracting and retaining
talented people who, as individuals, want to
be part of a company that contributes
meaningfully to the society.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE BEST
CORPORATE PRACTICES

The Company is fully compliant with the
requirements of Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019.
The Report issued by the auditors
confirming the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019
(“Code of Corporate Governance”) is
contained on page 138.

The Directors of the Company confirm
compliance with the below mentioned:

Financial statements accurately
represent the current standing of the
Company, its operations, cash flows and
changes in equity.

Books of accounts of the Company have
been properly maintained.

Internal control has been implemented
and monitored by the Internal Audit
function led by the Chief Internal

48
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Auditor supported by Yousuf Adil,
Chartered Accountants.

The Company has followed the
International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) in preparation of
financial statements

Departures from the IFRS, if any, have
been adequately disclosed and
explained throughout this Annual
Report.

There is no material departure from
the best practices of corporate
governance as per the Code of
Corporate Governance.

COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED
COMPANIES (CODE OF
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE)
REGULATIONS,2019

The Board is well versed with the
requirements of the Code of Corporate
Governance and has taken relevant steps to
ensure compliance with the same along
with Management. Please refer to the
review report on the Statement of
Compliance issued by the external auditors
of the Company further to the Code of
Corporate Governance.

GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
EXCEEDING LEGAL
REQUIREMENTS

The Company strives to operate transparent,
consistent and timely compliance with all
prevailing laws and regulations of Pakistan.
We take pride in proactively complying with
many additional legal requirements which
are not mandatory.




In addition to all the mandatory
requirements of the laws and regulations of
Pakistan, some examples are given below:

The Code of Corporate Governance
encourages at least half of the directors
on the Board of a Company to have
completed the Directors' Training
Programme trained by 30 June 2020.
Currently, as of December 2020, more
than 50% of the Directors are either
trained through SECP approved
institutions or exempted. We foresee this
number to rise in 2021.

The Code of Corporate Governance also
encourages at least one (1) female
executive to complete the Directors’
Training Programme in a year, which the
Company has complied with to ensure
best practices in corporate governance
yearly, despite this being an encouraged
stipulation of the Code of Corporate
Governance.

The Company has had two (2) female
directors on its Board prior to the Code
of Corporate Governance mandating
female representation on boards.

Living our Values and
Expectations Together

Together, our Values (Consumer First,
Integrity, Respect and Transparency) and
Expectations (Courage, Accountability,
Development and Teamwork) help us to
create the culture we want. They are
included in the Company's Code of
Conduct, which we have updated to make it
simpler and easier to use. Every employee
and complementary worker is required to
complete mandatory trainings on the Code
of Conduct annually.

Reporting and investigating
concerns

The Company encourages people to speak
up if they have any concerns relating to
unethical conduct or behaviour that is
inconsistent with its Values - or if they
simply want to ask a question about how to
apply the Company’s Code of Conduct.
Anyone within or outside the Company can
raise concerns or speak to an independent
third party through our integrity lines,
confidentially or anonymously if they prefer.
The Company takes every reported concern
very seriously and each complaint is
reviewed to understand whether a formal
investigation is warranted. If investigations
show that an employee has breached
Company policies, appropriate disciplinary
action is taken.

Inside Information Register

In compliance with regulatory
requirements, the Company ensures that it
maintains an Insider Information Register,
which is updated on a regular basis.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST AMONG
BOARD MEMBERS

The Company has a clear policy on conflict
of interests which contained in the Code of
Conduct duly approved by the Board of
Directors. As per the Code of Corporate
Governance, every Director is required to
bring to the attention of the Board
complete details regarding any material
transaction which has a conflict of interest
for prior approval of the Board. The
interested Directors neither participate in
discussions nor vote on such matters.
Further, complete details of all transactions
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with related parties are submitted to the
Audit Committee which recommends them
to the Board for approval in each quarter.
These transactions are also fully disclosed in
the annual financial statements of the
company. All Directors are reminded of
insider trading and avoid in the dealing of
shares during the closed period every
quarter.

The Board has been constituted in
compliance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2017 and the Code of
Corporate Governance. The members of the
Board, including Non-Executive and
Independent Directors, exercise full
independence and are expected to
highlight and recuse themselves in case of
any possible conflict of interest. All
observations / suggestions of Board
members during their proceedings are
accordingly recorded.

WHISTLE BLOWING POLICY

The Company has global procedures on
reporting misconduct and safeguarding
people who report these concerns. We
believe that ethical business conduct is the
responsibility of everyone working for and
on behalf of the Company. It is the
foundation for building trust in the

Company and protects its license to operate.

The Company expects everyone to live its
Values and Expectations, speak up if they
have any concerns, engage appropriately
with stakeholders and respect human
rights. The Company also extends these
ethical expectations to the third parties it
works with.

E GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Ltd.

ZERO TOLERANCE FOR
RETALIATION

At the Company, anyone can report
concerns without fear of reprisal. The
Company prohibits retaliation against
anyone who raises, or reports concerns and
will take disciplinary action up to and
including dismissal (in accordance with
local labour laws) against any employee
who threatens or engages in retaliation,
bullying and/or harassment of someone
who has reported, or is considering
reporting, a concern in good faith. Similarly,
we will report an agency worker who
retaliates against anyone raising a report or
concern to the worker’'s employment
agency and terminate their assignment
with the Company.

The Company treats all questions and issues
confidentially, where possible, while
investigating fairly, cooperating with
governments and complying with legal
obligations. When someone reports a
concern in good faith, the Company will
support that individual.

As a part of Company Values and
Expectations of doing the right thing, all
Company employees are required to
promptly raise concerns of possible
misconduct, potential conflicts, or known
breaches of the Company's Code of
Conduct, and other Company policies and
procedures. Further, any suspected
violations of country laws and regulations
must also be reported. Contingent workers
working on behalf of the Company are also
required to report misconduct concerns,
with ‘Speak Up’ integrity line information
provided in the Company'’s Third Party Code
of Conduct.




SPEAK UP INSTANCES DURING THE YEAR

During 2020, there were no instances that qualified as that of material nature.

CORPORATE BRIEFING SESSION 2020

The Company held its second successful corporate briefing session on 7 December 2020
virtually due to COVID-19 induced lockdown. Mr. Sohail Ahmed Matin (CEO), Mr. Dilawar
Meghani (CFO), Mr. Ahmed Baloch (Director Marketing) and Ms. Mashal Mohammad
(Company Secretary) presented and briefed investors on the Company’s financial
performance and operational overview.

The presentation was followed by a Q&A session, where thought provoking questions were
put forward to the management of the Company, which were well addressed to the
satisfaction of the attendees. The following are some of the topics discussed during the
briefing session:

The landscape of the industry and the Company’s growth in relation to other players.

Key brands performance and performance highlights of the Company since the last ACM.
The Company'’s response to COVID-19.

The Company's future outlook and challenges.

The presentation from the corporate briefing session can be viewed on the Company’s
website under the “Investors” section i.e.
https://pk-consumerhealthcare.gsk.com/en-gb/investors/shareholder-notices-and-forms/
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INVESTORS’ GRIEVANCE POLICY/
REDRESSAL OF INVESTORS’
COMPLAINTS

The Company’s Corporate Secretarial team
promotes dialogue with its shareholders
and investors in line with GSK Values and
Expectations. The Company’s commitment
to open communication ensures
accountability and transparency to its
external audiences and plays an important
role in the Company’s success.

The Management of the Company is also
committed to provide equal and fair
treatment to all shareholders through
transparent investor relations, increased
awareness, effective communication and
prompt resolution of shareholders’
complaints. Further, the Company
maintains a record of all such grievances
along with actions taken for resolution. The
main principles of the Investor Relations
Policy are as follow:

All the shareholders are always treated
politely, fairly and equally.

Complaints raised by shareholders are
dealt with courtesy and in a timely
manner.

The Management works in good faith
and without prejudice towards the
interests of any of the shareholders.
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The Company has internally established a
mechanism for shareholder grievances
handling. The Company has a dedicated
Shares Department in place and appointed
an independent Share Registrar (CDCSRSL)
to resolve issues of the shareholders as well
as to provide a faster and efficient provision
of services to its shareholders and investors.

Complaints are initially lodged with the
Shares Department and the Share Registrar
of the Company who expeditiously takes
necessary actions. The Shares Registrar
forwards the complaints to the Company if
these fall outside their domain.

Shareholders can also submit their
complaint(s) to a dedicated email address
i.e. chc.shareinfo@gsk.com which is also
available at the Company’s website in line
with the directives of SECP. Grievances can
also be notified to the Company by post and
telephone.

In case a complaint has not been properly
redressed by the Company or the Registrar,
shareholders / investors, the Company has
highlighted on its website that shareholders
may lodge their complaints with the
Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan on their SDMS portal.

INVESTORS’ SECTION ON
WEBSITE

In order to provide ease of access to
stakeholders, the Company’s latest




information for investors is available on our
website, under the “Investors” section on the
Company's website
(www.pk-consumerhealthcare.gsk.com/en
-gb/investors)

This page is updated regularly in order to
provide transparent, adequate and updated
information to all investors and
stakeholders. All information is made
available in both English and Urdu
languages for the ease of shareholders and
investors and in compliance with applicable
law.

POLICY FOR SAFEGUARDING OF
RECORDS

Under the Company's Global Records
Retention Policy and Schedule, all staff in all
business units, regions, areas and functions
must follow approved retention periods in
managing their records. The Company’s
GClobal Records Retention Schedule applies
to all media and formats.

The Company believes that documentation
practices have a direct impact on product
guality and consumer safety, and it
implements the highest standards of record
safeguarding through our document
management and control policy. The
Company has strict data lifecycle
Mmanagement guidelines in place which are
implemented across all its activities and
processes. These guidelines outline

procedures for data approvals, use, access
and retention as well as the use of
third-party archive service. This helps ensure
document accuracy, consistency, integrity,
availability and legibility.

In line with regulatory requirements and the
GSK CH's Code of Conduct, the Company
ensures documentation practices meet its
requirements for design, management and
control of instructions, reports and master
documents. The Company also has checks
in place that cover archiving requirements
for all stored data, both physical and
electronic.

The Company continues to invest in
technology and software to ensure the
safekeeping for documents which includes
its contract management repository, and
other forms of document management
applications.
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| Appointment: 26 April 2018 :
| Nationality: Pakistani ‘
I Years of experience: 40 years of experience in |
: business and finance fields. I
| Education: Chartered Accountant 4
M. Z. Moin Mohajir's business experience spans 40
years. After qualifying as a Chartered Accountant
(] 9 with A.F. Ferguson & Co. He joined Pakistan Security
DI rectors Printing Corporation in 1978, where he was Chief
Accountant/Company Secretary. In 1981, he joined
P f - I Sanofi Aventis Pakistan Limited (formerly Hoechst
ro I e Marion Roussel Limited/Hoechst Pakistan Limited)
from where he retired as Director Finance and
Administration in October 2011.

He joined the Overseas Investors Chamber of
Commerce and Industry (OICCI) in October 2011,
where he is presently working as the Deputy
Secretary General. He also serves as the Independent
Member of the Board of Directors of Pakistan
Oxygen Limited, Wyeth Pakistan Limited and Loads
Limited and their Board Committees. He is also a
Member of Federal Tax Ombudsman Advisory
Committee (South), and a Member of the Fiscal Law
commiittee of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of Pakistan (ICAP).

His previous responsibilities included: Member of
the Board of Directors and Chairperson Audit
Committee - Pakistan Industrial Development
Corporation (PIDC), Member of the Board of
Directors and Audit Committee - Standard
Chartered Leasing Limited, Member of the Board of
Directors and Audit Committee - Sindh Modaraba
Limited, Chairperson of the Election Committee -
ICAP, Audit Commiittee - ICAP, Member of the
Finance Subcommittees of two major Clubs.

T

L J
Mr.M. Z. ) |
Moin Mohajir G e
Independent \ P /
Director
(Chairperson)

thcare Pakistan Ltd.




Appointment: 06 January 2016

Nationality: Pakistan

Years of experience: 36 years of experience in
pharmaceuticals

Education: Master's degree in Mechanical
Engineering from Stevens Institute of
Technology, followed by an MBA in
Management from Oklahoma State University.

Sohail Ahmed Matin is CEO & GM of GSK CH
Pakistan. He started his career in Supply Chain
with Glaxo Laboratories Pakistan Limited in 1986,
and then moved to SK&F and Sterling Winthrop.

He joined SmithKline Beecham in 1997, and since
then, has worked as Director, Quality Assurance &
Manufacturing Development in Pakistan, as well
as Area Regulatory & Business Development
Director, Middle East & Africa in Dubai, before
moving back to Pakistan in 2007 and taking on
his current role.

In GlaxoSmithKline, his biggest achievement was
the turnaround of the Consumer Healthcare
Pakistan business, delivering a compound annual
growth of 25% for the last six years. The key to his
success was putting together a high-performance
team, significantly improving the company’s
Commercial Execution capability and articulating
and alighing everybody behind the company’s
high growth ambition (Vision 4X).

He also serves as a Chairperson on the Board of
Directors of Pakistan LNG Limited.

Mr. Sohail a.
Ahmed Matin | o4,

“"." = ‘
Executive Director e

(Chief Executive Officer)

|
Appointment: 27 October 2020 ‘
Nationality: Pakistani :
Years of experience: over 15 years !
Education: Chartered Accountant and Master's |
degree in Commerce. /

Dilawar Meghani has diverse experience
spanning over 15 years of Financial Planning &
Controlling, Assurance & Advisory and led various
restructuring, integration and change
management programs. He has worked as a
Senior Finance Business Partner for GSK Pharma
Saudi Arabia. Prior to this, he served as a Financial
Controller for GSK CH .

He joined GSK in 2015 as part of Novartis
Integration where he was responsible for
Consumer Healthcare business as Manager
Business Planning and Analysis since 2012. Before
joining Novartis, he has also worked for Johnson &
Johnson Pakistan and PriceWaterhouseCoopers
(PWC) on various managerial and advisory
positions.

He played a pivotal role in the merger of GSK and
Novartis consumer entities, creation and listing of
new legal entity at Pakistan Stock Exchange, local
manufacturing projects in Saudi Arabia,
revamping Core Commercial Cycle (CCC); driving
significant savings and efficiencies including
re-designing route to market for Saudi business.

Mr. Dilawar '
Meghani [ I
Executive Director

(Chief Financial
Officer)
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Appointment: 23 June 2016

Nationality: Pakistan

Years of experience: 40 years of experience in
various industries.

Education: Graduated with honours in
Economics and later obtained a master’s
degree in the same discipline.

Syed Anwar Mahmood, who retired as a
Secretary to the Government of Pakistan in
2008 after heading the Ministry of Health and
the Ministry of Information & Broadcasting, now
heads his own consultancy, media and
government relations firm. He also publishes
and edits a monthly magazine titled Health and
Pharma. He is also an honorary senior advisor in
the office of the Wafaqi Mohtasib (Federal
Ombudsman).

He joined the Central Superior Services (CSS) of
Pakistan in November in 1971. After training at
the Civil Services Academy, he was assighed
various positions and responsibilities during
which he earned varied experience both in
media and management, including
hands-on-experience of executing media and
communications strategy for the Federal
Government at the highest level.

He has served for nearly six years, spread over
two terms, as the Federal Information Secretary
and the Government's chief spokesman. He has
headed many media organizations as Chief
Executive or as the Chairperson of the Board,
including PTV, PBC, SRBC, APP and the Press
Information Department.

Syed Anwar 5
Mahmood e
Independent 3
Director
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Appointment: 3 March 2021

Nationality: Pakistani

Years of experience: over 28 years of financial
experience

Education: MBA (Institute of Business

Administration, Karachi) and CFA Charterholder /

/
-

Ms. Aziz currently serves as the CEO / Managing
Director of Pak Brunei Investment Company
(nominee of GoP). She brings over 20 years of
experience in Structured Finance, Private Equity &
Strategic Advisory businesses. Ms. Aziz started her
career from ANZ Grindlays Bank & worked in
Merchant Banking & Treasury Markets Divisions.
She was also involved in establishing and
managing business operations of Pak Oman
Investment Company and its subsidiaries, in
senior roles.

She serves on the Board of Directors of Primus
Leasing (subsidiary) as Chairperson, Awwal
Modaraba Management Ltd (subsidiary) and is an
Independent Director on the boards of KSB
Pumps Company Ltd and Engro Polymer and
Chemicals Ltd.

Ms. Ayesha
Aziz
Independent
Director




Appointment: 26 August 2020
Nationality: French

Years of experience: 25 years
Education: International Executive MBA (High 1
Distinction) from the Louvain School of !
Management - Belgium (1999); Doctorate Degree, |
Faculty of Pharmacy - University Claude Bernard !
(Lyon - France); Second Degree Master - Focus in |
Galenic (Formulation - Process - Production) - :
University Diploma of Pharmaceutical ‘
Management, Institute de la Pharmacie \
Industrielle de Lyon.

Mr. Abbas currently Head of Supply Chain -
Turkey, Middle East & Africa (MEA), Consumer
Health Supply Chain (CHSC), is an accomplished
industrial senior executive of GSK with proven
abilities in international pharmaceutical, biotech
and animal healthcare. He also has solid
experience in leading manufacturing plants of
commiercial and clinical supply-chain operations.
He is deeply involved in corporate organizational
changes with understanding of impact on other
business functions.

He joined GSK as Director, Secondary
Manufacturability & Clinical Supply in May 2009
and has grown through the system to his current
position as the Head of Supply Chain of MEA.

He also serves as a Non-Executive Director of the
Board of Directors of GlaxoSmithKline Consumer
Nigeria plc.

Mr. Oussama "
Abbas = ==
=
Non-Executive g
Director -

\
Appointment: 13 April 2020 ‘
Nationality: Pakistani ‘
Years of experience: over 25 years ‘
Education: Master's Degree in Mass ‘
Communication from Karachi University. /

Erum Shakir Rahim, VP & General Manager of
GSK Pakistan Limited has a professional career
that spans over 25 years in the Pharmaceutical
sector.

She started her career in the field of media, first in
advertising, then as a journalist and later joined
GSK in Pakistan.

In GSK Pakistan, Erum did multiple commercial
roles in Rx, Vaccines and Consumer. These
included Marketing, Sales, Comms, GA and
Business Development (leading the BMS, Stiefel
and UCB acquisition as well as launching around
20 assets across oncology, vaccines and Specialty
and growing GSK core assets). During her tenure,
GSK Pakistan had absolute leadership of the
market with a 14% market share.

In 2013 Erum was appointed as General Manager
of GSK Malaysia (+Brunei). In 2016 she took over as
MD & GM of GSK Bangladesh and Developing
Countries Asia Cluster and then as GM Indonesia
from mid-2018. She took over as Vice President &
General Manager of GSK Pakistan in April 2020.

Erum has been on the GSK Pakistan, GSK
Bangladesh and GSK CH Boards ensuring
regulatory compliance of the listed company.
She has also represented the industry on various
forums across different countries as part of the
Industry associations and is a member of the
Managing Committee of OICCI, Pakistan. Erum is
the first woman from the subcontinent to be
appointed as GM by GSK. She was also the first
female GM in Malaysia, Bangladesh and now
Pakistan.

Ms. Erum
Shakir Rahim

Non-Executive
Director
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Geography and
Cross-Cultural Experience

\’\/

Finance, Risk Management
Regulatory and Governance

Human Resources and Board Corporate Strategy and
Community Development Diversity Strategic Planning
Expertise

Sales, Marketing and
Business Development

Expertise

Our Brand is an ideal mix of analytical,
strategic and leadership skills. The Directors
are seasoned professionals and are familiar
with the organizational and industrial
aspects of operations and have adequate
competencies to bring value additions to
our functions.

Board Experience %

43%

57%

Bl >30years M 10-29 years
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N

General Management and
Leadership Experience

The Board represents diverse skill sets and
expertise in Accounting Sales and
Development, Information Technology,
Public Relations, Digital Marketing, Strategy
Development and Implementation, in
alignment with our long-term strategic
plans.

Board Diversity %

29%

71%

H Male

B Female




Role of Board of Directors

The Board of Directors is responsible for
governing the organization by establishing
Board policies, setting goals, objectives and
strategies. The Board exercises all powers
granted to it by the Companies, Act 2017
with responsibility, diligence and in
compliance with the legal framework after
due deliberations in its meetings. These
include, but are not limited to, ensuring the
Company's prosperity by collectively
monitoring and directing the Company's
affairs, whilst protecting the appropriate
interests of its shareholders and
stakeholders. The Board is responsible for
the Company’s system of internal controls,
policy frameworks, corporate governance,
risk assessments and ultimately
accountable for reviewing its effectiveness.
The Board is also accountable to the
shareholders for ensuring that the Company
is appropriately managed and achieves its
business objectives.The Board remains
committed to the highest standards of
corporate governance and integrity.

Business is focused around an established
framework which assists to deliver the main
objectives of the Company i.e. increase
growth, deliver results and simplify
performance, as well as to create a
long-term value for shareholders. At the
Company, we have a Board that follows a
coherent corporate governance framework
with clearly defined responsibilities and
accountabilities.

The Board of Directors meets approx. 4-5
times a year to consider the Company’s
financial performance, operating budgets,
forecasts, business strategy, development

plans, capital expenditure plans, assets
disposal, major investments, licensing
decisions and evaluates and monitors the
Company’s performance. The Board
comprises of seven (7) Directors, who
actively ensure that all shareholders and
stakeholder’s interests are fully protected.

The Board also formulates corporate
strategies and Company objectives. The
Company pays bench-marked
remuneration to the Non-Executive
Directors for attending the meetings of the
Company, which includes the Board
Meetings and the meetings of the Board
Committees. In order to adequately
delegate, the Board has constituted Board
Committees. Each Committee has its
charter with goals and responsibilities. The
Committees report on their activities and
results to the Board.

The Board, whilst maintaining its overall
responsibility for managing risk within the
Company, has delegated the executive and
operational management of the Company
to the Chief Executive Officer's office and
Management Team.

OUR BOARD COMPOSITION

There are two (2) executive and five (5)
non-executive directors on our Board, three
(3) of whom are independent directors.

All independent Directors have been
appointed in accordance with the
requirements of Section 166 of the
Companies Act, 2017 and all applicable law.
The current Board composition reflects a
good mix of experience, diversity in
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backgrounds, skills and qualifications, and
comprises of individuals actively ensure that
all shareholders and stakeholder’s interests
are fully protected.

Our Board composition is mainly governed
by Companies Act, 2017 and Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019 and other good corporate
governance practices, ideologies available
locally and internationally.

The Company values and ensures effective,
efficient and independent decision making.
The Board as a group includes
competencies and diversity considered
relevant to operations of a public limited
company. Our Board comprises of members
who have local and international
experience, giving the Board a competitive
edge for effectively managing the
complexities of our business. Our Board of
Directors comprise of highly qualified
professionals from varied disciplines,
including pharmaceutical, finance,
investment, financial institutions, and
business management.

The composition of the Board and the
names of Members of Board
sub-committees are disclosed in the
Statement of Compliance with the Code of
Corporate Governance, issued by the
Company on pages 90 to 91.

CHANGES IN THE BOARD
COMPOSITION

The changes in the Board composition are

as follows:

a) The resignation of Ms. Annelize Roberts,
Non-Executive Director, who was
replaced by Ms. Erum Shakir Rahim,
Non-Executive Director.

E GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Ltd.

b) The resignation of Ms. Emine Tasci Kaya,
Non-Executive Director, who was
replaced by Mr. Oussama Abbas,
Non-Executive Director.

c) The resignation of Mr. Talal Javed
Ahmed, CFO and Executive Director,
who was replaced by Mr. Dilawar
Meghani, CFO and Executive Director.

d) The resignation of Syed Azeem Abbas
Naqvi, Non-Executive Director, who was
replaced by Mr. Talal Javed Ahmed,
Non-Executive Director.

e) The resignation of Mr. Talal Javed
Ahmed, Non-Executive Director, who
was replaced by Ms. Ayesha Aziz.

For further details regarding the above,
please refer to pages 90 to 91 of this Report.

EXTERNAL SEARCH
CONSULTANCY - APPOINTMENT
OF DIRECTORS

No external search consultancy has been
used in the appointment of the Chairperson
or a non-Executive Director.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETINGS

The Board has established a corporate
governance framework with clearly defined
responsibilities and accountabilities. The
framework is designed to safeguard and
enhance long-term shareholder value and
to provide a platform to realize the Group’s
strategy through the Company’s long-term
priorities of Innovation, Performance and
Trust, that is consistent with its culture,
Values and Expectations. For our Board to
operate effectively and to consider key
matters, Board Committees have been
established as set out below.




Further, the Board of Directors calendar is
approved annually, in which Board
Meetings, HR and Remunerations
Committee and Audit Committee Meetings
are scheduled for the upcoming year. Board
Members are issued meeting notices within
statutory timelines. The board folder is
prepared with material and concise
information and is sent to the Board for its
consideration seven (7) days prior to a board
meeting.

Board of
Directors
Meetings

Ms. Ayesha Aziz

The attendance of the members of the
Board at board meetings and
sub-committee meetings was as follows:

Board of Human Resource Integration
Audit Committee and & SNO
Meetings Remuneration Committee
Committee Meeting
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Meetings held during the year - 2020

Board of Board of Humar;llzssource Integration & SNO

Directors Audit Committee | pemuneration Committee
Meetings Meetings Committee Meeting
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Board Meetings Held Outside Pakistan

No Board meetings were held outside Pakistan during the year.

T

_____________________________________________ .
Mr. M.Z. Moin Mohajir Wyeth Pakistan limited :
_____________________________________________ -

Pakistan Oxygen Limited :
______________________________________________ 2

Mr. Sohail Ahmed Matin || -

Mr. Dilawar Meghani GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Limited |
.............................................. -

Syed Anwar Mahmood GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Limited :
L

I

Ms. Erum Shakir Rahim L_ _(_jl_a i(c_’s_T'_tt‘ fl_'rle_?a_k_ls_t?rl I:'En_lt_efl ____________________ _E

Mr.Oussama Abbas = [ T 1
GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Nigeria plc

GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Limited

_____________________________________________ ]
Pak Brunei Investment Company :
______________________________________________ 4

] Awwal Modaraba Management Limited :

Ms. Ayesha Aziz m============================================4
KSB Pumps Company Limited :
_____________________________________________ 4

Engro Polymer and Chemicals Limited :
______________________________________________ 4

Primus Leasing Limited :
______________________________________________ d
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BRIEF ROLES AND
RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE
CHAIRPERSON

The Board of Directors has appointed a
Chairperson from amongst non-executive
directors. The Chairperson and the Chief
Executive have separate and distinct roles.
The Board has defined the respective roles
and responsibilities of the Chairperson and
Chief Executive Officer.

The Chairperson has all the powers vested in
him under the Code of Corporate
Governance and presides over all Board
meetings. The primary role of the
Chairperson is to ensure that the Board of
Directors remains effective in its tasks of
setting and implementing the Company’s
direction and strategy, entrusted with the
overall supervision and direction of the
Board'’s proceedings, and has the power to
set the agenda, give directions and sign the
minutes of the Board meetings. He is also
responsible for ensuring that the Board
plays an effective role in fulfilling its
responsibilities, besides assessing and
making recommendations on the efficiency
of the Committees and individual Directors
in fulfilling their responsibilities and
avoidance of conflicts of interests.

CHAIRPERSON'S SIGNIFICANT
COMMITMENTS

The Chairperson’s significant commitments
during the year included:

Effective conducting of meetings and
decision making virtually keeping in
view COVID-19 induced lockdown and
social distancing measures.

Maximising value and safeguarding of
interests of shareholders under the
difficult circumstances of the COVID-19
pandemic.

Focused attention to the intersection
between the business and society in the
face of country’s economic hardship.
Delivery of value by the Company to its
customers.

Monitoring the Company’s supply of its
products and ensuring access to of the
same patients and consumers, all the
more under the difficult circumstances
of the COVID-19 pandemic.

Review of the Company’s progress in
strategic matters, risk management,
technological advancements and
financial performance.

Working with the management to foster
a culture instilled with GSK Values and
Expectations and having visibility of the
Company’'s COVID-19 safety measures for
all employees.

The Chairperson’s engagements other
than GSK CH have been disclosed on
page no. 62 of this Report.

BRIEF ROLES AND
RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE CHIEF
EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Chief Executive Officer performs his
duties under the powers vested by the law
and the Board, recommends and
implements the business plans and is
responsible for overall control and operation
of the Company. The CEO of the Company is
to whom all business and functional heads
directly or indirectly report. He is
responsible for presentation of the
Company’s aims and policies to the
Government and all stakeholders.
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The responsibilities of the Chief Executive
Officer include:

To plan, develop, implement and direct
the organization’s operational and fiscal
function and performance.

Act as a strategic partner by developing
and implementing the company’s plans
and programes.

Analyze and make recommendation on
the impact of long-range growth
initiatives, planning and introduction of
new strategies and regulatory actions.
Create, improve, implement and enforce
policies and procedures of the
organization that will improve
operational and financial effectiveness of
the company.

Communicate effectively and establish
credibility throughout the organization
and with the Board of Directors as an
effective developer of solutions to
business challenges.

Matters recommended and/or reported
by the audit committee and other
committees of the Board.

Improve the planning and budgeting
process on a continual basis by
educating departments and key
members of corporate leadership.
Provide strategic input and leadership
on decision making issues affecting the
organization; specifically relating to the
evaluation of potential mergers,
acquisitions or partnerships.

Optimize the handling of banking
relationships and work closely with CFO
to foster and grow strategic financial
partnerships.

Work with the finance team to develop a
solid cash flow projection and reporting
mechanism, which includes setting a

E GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Ltd.

minimum cash threshold to meet
operating needs.

Report on governance, risk management
and compliance issues.

Evaluate the Company’s financial,
operational, and sales and marketing
structures to plan for continual
improvements and a continual increase
of operating efficiencies.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has formed the following
Committees in line with best practices and
requirements of the Code of Corporate
Governance:

BOARD AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises of three (3)
members, all of whom are Non-Executive
Directors including the Chairperson of the
Committee, who is an Independent
Director.

The Audit Committee comprises of three
members, one of whom is a Chartered
Accountant, one is a CFA Charter holder
while one member has a M.Sc. in Finance
and Economics. The Audit Committee
members have extensive experience in the
fields of financial management, accounting,
business and economics.

The Audit Committee annually reviews the
financial aspects and appropriateness of
resources, the corporate accounting and
financial reporting process, the effectiveness
and adequacy of internal controls, the
management of risks and the external and
internal audit process.




The Chief Internal Auditor reports to the
Audit Committee and acts as the Secretary
of the Audit Committee. The Internal Audit
Function utilises the services of an
independent audit firm to continuously
examine Company records and operations,
ensuring fair financial reporting processes,
compliance with applicable laws and
adherence with internal control systems.

The Audit Committee meets once every
quarter of the financial year. These meetings
are held prior to the approval of the interim
results of the Company by its Board of
Directors and after completion of external
audit.

The Audit Committee held four (4) Meetings
in 2020 and met once with the Chief
Internal Auditor and other members of the
Internal Audit function without the CFO and
the external auditors being present.

The Audit Committee also met the external
auditors without the presence of the CFO
and Chief Internal Auditor.

TERMS OF REFERENCE OF THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company regularly monitors the
implementation of financial controls,
whereas the Audit Committee reviews the
effectiveness of the internal control
framework.

The Audit Committee terms of reference
state the following:
The Internal Audit department carried
out its audits in accordance with the
approved audit plan which is presented
annually to the Audit Committee
The Committee has ensured that the

Internal Audit department is well
equipped with personnel possessing
financial and business acumen
according to the criteria defined in the
Companies Act, 2017.

The Chief Internal Auditor has the
required qualifications as prescribed
under the Regulations.

The Internal Audit department has
direct access to the Chairperson of the
Audit Committee. The performance
appraisal of the Chief Internal Auditor is
also carried out directly by the Audit
Committee.

Internal Audit function plays a vital role
in improving the overall control
environment. It also acts as an advisor to
other functions for streamlining
processes and ensuring implementation
of the Company’s policies

Audit Committee has provided a proper
platform to the management to report
to the Audit Committee in confidence,
concerns, if any, about actual or
potential improprieties in financial and
other matters. Adequate remedial and
mitigating measures are applied, where
necessary.

The Audit Committee also undertook an
overall review of the business risks to
ensure that the existing control
environment identified any emerging
risks post COVID-19. The summary of the
risks together with the mitigation plan
was presented to the Board for its
review.

HUMAN RESOURCE AND
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established this
Committee in accordance with the
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requirements of the Code of Corporate
Governance. This Committee assists the
Board in fulfilling its responsibilities in the
review, formulation, recommendation and
implementation of Human Resource
policies and the appointment and
remuneration of the CEO, CFO, Company
Secretary, and Chief Internal Auditor. It also
considers and approves recommendations
on matters related to succession planning of
CEO, CFO, Company Secretary and Chief
Internal Auditor and ensuring proper
compensation to the Company’'s employees.
This Committee meets at least once in a
year.

Terms of Reference of the Human
Resource and Remuhneration
Committee

It should comprise of at least three (3)
members, consisting of mainly
Non-Executive Directors, including one
Independent Director. The CEO can be a
member, but not the Chairperson of this
committee. The CEO cannot participate
in the proceedings of the committee on
matters related directly to his
performance and compensation.
Recommend HR Management Policies
to the Board

Recommend to the Board for
consideration and approval of a policy
framework for determination of
remuneration of Directors (both
executive and non-executive directors
and members of senior management).
Recommend selection, evaluation,
development, compensation (including
retirement benefits) and succession
planning of the CEO, CFO, Company
Secretary and Chief Internal Auditor.
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Consider and approve
recommendations of CEO on matters
related to key management positions
who report directly to CEO.

To approve and ensure dissemination of
Company’s Code of Conduct across the
company.

Undertake annually a formal process of
evaluation of performance of the Board
as a whole and its committees.

INTEGRATION AND SUPPLY
NETWORK OPTIMIZATION
COMMITTEE

The Integration and Supply Network
Optimization Committee comprises of four
(4) members of the Board. The purpose of
this committee is to explore significant
Supply Network opportunities and facilitate
a smooth Integration process.

DECISIONS TAKEN BY THE
BOARD

The Board has defined its policy of
materiality and such matters are
accordingly placed before the Board for its
decision(s). The Board convenes at least 4-5
times in a year on a quarterly basis at a
minimum where material decisions are
taken. In between, the Board is readily
available for consultation and decisions for
urgent matters circulated to them.

EVALUATION OF THE CHIEF
EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The performance of the Chief Executive
Officer is evaluated through the Company’s
performance evaluation system based upon
the Company’s objectives and aligned with
the model of Innovation, Performance and




Trust. This is further deliberated upon by the
Board.

ANNUAL EVALUATION OF THE
BOARD AND ITS COMMITTEES

The Board of Directors act as governing
trustees of the Company on behalf of the
shareholders while carrying out the
Company’'s mission and goals.

As per the requirements of Code of
Corporate Governance and S.R.O. 301
(1)/2020 dated 9 April 2020, the Chairperson
of the Board of Directors opted for an
in-house assessment with the support of
the Secretary of the Human Resources and
Remuneration Committee and the
Company Secretary to evaluate the
performance of the Board in 2020.
Qualitative and quantitative criteria were
used in the evaluation form, as follows:

Appropriate composition of the Board
and its quality of skills.

Compliance with all applicable law,
particularly the Companies Act, 2017,
Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019, and the
Memorandum and Articles of
Association of the Company.

Execution in supporting and upholding
the Company’s Values and Expectations
Adherence to the Company’s Code of
Conduct.

Advising the management on
developing appropriate strategies and
ensuring that operations are in line with
the same.

The effectiveness and efficiency of the
operation of the Board and its
committees.

Oversight of the Financial Reporting

Process, including Internal Controls.
Contributions to ensure robust and
effective risk management and
monitoring the Company’s performance
against its objectives.

Adequate and constructive execution of
the Chairperson’s role.

Furthermore, the criteria for this year were
presented in simple language for the ease
of the members of the Board. The
evaluation was conducted on a digital
platform for the convenience of all Board
members, as well as for the ease of
computation of the outcomes, setting of
future KPIs and metrics. Upon the
completion of evaluation, the future
strategies and action plans were formulated
to address the identified challenges / issues
were shared with the Chairperson and the
members of the Board and with the SECP.

BOARD INDUCTION AND
ORIENTATION

The Company Secretary assists the
Chairperson in designing and facilitating
individual induction programmes for new
Directors. They are designed with the
purpose of orienting and familiarizing new
Directors with our industry, organisation,
governance and our long-term Innovation,
Performance, Trust to the power of Culture
priorities.

All new Directors receive a general
induction, which includes their duties and
responsibilities as a Director of a listed
company, the Company’s Corporate
Governance structure and undertake
training on the Company’s Code of Conduct.

The induction programme for Executive
Directors normally includes an explanation
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of the role of an Executive Director, if
appropriate, building relationships with the
Chairperson and the Board and arranging to
fill any capability gaps the new Director may
have.

The induction programme for
Non-Executive Directors normally includes
explanations of the Company’s business and
financial structure, the commercial and
regulatory environment in which we
operate, our competitors and an investor’s
perspective.

To ensure that our Directors develop and
maintain a greater insight and
understanding of the business and key
stakeholders, they:

- Are familiarised with the industry and
the Company.

- Review the Board’s operations, legal
requirements and duties, committee
structures and relevant charters.

- Peruse and understand the Board
Chairperson and Committee chairperson
roles along with the CEO'’s roles and
responsibilities.

- Are aware of Director duties.

- Review company policies, including any
policy that impact the Directors such as
conflict of interest, whistle blowing,
health and safety, environment,
corporate social responsibility.

- Review any recent investor presentations
such as the corporate briefing sessions.

- Visit our business operations and
different manufacturing sites, which are
also a feature of the Directors’ induction
programme.

- Receive documents explaining the
following:

The Company’s business and financial
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structure, the commercial and
regulatory environment in which we
operate, our competitors and an
investor's perspective.

Role and responsibility of Directors
under the Companies Act, 2017, Code of
Corporate Governance and any other
applicable law.

Investor relations and stakeholder
reports to maintain awareness of
investor and stakeholder views and
competitors’ performance and strategy.
Directors and Officers (D&O) insurance
and indemnification documents.
Yearly meeting schedules of the
Company.

Latest financial statements.

Important minutes of past meetings.
Major litigations status.

INCLUSION & DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company takes a progressive approach
to Inclusion and Diversity because it wants
everyone to bring their authentic selves to
work and bring their unique perspectives to
its business. Together, these perspectives
and experiences make its business stronger,
enhances its ability to innovate and respond
to the diverse needs of patients and
consumers in Pakistan.

The Company believes that everyone has a
part to play in creating a fair and inclusive
work environment. As a modern employer,
the Company has 12% of female
representation within its workforce.

The Company has a zero-tolerance
approach to harassment, bullying,
unwelcome / unreasonable / offensive
behavior, and/ or discrimination of any kind.
This policy is driven by home by several face
to face awareness sessions further to the




GCSK Women's Leadership Initiative,
Protection against Harassment of Women at
the Workplace Act, 2010 as well as the GSK
Code of Conduct. The Company cascades
several e-learning modules to its employees
as well on, covering its Code of Conduct and
on Inclusion and Diversity.

INCLUSION AND DIVERSITY ON
THE BOARD AND C-SUITE
EXECUTIVES

Conscious of its commitments as a modern
employer, the Company pledges to do more
in its approach to inclusion and diversity.
The Board of Directors is certainly no
exception to the same and takes a
progressive approach to inclusion and
diversity. The Company commits to provide
equal opportunities across all boundaries of
race, ethnicity, gender, religion and so on.
Appointments on the Board are strictly
based upon value addition and exclusive of
any discriminatory elements. This is
evidenced by female non-executive
directors on the Board before female
representation became mandatory by law, a
female chairperson, and several c-suite
female executives, including but not limited
to the Company Secretary and the Chief
Internal Auditor.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

The Board is kept up to date on legal,
regulatory and governance matters through
regular papers and briefings from the
Company Secretary and presentations by
internal and external advisers.

Directors are responsible for upholding the
corporate governance and giving the
Company a strategic direction. To optimize

the effectiveness of the Board, it is pertinent
for new members to learn the dynamics
and operations of the Company. The
Company conducts various training
programmes to make sure the Board is
aligned with the Company’s missions and
governance.

Four out of seven (4/7) Directors on the
Board have successfully completed the
Directors’ Training Programme certification
from SECP approved institutions, as
specified below.

Mr. Sohail Ahmed Matin
Mr. M.Z. Moin Mohajir
Ms. Ayesha Aziz

Ms. Erum Shakir Rahim

All the other directors possess sufficient
skills and experience as prescribed by the
Code of Corporate Governance. One more
Director will be completing this Programme
in 2021.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
POLICY

The Company has a formal policy and
transparent procedures for remuneration of
its Directors in accordance with the
Companies Act, 2017 and Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019. In view of its objectives,
the Company operates an independent and
transparent method to fix Directors’
remuneration. The purpose of this
procedure is to determine the remuneration
of directors (both executive and
non-executive directors including
independent directors). HRRC recommends
remuneration package of the Directors to
the Board. The Company ensures that the
remuneration of the Board of Directors
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remain market-based in accordance with
their experience.

The key element of determining the
remuneration is by market benchmarking
against other key players of Fast-Moving
Consumer Healthcare Companies and other
similar types of business and remuneration
is not at a level that could be perceived to
compromise the independence of the
Directors. For the purposes of clarity, no
Director is involved in deciding their own
remuneration.

Every Director, including all Non-Executive
and Independent Directors, is entitled to
remuneration for their services, as decided
by the Board for attending Board and
Committee meetings. They are also entitled
to reimbursement of expenses including
boarding / lodging and travel expenses
incurred in connection to attendance of the
Board and its Committees meeting and
Annual / Extra Ordinary General Meetings.

The remuneration paid to Executive and
Non-Executive Directors during the year is
specified in Note No. 35 of the annexed
financial statements.

SECURITY CLEARANCE OF
FOREIGN DIRECTORS

All foreign Directors on our Board are
required to submit relevant documents,
including declarations and/or undertaking
and any document required to facilitate
security clearance undertaken by the
Ministry of Interior. Relevant documents of
all foreign directors are submitted to SECP
within the prescribed time and further
documents to assist the clearance from
Ministry of Interior are made available as
and when needed. All appointments of
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foreign Directors are subject to provision of
security clearance certificate from the
Ministry.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR IN THE
COMPANY SERVING AS
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Sohail Ahmed Matin, the Chief Executive
Officer / Executive Director of the Company
is serving as a Non-Executive Director in
Pakistan LNG Limited.

POLICY OF RELATED PARTIES

The Company has a formal policy of Related
Parties’ Transactions which has been
approved by the Board of Directors. The
Policy covers the procedures with regard to
Related Party Transactions for reviewing,
approving and ratifying related party
transactions and in providing disclosures as
required under section 208 of Companies
Act, 2017 and other applicable law. The
Policy also covers all Related Party
transactions between the Company and any
of its related parties.

The Company maintains a party wise record
of transactions and ensures that it includes
the minimum information as prescribed by
the law. All transactions with related parties
arising in the normal course of business are
carried out on an unbiased, arm’s length
basis at normal commercial terms and
conditions. If the Company enters into a
transaction or agreement which is not at
arm’s length, the Company must ensure
that the terms are in the best interest of the
Company. Further, where majority of
Directors of the Company are interested, the
transaction is referred to shareholders in a
general meeting for ratification and
approval.




Records of all related party transactions are
placed before the Board Audit Committee
on a quarterly basis. Upon

recommendation of the Audit committee

all related party transactions are placed
before the Board of Directors for their review
and approval.

Names of all such related parties along with
whom the Company had entered into
transactions during the year, along with the
nature of their relationship and percentage
holdings have been appropriately disclosed
in Note No. 36.2 and detailed disclosure
regarding related party transactions has
been presented in Note No. 36 of the
Financial Statements.

PRESENCE OF THE
CHAIRPERSON OF THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE AT THE AGM

In view of Company’s priority of being
transparent with all of its shareholders and
stakeholders, members of the Board, senior
management and the Chairperson of the
Audit Committee (Syed Anwar Mahmood)
were present at the Annual General Meeting
of the Company held on 20 May 2020 in
order to address all concerns and queries
raised by the shareholders.

ISSUES RAISED AT THE LAST AGM

No significant issues were raised at the
previous AGM held on 20 May 2020 other
than general queries on the accounts and
business by shareholders and investors.

BUSINESS CONTINUITY
PLANNING

The Company routinely monitors the
compliance of external manufacturing

suppliers to identify and manage risks in our
supply base in case of any natural calamity
or force majeure. Where practical, the
Company minimizes its dependence on
single sources of supply for critical items.
Where alternative sourcing arrangements
are not possible, our inventory strategy aims
to protect the supply chain from
unanticipated disruption.

The Company has always used effective
crisis management and business continuity
planning to provide for the health and
safety of our people and to minimise impact
to us, by maintaining functional operations
following a natural or man-made disaster, or
a public health emergency. A corporate
policy requires each business and functional
area head to ensure effective crisis
management and business continuity plans
are in place that include authorised
response and recovery strategies, key areas
of responsibility and clear communication
routes, before any business disruption
occurs. Corporate Security supports the
business by coordinating crisis
management and business continuity
training; facilitating simulation exercises;
assessing our preparedness and recovery
capability; and providing assurance
oversight of our central repository of plans
supporting our critical business processes.

The above enabled the Company to swiftly
deploy technology to ensure business
continuity and to offset the disruptions
caused by the COVID-19 induced lockdown.
The Company acted with speed and agility
to ensure the continual movement of our
supply chain, balanced with the safety of its
workforce. Keeping in view the proactive
approach of the Company regarding its
advanced business continuity planning, its
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responsibility as a diligent corporate citizen,
and our consumer focused approached, the
Company ensured access of its OTC
medicines and products to Consumers
through the year. Progress was, and
continues to be, monitored weekly in a
Crisis Management Team meeting
consisting of the Company’s leadership
team and regular updates were provided to
the Board of Directors.

DISASTER RECOVERY
MECHANISM

The Company has an effective disaster
recover mechanism in place to ensure a
smooth and expeditious transition to a
backup mode of operations to minimize any
disruption to the business.

IT Continuity Plan Key objectives:

Identify IT Recovery Team - roles and
responsibilities and to identify escalation
and disaster recovery steps

To have continuity procedures in place
for core IT Infrastructure including WAN
and LAN.

To highlight application recovery
procedures - for all major applications
critical to business continuity.

To list backup retention policies and
information on critical storage locations
for backup tapes and servers.

To list ITCP review results and details of
testing schedules.

IT Continuity Team - Key responsibilities
include:

To restore, maintain and secure the
critical business systems in GSK Pakistan.
Establish and maintain regular progress
reporting for duration of incident.

GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Ltd.

Take ownership of IT continuity plan
(maintain, review and update)

Prepare ITCP outcome report.

Key responsibility is to ensure that the IT
Escalation Process is adhered to.

The IT continuity coordinator of the
Company will inform the respective BU
Head of IT who will then escalate the
incident to the Area IT Head or his
designated area IT staff. The Area IT
Head and the International IT point of
contact will decide on whether to record
the incident in the IT Escalation
database.

In the event of a major disaster, business
operations can be continued from the GSK
Site located in F-268. All the centrally hosted
applications and systems will be accessible
from mentioned location.

ENCOURAGING MINORITY
SHAREHOLDERS TO ATTEND
GENERAL MEETINGS

The Company encourages its shareholders
to attend its general meetings in the
following manner:

a) Notices of general meetings:

i. Arecirculated in accordance with legally
stipulated lead times.

ii. Are published in leading Urdu and
English newspapers with nationwide
circulation.

iii. Are timely updated on its website.

iv. Contain a link /QR Code to a dedicated
online portal / Vevox to facilitate those
shareholders attending the AGM to
submit their queries to the Company in
advance.




b) The Annual Report:

i. contains the notice of the AGM and is
sent in a uniform manner to all
shareholders, including minority
shareholders, regardless of shareholding.

ii. contains a proxy form to ensure
shareholder representation and
participation in the AGM in case a
shareholder is unable to attend the
meeting.

c) The AGM:

i. is held virtually via WebEx and the link to
the AGM is shared in advance via the
AGM Notice with the public at large
without any registration requirements to
facilitate shareholders and investors.

ii. is held at a convenient location for the
ease of shareholders.

ii. has a dedicated timeslot for shareholder
gueries whether submitted digitally or
asked in person.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING PROGRAM
ATTENDED BY FEMALE
EXECUTIVES AND HEAD(S) OF
DEPARTMENT AND/OR
EXEMPTIONS

The Company has successfully complied
with the encouraged requirement of the
Code of Corporate Governance regarding
training of at least one head of department
and one female executive every year. Ms.
Mashal Mohammad, Legal Director and
Company Secretary completed the
Directors’ Training Programme this year.

COMMUNICATION OF FINANCIAL
RESULTS

Periodic financial statements of the
Company were circulated to Directors duly

endorsed by the CEO and the CFO.
Half-yearly and annual financial statements
were initialed by the external auditors their
presentation to the Board Audit Committee
and the Board of Directors for approval.
Furthermore, quarterly unaudited financial
statements of the Company along with
Director’'s Review, were approved, published
and circulated to shareholders on a timely
basis. Half-yearly financial statements were
subjected to a limited scope review by the
statutory auditors. This annual financial
statement has been audited by the external
auditors and approved by the Board and
will be presented to the shareholders at the
AGM for approval.

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Management Committee comprises of
eight (8) senior members of the leadership
team who are external facing and who meet
and discuss significant business plans,
issues, progress and updates of their
respective functions. Significant matters to
be put forth in the Board as per the Code of
Corporate Governance are also discussed for
onward approval. The Management
Committee meets once very quarter.

The role of the Management Committee is
to review, implement and monitor:

Business risks.

Business strategy.

Business plans.

Issues pertaining to respective functions.
Improvements to policies / procedures.
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Composition of the
Management Committee

Qe Q¢

~
Mr. Sohail Mr. Dilawar Syed Abrar
Ahmed Matin Meghani Ali

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Sales Director

Pakistan E2E SC
and Jamshoro
Site Lead

Head of Regulatory Legal Director

i ~
Mr. Ahmed Mr. Faisal Mr. Khurram
Baloch Rafiq H. Khan
Marketing Director Head of Expert Head of Commercial
Excellence
. | = |
Qe 1 o8 | Q®
Mr. Moein i Mr. Mazhar i Ms. Mashal
Ahmed Khan | Shams | Mohammad
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Calendar of Major Financial Events 2020

Q4-2019 /15" BoD Meeting Q1-2020 /16" BoD Meeting “

] | ]

}
| 12 March 2020 ! i 20 May 2020 | 20 May 2020
} }

| |
| |
| |
S M g R R U - e - - - —————————— - == == - -
Q2-2020 /17t BoD Meeting Q3-2020 /18" BoD Meeting Corporate Briefing Session
|
|
26 August 2020 | | 27 October 2020 i: 7 December 2020 i
-4 I.. __________________________ - I._ __________________________ -
Q4-2020 /19" BoD Meeting
|
l 5 March 2021 i
|

Marketing Calendar 2020

Major Marketing Events 2020

aunch of New Calcium Awareness Launch of first-ever Calcium
Campaign "1000WaysICan" /Awareness Web Series "Ayesha"

Launch of Parodontax Herbal

Launch of Sensodyne Multi Dentist Launch of “Panadol Covid
Rapid Action campaign awareness campaign” Digital

Launch of Sensodyne Love Food Roll-out of World Osteoporosis
Again Digital campaign Day Digital Campaign

Financial Calendar 2021

Q1-2021 / 20t BoD Meeting “ Q2-2021/ 21+t BoD Meeting

) | ]
l 21 April 2021 ¥ 21 April 2021 l 24 August 2021 i
} | }

|
|
|
Q3-2021 / 22" BoD Meeting Corporate Briefing Session Q4-2021 / 23! BoD Meeting
h | |
i 26 October 2021 | | 16 November 2021 (tentative) | Mid-March 2022 E
| |

* Approved by the Board of Directors in its meeting held on 5 March 2021.
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Directors’ Report

The Directors of the Company are pleased to present your
Company’s audited financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2020, in accordance with Section 223
of the Companies Act, 2017.

This Directors’ Report has been prepared in accordance
with section 227 of the Companies Act, 2017 and Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations

2019.

REVIEW OF OPERATING RESULTS

The Company posted net turnover of

Rs. 19,846 million during the year, with a
phenomenal growth of 22% over last year.
While business dynamics were challenging
consequent to COVID-19 related restrictions
and constant high inflationary pressures, the
Company served its consumers with utmost
zeal and met their needs across each category
we operate in. The core business withessed a
healthy 28% growth in Over the Counter (OTC)
portfolio; with category growths of 31% in the
Pain, 30% in the Nutrition and Digestive
Health and 15% in the Oral Healthcare
respectively.

Company’s export revenue declined from last
year by 25%, amounting to Rs. 249 million.
With an upsurge in the local demand putting
strain over our Supply Chain, the Company
first serve our local customers.
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The Company recorded a gross profit of

Rs. 5,328 million as compared to Rs. 4,986 last
year. The devaluation of the Pakistani Rupee
since the beginning of the year against
currencies in which our key imports are made
and increase in the prices of raw materials led
to a decline in gross margins. This decline in
gross margins was partially offset through the
mandated price increase implemented during
the fourth quarter of 2020.

Remote working and restricted travel during
most of 2020 assisted in keeping
administrative expenses to a nominal 2%
increase. Selling, marketing and distribution
expenses were recorded at Rs. 3,098 million,
which included advertising and sales
promotional expenses of Rs. 2,051 million (10%
of sales), aimed at consistently supporting our
key brands. Financial charges during the year
decreased by 70% mainly due to improved
cash position during the year, reduced interest




rates, and relatively less fluctuations in
exchange rate compared to previous year.

The profit before tax for the year was recorded
at Rs. 1,774 million which is 4% higher than
last year. Liquidity position of the Company
has improved considerably as cash and cash
equivalents were recorded at Rs. 1,898 million
as compared to a net bank overdraft situation
as at last year end.

For the year 2020, the Company delivered a
net profit after tax of Rs. 1,262 million, which is
recorded at 6.4% of net sales.

DIVIDEND FOR THE YEAR

The Board of Directors in its meeting held on
March 5, 2021 proposed a cash dividend of Rs. 5
per share amounting to Rs. 585 million (subject to
the approval of the members in the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company).

HOLDING COMPANY

As at 31 December 2020, GlaxoSmithKline
Consumer Healthcare B.V. held 100,423,259
shares of Rs. 10 each, representing 85.79% of
the total shares of the Company.

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

The Company's shares are traded on the
Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The
shareholding information as of 31 December
2020 and other related information is set out
on pages 193 to 195.

CHAIRPERSON'’S REVIEW

The Chairperson’s message to the
shareholders on pages 86 to 87 contains
information regarding:

- Board evaluation for the year 2020;

- Board committees which include the Audit
Committee, Human Resource And
Remuneration Committee, Integration and
Supply Network Optimization Committee;
and

- The culture of the Company.

The Directors of the Company endorse the
contents of the same.

BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share after taxation was Rs.
10.78 as compared to Rs 10.74 earnings per
share in 2019.

CORPORATE SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

Beyond our focus on our customers and
employees, the Company aspires to pave the
way for sustainable living and positively
impact the society. As a healthcare company,
the core necessity for outreach programmes
institutionalizing on the importance on
health, hygiene, nutrition and other
community development programmes in
Pakistan. The Company believes that respect
for the environment and its people is an
integral part of conducting a business, which
in turn boosts success and consumer
engagement of the brand.

For this purpose, the Company has taken CSR
initiatives which are elaborated upon in detail
on page no. 37 - 38. The Company remains
firm to add great value to the community in
future as well.
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HUMAN RESOURCE
DEVELOPMENT AND
SUCCESSION PLANNING

The Company takes great pride in not only
recognizing its people as its key asset, but also
ensures that this belief is translated into a
working environment that provides growth
opportunities, respect, empowerment and
inspiration. As a company that is geared
towards helping people ‘Do More, Feel Better,
Live Longer’, we ensure that our employees are
not only committed to this vision with the
utmost passion and sincerity, but are also well
equipped to perform and deliver at their best
potential.

With this objective in mind, the Human
Resource Development team engages and
develops policies including competitive
remuneration, performance management and
succession planning. This includes exposure to
a wide range of development opportunities as
well as international assignments. This is
supported through implementation of an
internal talent development system that helps
provide leaders with the data needed for
strategic alignment and decision making.
Along with this, it carries out continuous
feedback, evaluation and communication
programme, through which we ensure that
our employees are well aligned with, and
really believe in, our core values of Being
Consumer Focused, Respecting People,
Acting with Integrity and Operating with
Transparency.

In addition to this, we prioritize the highest
standards of individual accountability, and are
constantly trying to evolve in terms of our
ability to recognize and reward the deserving
talent that demonstrate the right mix of
commitment and dedication.
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Due to the Company’s operations as a
Fast-Moving Consumer Healthcare business
and its commitment to provide consumers
better access to world class brands with
health-related benefits which promote good
quality of life, we understand the criticality of
having the right team in place. Our
recruitment drives and processes are
effectively designed to acquire high potential
talent, by targeting top tier universities and
acquiring the right mix of talent that can
evaluate future challenges and has the
potential to face and resolve them adequately.

With our truly high-performance culture, we
are constantly evaluating and building a team
that truly considers itself the foundation of the
Company and draws its strength from and
contributes towards the evolution of a
Company that aims to be a high-performance
Consumer Healthcare Goods Company in the
industry.

CONSUMER / PATIENT SAFETY

In view of its Value of Consumer Focus, the
Company has extensive controls in place
designed to detect, evaluate and
communicate benefits, risks and any potential
safety concerns about its products. The
Company is committed to meeting the
highest standards through stringent quality
control and quality assurance processes. Our
products are manufactured according to
Good Manufacturing Practice (cGMP)
regulations, and our internal quality
Mmanagement system.

Along with internal controls, the Company has
strict supplier requirements, designed to
ensure consistent high quality and safety in
the production of its products. This




end-to-end approach safeguards patient and
consumer safety and helps the Company to
deliver the highest quality products, improve

its safety performance and reduce waste.

ENVIRONMENT, HEALTH AND
SAFETY (EHS)

The Company is committed to comply with all
relevant environmental, occupational health
and safety standards through an established
framework of compliance. EHS is an integral
part of the Company’s business and the
company promotes a safe, injury free and
energy resilient workplace. The Company
implements its global standards and
procedures to deliver best quality products
while ensuring the safety of its employees. In
order to ascertain this objective, there is a
strong emphasis on continuous improvement
and effective oversight. The initiatives have
been instrumental in achieving following
Health & Safety objectives of the Company:

Improved management of workplace risks
and development of a safe working
environment.

Prioritizing safety over every operational
task.

Ensuring that Environment, Health &
Safety are the essential elements of The
Company’s business strategy.

Promotion of a conducive
work-environment to help our employees
Do More, Feel Better and Live Longer.

The Company is committed to retain Health &
Safety as its foremost priority through
assurance and oversight. It will keep its focus
on the challenges to occupational health &
safety, in the manufacturing and sales of its
products and develop robust mechanism to
mitigate all emerging risks.

OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND
HEALTH

With numerous sustainable processes in
place, the Company continues a legacy in its
ability to fulfill its purpose without
compromising the occupational safety of its
dedicated employees. To successfully achieve
this objective, the following robust
programmes and measures have either been
implemented, or are currently in progress,
that aims to strengthen the EHS
(Environment, Health, and Safety) system to
improve the quality of our working
environment:

Ensuring our employees are aware of
operational risks and are fully able to
effectively manage these risks when
needed.

Enhancing employee capability that
trains them to consider occupational
safety as the number one priority under
all circumstances.

Implementing standards of conservation
that help minimize our water and energy
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consumption, thus promoting a greener
environment the Company aims to further
enhance its EHS policies across its supply
chain as well as production plants.

The Company strives for the highest quality in
Environmental Health and Safety by
monitoring performance and setting new
challenges and targets.

ETHICS, COMPLIANCE AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

At the Company, we face several legal,
regulatory, operational and strategic risks that
come with being in a highly regulated
industry. We manage these risks using our
own Internal Control Framework (ICF)
methodology that is based on recognised
international risk management standards.

The Ethics and Compliance function is
responsible for supporting the development
and implementation of practices that
facilitate compliance with laws and global
company policies. The Compliance function
partners with the business to support the
Winning Formula by effectively managing risk,
simplifying controls, promoting company
Values and securing our Mission to make a
positive impact on patients and consumers.

The various risks in the Company are managed
through multiple compliance programmes
which are explained below:

Risk Management and Compliance Board
Meetings:

Our Risk Management and Compliance Board
(RMCB) is responsible to effectively identify,
assess, mitigate, monitor and report major
risks that the business may encounter. All
critical business risk units are governed by the
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RMCB, which promotes the ‘tone from the
top’, establishes the culture regarding risk and
oversees internal controls. The RMCB has
formed a structure whereby designated
Functional Heads are responsible for
identifying and treating significant risks and
each Functional Head then performs a review
of their respective key risks, takes corrective
and presentative approach to ensure
appropriate controls are in place and
wherever gaps are identified, clear plans are
assigned to address them. The Compliance
Function facilitates in instilling a risk- based
approach to establishing a robust internal
controls system. This eventually makes risk
Management an integral part of decision
making and business operations. The RMCB is
held at least once in a quarter or more
frequently when required.

Anti-Bribery and Anti-Corruption (ABAC):
The Company's ABAC programme is
developed to help ensure that neither the
Company nor its third parties bribe (or are
bribed by) either government or regulatory
bodies, or private sector entities. It reinforces
its zero tolerance towards all forms of
corruption and its commitment to
Maintaining accurate records of all business
dealings. It is also to ensure that no undue
influence is exerted in engagements, that no
personal benefit is gained and that no
corruption occurs. Corruption can include
fraud, money laundering and tax evasion. Put
simply, it helps to ensure ethical business,
aligned to the Company's values.

Privacy is concerned with how we manage
the personal information we hold on
individuals - such as patients, healthcare
professionals, consumers, employees and
complementary workers. Personal information
is any information that can identify, or
reasonably be used to identify someone.




The Company has strict policies in place when
it comes to Data Privacy and there is zero
tolerance for data breaches.

Third Party Oversight (TPO) Programme:

To achieve our purpose, we often work in
partnership with third parties, who bring skill,
expertise or scale to help us deliver our
mission. We strive to conduct business only
with those suppliers, distributors, equity stake
holdings and other business partners / third
parties who share our commitment to high
ethical standards and operate in a responsible
way. The Company has implemented a
comprehensive Third Party Oversight
programme to strengthen its management of
risk. The aim is to ensure that all third parties
are risk assessed against the enterprise-wide
risks and accordingly, fully compliant
contracts are entered into.

Values and Expectations:

We deliver clear and integrated compliance
solutions that embed the Company's values
(Consumer focused, Respect, Integrity,
Transparency) and expectations (Courage,
Accountability, Development, Teamwork) in
order to build trust. We also conducted a GSK
Values Assurance review this year and made
significant progress: our employee
engagement score is among the highest
across the GSK universe.

Written Standards:

The Company's has various policies and other
written standards which help us manage the
risks associated with operating in a heavily
regulated industry.

Speak Up Programme:
The Company ensures that it conducts
business with complete honesty, fairness,

openness and integrity. The Company
encourages its employees and business
partners to report any genuine concerns about
misconduct or unlawful conduct and has
strict policies in place against any kind of
retaliation against the person raising the
concern.

Governance of Legal Agreements (GOLA):
The Company’'s GOLA SOP ensures that its
risks and liabilities are mitigated appropriately
and to ensure that the Company’s
expectations and requirements from third
parties (including their performance and
compliance with GSK policies) are clearly
stated by documenting the rights and
responsibilities of GSK and each third party in
a legally enforceable agreement.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company ensures compliance with Code
of Corporate Governance for all the related
party transactions.

The details of the transactions are provided in
note no. 36 of the annexed financial
statements.

AUDITORS

The present auditors, Yousuf Adil, Chartered
Accountants had indicated their consent to
continue as auditors. The Board of Directors
endorses the recommendation of the Audit
Committee for their continuation as the
Auditors of the Company for the financial year
ending 31 December 2021, at a mutually agreed
fee.
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VALUE OF INVESTMENTS OF
PROVIDENT, GRATUITY AND
PENSION FUNDS

The Company maintains retirement benefit
plans for its employees. The value of
investments of provident and gratuity funds
as at 31 December 2020 was as follows:

Provident fund Rs. 250 Million
GCratuity fund Rs. 114 Million

69%

31%

B Provident Fund M Gratuity Fund

CONTRIBUTION TO NATIONAL
EXCHEQUER AND ECONOMY

The Company made a total contribution of Rs
1,651 million to the National Exchequer by way
of custom duties, income tax, sales tax and
employees’ tax during the year 2020.

Our contribution through sales tax amounted
to Rs. 499 million, income tax Rs. 637 million,
customs duty Rs. 429 Million and Rs. 86
Million through employee related taxes.
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26%

30%

39%

B Sales Tax B Income Tax

B Custom Duty B Employee Related Taxes

ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL
FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Board of Directors have set up effective
internal financial controls across all functions.
The independent Internal Audit function of
your Company regularly monitors the
implementation of financial controls, whereas
the Audit Committee reviews the effectiveness
of the internal control framework.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE LISTED
COMPANIES (CODE OF
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE)
REGULATIONS, 2019

As required by the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) 2019 Regulations, the
Directors are pleased to state as follows:

The financial statements prepared by the
Mmanagement of the Company present
fairly its state of affairs, the result of its
operations, cash flows and changes in
equity.




Proper books of account of the Company
have been maintained.

Appropriate accounting policies have

been consistently applied in preparation of

financial statements and accounting
estimates are based on reasonable and
prudent view.

International Financial Reporting
Standards, as applicable in Pakistan,
have been followed in preparation of
financial statements and any departure
therefrom has been adequately
disclosed and explained.

The Company maintains a sound
internal control system which gives
reasonable assurance against any
Mmaterial misstatement or loss. The
internal control system is regularly
reviewed. This has been formalized by
the Board’'s Audit Committee and is
updated as and when needed.

There are no significant doubts upon the
Company'’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

There has been no material departure
from the best practices of corporate
governance as detailed in the listing
regulations.

Outstanding taxes, statutory charges
and duties, if any, have been duly

disclosed in the financial statements.

Outstanding debts, if any, have been

duly disclosed in the financial statements.

Significant deviations, from last year in
the operating results of the Company
have been highlighted and explained.

The key operating and financial data is set
out on pages 111 to T16.

Refer page no. 135 to 138 for Statement of
Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code
Of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019
and the Independent Auditor's Review Report
on the Statement of Compliance contained in
the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

The Company made a capital investment
amounting to Rs. 764 million during the year
in order to enhance productivity, equip itself
with the latest health and safety kits and for
the improvement of plant efficiency.

FUTURE OUTLOOK AND
CHALLENGES

During this year, the country faced
unprecedented challenges due to COVID-19
which severely impacted economic activities.
Although there were several lockdowns by the
Government, healthcare businesses could
continue their manufacturing and
commercial operations in the interest of the
health and well-being of the country’s
population.

Clinics and hospitals’ OPDs were closed
during most of the year 2020, which resulted
in lesser detailing and reduced face to face
interaction with the Health Care Professionals
(HCPs). Logistical congestion during the year
was also a major area of concern amidst all
the challenging circumstances. However,
being a consumer and customer focused
Company, we navigated to a hybrid detailing
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model, i.e. using digital platforms and
remained agile to ensure continued supply of
products in the markets at all time. To meet
the current challenges, your Company
remains proactively engaged in supply chain
optimization initiatives as well as
strengthening our pipeline of high-quality
innovations.

The country also experienced some
devaluation during the year where the
Pakistani Rupee reached an all-time low,
leading to a rise in price of raw materials.
These economic indicators continue to pose
challenges in maintaining our production
costs. At the same time, the Company remains
conscious of the consumers’ purchasing
power while taking pricing decisions to
maintain a viable business model.

In this fast-changing environment with the
potential for growth, it is imperative that the
Company continues to invest in world class
innovations alongside the established brands.
With enhanced sales structure focused on
commercial excellence, we plan to drive
exponential growth in key trade channels and
display agility to address the challenging
business environment. Our business is built on
science and this research heritage contributes
to the development of our consumer
healthcare products, giving us a unique
advantage over our competition.

The Company believes in maintaining its focus
on Innovation, Performance and Trust. Strong
emphasis is always placed on increased
productivity, reduced cost and improved
technology to be able to sustain long-term
profitability and fulfil the dynamic needs of
our consumers and healthcare professionals.
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Although there is a reduction in the cases of
COVID-19 and lock down situation in the
country has eased out, the second wave of
COVID-19 is still continuously evolving and
cannot be ignored. OPDs in hospitals and
clinics have resumed which will hopefully
allow us to interact and conduct face to face
discussions with more HCPs than before. We
are hopeful that the Government would take
more policy relief measures during these
difficult times to support the industries and
help the economy in its growth revival.

We intend to serve our consumers, patients
and customers even better than before and
continue to monitor the situation closely,
including market demand, supply continuity
and wellbeing of employees.

CEOQ's Presentation Video on Company's
Performance, Strategy and Outlook can be
seen at the Company's website:
www.pk-consumerhealthcare.gsk.com

REMUNERATION POLICY

The Non-Executive Independent Board of
Directors of the Company are entitled to a
remuneration approved by the HR and
Remuneration Committee, based on market
benchmark of the Consumer Healthcare
Industry and other similar style of business.

The salient features of the policy are:

The Company will not pay any
remuneration to its non-executive
directors (including independent
directors) except as meeting fee for
attending the Board and its Committee
meetings.




The remuneration of a director for
attending meetings of the Board of
Directors or its Committees shall from
time to time be determined and approved
by the Board of Directors

A director shall be provided or reimbursed
all travelling, boarding, lodging and other
expenses incurred by him for attending
meetings of the Board, its Committees
and/or General Meetings of the Company

Please refer to page no. 69 to 70 for a detailed
note on remuneration of the Chief Executive
Officer, Directors and Executives for the year
2020.

BOARD EVALUATION

The Board has carried out an evaluation of
performance of its individual members, the

Board and the performance of its Committees.

Please refer to page no. 67 for the salient
features of the evaluation.

COMPOSITION AND COMMITTEES
OF THE BOARD

The total number of directors are seven (7) as
per the following:

a) Male: 5
b) Female: 2
Composition of the Board is as follows:

a) Independent Directors: 3
b) Executive Directors: 2
c) Non-Executive Directors: 2

The Board’s composition and the details of its
committees are provided on Page 90 to 91.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Mr. Sohail Ahmed Matin will be retiring as the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company
effective 31 March 2021. The Board of Directors
acknowledged his services and extended their
best wishes to him. The Board of Directors
have also decided to appoint

Mr. Farhan Muhammad Haroon as the Chief
Executive Officer and Executive Director of the
Company effective 1 April 2021.

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

The Board of Directors would like to take this
opportunity to extend appreciation to
employees, suppliers and partners for their
continued support and dedication in the
achievement of the Company’s results. The
professionalism and self-motivation displayed
by employees is truly inspirational in these
difficult times.

By order of the Board Sincerely,

7&.\_—\5\,\; \

SOHAIL AHMED MATIN
Chief Executive Officer

5t March, 2021

Dilawar Meghani
Director
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Chairperson’s Review

| am delighted to share the phenomenal performance of your
Company for the year ending 31 December 2020. The year was
full of unprecedented challenges that the world in general and
Pakistan in particular faced, in terms of COVID-19,
macro-economic inflationary pressures, supply volatility and
emerging consumer preferences.

The Company remained focused and overcame all challenges to
ensure we are able to serve our customers in need of quality
healthcare products. Our renowned and industry leading
Wellness, Pain Relief and Oral Healthcare brands continued to
gain traction with consumers who are now more aware and
conscious about preventive healthcare products and intend to
take control of their health.

Our focus will continue to be on delivering results on our
promise of unwavering commitment to our shareholders. We
will reciprocate the trust placed in us by creating long-term
value for your investment.

BOARD EVALUATION

As part of our internal review process on the
performance of Board, we evaluated the Board
in terms of their business knowledge, industry
knowledge, attendance and contribution in
meetings, compliance with rules and oversight
of business as an independent body. The key
learnings and insights were adequately
deliberated upon and necessary steps were
taken to build the collective knowledge of the
Board. From the results, we can conclude that
our Directors are well versed with their main
responsibilities to facilitate the Company's
strategic direction and management.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

With strong oversight on the reporting, the
Board has a responsibility to provide clear
visibility of financial reports to stakeholders in
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accordance with the Financial Reporting
framework applicable in Pakistan.

After a smooth deployment of SAP in our
manufacturing division last year, the Company
was also able to deploy SAP in the Commercial
division in 2020 to have standard set of
processes throughout the organization. This was
a fast-paced remote deployment amid
challenging pandemic times which the GSK CH
team managed successfully through their hard
work and dedication without any business
interruption.

BOARD COMMITTEES

GSK CH has three committees, as stated below,
to assist the Board for its optimal performance:

- Audit Committee;
- Human Resource and Remuneration
Committee; and




- Integration and Supply Network Optimization
Committee

The terms of reference and details about the
members of Committees are provided on page
90 and 91 respectively.

CULTURE OF THE COMPANY

Our Culture and Values drive everything we do.
The Company expects its employees to put GSK
Values at the heart of every decision and act
with Transparency and Integrity. We believe in
offering individual development opportunities
and recognising employees for how they work as
well as what they achieve. We want everyone at
the Company to feel proud of the work they do,
with a strong belief in our Purpose to deliver
better everyday health with humanity.

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

| would like to thank Mr. Sohail Ahmed Matin for
being a great contributor to the business and an
inspirational leader. Sohail will be retiring as the
Chief Executive Officer and as the member of
the Board of Directors of the Company effective
31 March 2021. | wish Sohail great happiness and
health in the new phase of his life. His
contributions will certainly be missed.

| would like to welcome Mr. Farhan Muhammad
Haroon as the Chief Executive Officer and a
member of the Board of Directors effective from
1 April 2021. Farhan has a deep understanding of
the market, a unique enterprise-wide

perspective and track record of business delivery.

Under the leadership of Farhan, | am confident
that the Company will continue to deliver strong
performance.

| extend my gratitude to the Board of Directors
for their valuable support and commitment. |
would also like to sincerely thank our employees
for all their efforts, as well as our customers and
suppliers for placing their trust in us. It is with

your support that we are growing swiftly and
expanding rapidly year by year.

M.Z. Moin Mohajir
Chairperson

Farwell message from
Mr. Sohail Ahmed Matin

Dear Shareholders,

| would like to take this opportunity to
express my sincere thanks to you, our valued
shareholders, for your ongoing support,
trust, and confidence you have given to me
over the years at our company. |l am
convinced that my designated successor
Mr. Farhan Muhammad Haroon, with his
comprehensive expertise and deep
knowledge of the economy and industry,
will prove to be an excellent Chief Executive
Officer and a member of the Board of
Directors of the Company. | would like to
extend my best wishes and continued
success to the Company, its shareholders,
employees, and business partners and last
but certainly not least, my colleagues on the
Board of Directors and the entire
management team.

Yours sincerely,

S

Sohail Ahmed Matin
Chief Executive Officer
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Finance

Finance is one of the functions which forms the common core of GSK’s operating model and drives
one GSK enterprise approach. We provide partnership, strategic counsel and support services the
business units need to operate efficiently and effectively. We add focus and combine it with positive
attitude to engage all business finance areas effectively by optimizing company’s financial
performance. This includes business planning and budgeting, strategic allocation of resources across
our valuable brands, managing liquidity through better cashflow planning while keeping an eye on

risk and opportunities.

We deploy numbers to drive our strategic success, so we can help do more, feel better, live longer.

We ensure to broadly group the capabilities required for our roles into four main categories:

Capabilities

After the deployment of SAP in the
manufacturing division, we deployed SAP in the
Commercial division in October 2020.

The Company was able to achieve this milestone
through remote deployment amid COVID-19
with extraordinary Project Management skills,
strong oversight and efficient decision making. It
helped the company to have a standard set of
systems and processes which allowed everyone
to access and store data in a consistent way.
Moreover, it has a centralised data base that
supports all core processes of the business and
unifies organisation's reporting system. It also
helped in providing real-time analysis with
complete access to standardized and reliable
data regardless of where you are.

Consensus forecasting is also automized
resulting in greater accuracy when it comes to
business planning and budgeting. Further it
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Compliance .
Capabilities Leadership |

Commercial .
Capabilities Technical |

Capabilities

gives flexibility and enhanced capability to
maneuver different scenarios with much closer
view on the details including sensitivity analysis.

Liquidity position of the company has improved
owing to better CAPEX planning and healthy
operating cash inflows. This has eliminated the
Company’s dependency on running finance
facility by the year ended December 31, 2020.
The team was also able to achieve a healthy cash
to conversion ratio during the year along with a
Zero-Based Budgeting exercise to improve the
management of overheads.

Moreover, finance is constantly focused on
improving and strengthening internal controls
to mitigate risk and protect value for
shareholders. By simplifying our operating
model and pertaining to product innovations,
our finance business partners, through various
contributions, seek to add value to the business.




Marketing

In-line with GSK values, the Marketing Team
has continued to innovate its science driven
brands to evolve with the consumer journey.

The Marketing function has been effectively
engaged in designing communication of its
brands to connect with consumers at all
levels; enabling them to relate with and
better understand our brands. In 2020,
several campaigns were executed
successfully across the Consumer
Healthcare portfolio across each of our
notable categories. These strategies
reinforced our existing interactions across
channels with retailers, healthcare
professionals and shoppers.

We saw several leading campaigns,
including #1000WayslCan: newest rendition
of the Calcium Awareness series, that urged
to empower women to do more regardless
of age by prioritizing their bone health with
regular Calcium intake. While for
Sensodyne, lockdowns across the nation,
courtesy COVID -19, meant a Dentist Advice

Campaign to educate Consumers sitting at
home on how to take care of their Oral
Health.

These campaigns were a strong testament
to GSK's commitment to help people do
more, feel better and live longer.

Innovation has not only been limited to
communication. In the essence of
recoghnizing consumer preferences, for more
natural offerings, we also brought in a global
scientific product innovation in the name of
Parodontax Herbal Fresh.

Combining innovation in product and
communication, we aim to strategically
invest in our power brands and develop
class-leading communication through use
of the ever-expanding digital platforms and
tools. This pro-active approach will not only
enable us to grow but also support in
reaching our consumers in a unique and
personalized manner.
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Commercial
Excellence

)
Commercial Excellence (ComEXx), the
execution powerhouse for the organization
focuses on winning at key touch points by
developing and deploying best in class
trade strategies which translates into
business growth.

2020 presented a different set of challenges
never faced before which required unique
solutions to minimize the impact on
business. With curfews, lockdowns and
limited timings of trade due to the COVID-19
pandemic, it was essential for ComEx to act
fast & innovatively to ensure distribution and
facilitate our trade customers. Focus was
shifted to online ordering by expanding our
sales force automation & launching a
mobile application for the retailers.

GSK CH took the initiative to be the first
company to think of our Customer &
Shoppers’ safety by deploying counter face
shields in pharmacies which not only
served the purpose of protection but also
gave the much-needed brand reminders for
consumers on Panadol & CaC-1000 PLUS.
Furthermore, looking into the growth trends
of Project Spearhead, existing footprint was
increased to enhance visibility on core
brands.

A change in shopper behavior was observed
as they spent less time in stores, it was
important to immediately set up out of
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category units & displays in Modern Trade
outlets to create immediacy of purchase for
shopper. For consumers transitioning to
online shopping, it was imperative to
accelerate our presence on Ecommerce
which was done by developing a trademark
JBP with the biggest online retailer in
Pakistan and participating with maximum
presence in major shopping events.
Moreover, new Activation ideas were also
generated to reach out to consumers by
sampling through first time strategic
partnerships with ice cream parlors & juice
bars to maintain our presence in the
market.

Despite limitation of conducting face to face
training sessions, journey for development
was carried forward by conducting
Capability building session virtually for both
expert & trade teams. Increased focus on
Net Revenue Management to identify
opportunity areas to bring in efficiencies on
trade investment & promotions.

With GSK CHC aspiring to significant growth
in 2021, ComEx is looking forward to go an
Extra Mile and help achieve this ambition
by focusing on priorities such as Driving
Visibility & Accessibility, Winning in Channel
& Customers, Accelerating Revenue Growth
and Upscaling Digital Analytics.




Sales

Despite a risky and threatful external
environment due to COVID-19 the sales
team at GSK CH has done a tremendous job
in turning this adversity and threat into an
opportunity which resulted in an underlying
growth of 22.8% excluding toll
manufacturing and exports. Our team of
highly professional distributors and their
sales teams have worked relentlessly in this
tough environment to bring around these
results, whilst adhering to our core values of
patient focus, respect, integrity and
transparency.

Performance was broad based across
portfolios with both OTC and FMCG growing
double digit with CaC-1000 PLUS taking
center stage with a growth of 43.1% while
Panadol and Sensodyne following closely at
36.8% and 17.3% respectively. Key
highlights of the year are coverage
expansion in oral care and increase in drop
size for CaC-1000 PLUS.

Pharmacy is still by far the highest
contributing channel. High consumer traffic
was witnhessed in this channel during
lockdown period since other channels were
majorly impacted amid COVOD-19. General
trade and modern trade also grew last year
however they did see some constrained
operating environment.

Throughout the year the focus was on
ensuring that market service levels are
improved to keep up with the
unprecedented demand on our key brands
due to COVID-19.

With a strong customer focus and respect
for people we ensure to become the first
choice for shoppers and customers alike.
Our sales team brings life to GSK values and
our aim is to become the largest Consumer
Healthcare Company.
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The fundamental driver behind the success of any healthcare brand is endorsement by healthcare
providers (HCPs), also known as Experts. The Expert Department is a strategic function that strives to
provide HCPs with information backed by scientific evidence, enabling them to make informed
decisions while prescribing brands to patients. Our vision to become a trusted partner of HCPs is the
foundation of our modus operandi; demonstrate transparency in our work, operate with integrity and
always put the interests of patients first.

In 2020, our team underwent a transformational journey, with the onset of COVID-19 giving rise to
new ways of working. The country-wide lockdown meant that all face-to-face interactions with HCPs
had to be halted indefinitely. However, continuing to engage HCPs in scientific dialogue while
safeguarding the wellbeing of our field force was our utmost priority. Hence, we successfully navigated
to a hybrid detailing model, using digital channels to engage HCPs where face-to-face interaction was
not possible. During this time, our team also conducted numerous digital presentations and hosted
informative webinars in partnership with institutes. These initiatives provided a competitive edge to
our team and were instrumental in driving growth in brand recommendations.

Our success in Expert is built upon four key areas within the department:

Strategy Capability Building

Having clear objectives and a robust promotional Equipping our team with the right knowledge &
plan are the elements behind our winning skillsets to deliver our brand messages effectively
strategy. With an evolving competitive landscape, is what helps to distinguish our field force from
we choose to be innovative in the ways we the rest. Our team is engaged in various

engage with HCPs while delivering impactful capability building sessions all year round.
results.

Execution Analytics & Governance

Navigating through a large team with multiple With the newly launched Power BI tool, our team
brands requires flawless execution to ensure we is able to track performance in real time,

are able to provide our customers with a allowing us to turn data into opportunities. We
memorable engagement experience. Our team also demonstrate utmost vigilance during all our
successfully engaged HCPs in various activities activities and regularly conduct internal

for all key brands throughout 2020. monitoring to ensure compliance with SOPs.

Despite all the odds in 2020, the prescriptions of our key brands continued to grow with double digits,
which is a testament to the trust HCPs and patients have in GSK CH. Power brands Panadol &
CaC-1000 Plus also maintained their leadership position in the respective categories. The Expert team
is committed to demonstrating the same passion & energy in the years to come and in doing so take
our brands to even greater heights!
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Information
Technology -

Your

Transformation

Partner!

Tech today has become far more than a means of increasing efficiency and reducing costs. Year 2020
was a different and difficult year for all of us where Tech not only supported in adoption of new ways
of working but also delivered projects focusing on enhanced communications, business growth and

agility.

Few major achievements of last year includes,

Project Mobility
(Transforming the Way We
Communicate)

With COVID-19, seamless
communication has became
one of most valued demand
and plays a pivotal role in
organization’s success. In order
to simplify communication
process in GSK CH, Tech
crafted mobility policy to
standardized the use of
mobile devices(including
laptops, iPADs and iOS
Devices).

This project offers an
immediate ROI by reducing
total cost of mobile expenses
through one standard
network. Cost savings are even
further realized through
introducing buy back options
and standard mobile
allowances for employees.

GSK CH now enjoys smooth
connectivity for voice and data
communications for all
employees across office and
factory locations.

ONE ERP
(Transformation for Growth)

With high speed growth of
Consumer Healthcare
business, new upcoming
challenges and requirement
need to be catered
pro-actively in order to match
up the growth speed with
parallel technology
implementation and utilizing
existing capabilities of system
in more effective manner.
One-ERP was a strategic
project and Pakistan was
included in Cluster 1 along
with Nigeria and Kenya.

One-ERP project was a huge
success for the market, and it
was delivered with no business
disruptions where Tech
partnered with finance in
avoiding risks related to super
users, budget and supported
business with technical
decisions at local level. It also
included an integrated online
solution for customer’s order
processing.

With One-ERP Go-Live in
October, GSK CH is now part of
Global ERP system.

Digital, Data & Analytics

(DDA)
(Transformation towards
Agility)

“Just get it done” no longer
works in today’'s complex world -
a world with limited resources
where business operatives
depend upon technological
solutions that achieve
productivity, efficiency, and
customer satisfaction goals. In
Year 2020, Tech worked closely
with Leadership team to
improve digital data and
analytics under umbrella of
Play-Above.

DDA champions were
highlighted from each function
across the organization who
drove DDA gap analysis exercise
for GSK CH Pakistan. As-Is and
To-Be was created along with
roadmap for next six quarters
(Q3,2020-Q4, 2021).

We are now progressing on
agreed and aligned roadmap
with proper governance model
emplaced to track the
advancement.
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And IT Transformation
Continues....

With better business partnering and agile
mindset, we are embarking on a new
journey to create world first consumer
healthcare company where Tech will be
connecting business to technology and
bridging the gap to redefine the future.

IT Governance Policy

Tech Control Framework (TCF) forms the
basis of internal control defining essential
governance, compliance and risk
management activities that support the day
to day Tech activities.

The Enterprise Tech Control Framework
aims to achieve the following objectives:

Risk Management

Risk Management and Compliance Boards
(RMCBs) are a GSK CH required governing
body. RMCBs are responsible to ensure
appropriate risk management and
implementation of internal controls for risks
within their scope of accountability.

Controls

A Governance framework of control
documents communicates the ideas, rules
and expectations of organizations; to reduce
risk, ensure accountability, and enforce
compliance in business operations.

Monitoring

Local managers are accountable for the
controls in their area. Management
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Monitoring is an ongoing process of
assessing that the controls are in place and
in use. This process may involve in-process
checks and approvals, or a workplace
inspection, or may be a checklist, or may be
a review of data or dashboards, or
observation of tasks, or self-assessment.




As we reflect on 2020, we strongly realize
how much we have to be grateful for and
how important it is to be resilient enough to
adapt to such unprecedented situations like
COVID-19. It was indeed a challenging year
but the way GSK CH responded is absolutely
incredible.

COVID-19 was not the only challenge that
business had to face during 2020, there
were several other changes that GSK team
had to manage while working remotely, like
ERP change from Legacy JDE system to
SAP, Regulatory transfers of our main
portfolio of Panadol, route to market
changes, divestments, discontinuations and
many more. Despite all these challenges, we
made sure that there is a seamless supply of
goods for our patient and consumers which

resulted in a growth of 22.5% over last year.
Key brands like Panadol and CaC-1000
PLUS really improved the lives of millions of
patients and consumer and retained their
position as the leading brand in the relevant
category.

This incredible performance was an
outcome of agility, resilience & untiring
efforts from our manufacturing units, E2E
Supply Chain & Commercial teams who
worked 24/7 to ensure the availability of our
products and meet the unprecedented
market demand. With a strong 2020
landing, the team is fully energized &
focused to take on the challenges of next
year and deliver even stronger business
performance.

Annual Report 2020 E




Quality
Management 1
syStem R

The customer focus journey takes years, not
months, but there are rewards all along the
way, and for those organizations that have
gone the distance, the payoff is remarkable.
Our ambition is to be an end-to-end
consumer and customer obsessed supply
chain. This will get us beyond ‘good enough’
to outperforming and become the best
Quality and Supply Chain on the planet.
Where 2020 brought the great suffering
pandemic, Commercial Quality put its focus
on the customer satisfaction. The aim was to
reduce customer complaints and bring
them the trust on our supply chain. Many
courageous decisions were made, all the
norms were challenged to eliminate the
operational and process blindness to
minimize the risk of unsatisfaction. Great
collaborative root cause analysis was
conducted where required. This ultimately
brought up the reduction in number of
complaints especially repetitive complaints.
Our key objective and focus in 2020 was to
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maintain End to End quality standard at all
levels of supply chain during product
delivery. Through our complaint
Mmanagement system, we are listening to
our customers and understand their needs
which helps us improve the product quality
day by day. We have also reduced number of
product complaints by maintaining our
standards and improving our investigation
of complaints as End to End and
implementing the best practices to
maintain the product quality.

Going forward for 2021 commercial quality
is aiming to embed quality culture in day to
day tasks and to provide support in
accelerated decision making for the
betterment and growth of business.




Regulatory
Affairs

COVID-19 impacted many streams globally and in Regulatory Affairs we feared same for the
functional deliverables and planned and executed all activities accordingly. 2020 was
contrary though and negated our expectations, we started carefully and ended at good note

by delivering all business expectations.

Last year Regulatory Affairs had defended
many fronts like products’ formulation,
pricing and successfully secured all CPI
based price increases. This has not only
endorsed our subject command but will
also established in-market prices of all our
products. Considering the legacy of more
than 40 years of some of these products,
price verification throughout registration life
cycle by Drug Regulatory Authority of
Pakistan is big news.

We have some key innovations for which
approvals by all regulators were secured
while to strengthen GSK CH business

exploring couple of additional new
opportunities for this year. Being strategic
business partner Regulatory Affairs are also
exploring other avenues for future that will
give confidence to our internal and external
stakeholders on future business of GSK CH
Pakistan.
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Internal Audit & Compliance

The Internal Audit function ensures Statutory
compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance
(Covered in detail on Pg. 187 to 188 “Audit Committee
Report”) and serves an active role in assisting the
management to achieve operational efficiencies while
managing the risk appetite of the business. The
internal audit operations at GSK CH are outsourced to
Earnst & Young Ford Rhodes (Pakistan), that adds an
additional layer of transparency and provides
independent assurance to the members of Audit
Committee.

Having a third party team of Internal Auditors ensures
that the Company's operations are reviewed
objectively and without any bias. It also helps the
business in developing better Risk Management,
Regulatory Compliance and Governance Control
processes over time.

Internal Audit Function, in GSK CH, is led by Mariam
Magsood who was on-boarded virtually in mid of
2020. Mariam Magsood is an ACCA member and has
worked across various industries, over the span of 10
years.
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The Compliance function is responsible to ensure that
local and global policies are effectively complied with
and offers to provide compliant solutions to the
business, when they are not available in existing
policies.

The Compliance function ensures that each function
(commercial and supporting) is managing its Internal
Control Framework and identifies and minimizes risks
proactively. Compliance function is responsible to
organise Risk Management Compliance Board
(RMCB) meetings where risks are discussed and
mitigating controls and actions are put in place every
quarter. This meeting is attended religiously by all
functional heads.

Other than above, Compliance function conducts
independent reviews for high risk areas and presents
findings in the RMCB, provides trainings to head office
and sales staff on Anti-bribery anti-corruption, Third
Party Oversight, Code of Promotion etc. Compliance
ensures that other functions are also conducting
Management Monitoring activities to ensure issues
are proactively identified and fixed, rather than being
spotted out by auditors.

Speak up or whistle blowing issues, relating to
compliance matters are also overseen by Compliance
Function and the Head of Compliance is responsible
for providing relevant and up to date information to
above country independent investigators when
required. Where policy permits, some investigations
are conducted by the Head of Compliance.

The Ethics and Compliance Function, in GSK CH,
comprises of two individuals and is led by Muzna
Hussain. Muzna is an FCCA by qualification and has
been with GSK since June 2016.




Legal and Corporate

Secretarial

GSK CH Legal and Corporate Secretarial
department works across the business to help it
deliver better everyday health with humanity. The
Legal department is aligned with the purpose of
becoming a Trusted Business Partner and
delivering high quality legal and corporate
secretarial services by proactively engaging with
our business partners to achieve the goals with
GSK values at the heart of every decision.

In keeping up with a fast-paced business, the Legal
and Corporate Secretarial department aims to have
a solution-orientated and pragmatic approach that
is focused on enabling the business to achieve its
objectives, while protecting and managing legal
and corporate compliance risks to provide timely
and quality legal support on all critical areas
including:

Day to day advisory;

Managing of ongoing and future
litigation risk;

Business development transactions;
Contract drafting and negotiations;
Digital processes;

Legal project management;
E-commerce; and

Trainings.

Corporate Secretarial (CS) plays a central role in
ensuring adherence to the Company’s governance
structure in conformity with best practices. CS
supports the Board of Directors, by liaising with
directors, organizing board meetings and general
meetings, facilitating departments in preparing
relevant documents for board presentations,
recording minutes of the meetings and proactively

coordinates in the implementation of board
decisions, among other tasks.

Despite the challenges of the previous year, the
Legal and Corporate Secretarial department
quickly adapted its ways of working to the ‘new
normal’ in 2020 to play its part in Running Legal
Like a Business, for the Business in the following
manner:

a) Continued focus on digital initiatives with the
adaption of digital signatures, use of digital
document repositories, utilizing of a digital Board
Evaluation Form, and creation of a One Stop Legal
page containing updated templates, information,
documents for the ease internal stakeholders /
clients.

b) Smartrisk-taking to keep up with changing
trends and the pace of the business and keeping in
view Trusted Business Partner principles and the
GSK Red-Grey-Green legal risk assessment, so as to
strike a balance between Business First and GSK
Values.

c) Stakeholder knowledge management with
comprehensive trainings on competition law,
anti-harassment, corporate compliance, GSK
document repository, digital brand protection
guidelines etc.

d) Simpilification of all contracts, key documents,
and key processes.

Company Secretary

Ms. Mashal Mohammad joined GSK CH in 2015. She is the
Company Secretary and Legal Director of GSK CH. She
graduated from Bristol University and City University of
London with honours and is a Barrister-at-Law from Lincoln’s
Inn, United Kingdom. She is also enrolled as an advocate of
the Lahore High Court and has over 13 years of diversified
work experience as an inhouse and practicing lawyer.
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Human
Resources

GSK CH's Priorities & Performance System: Innovation, Performance & Trust in 2020. In
2020, we continued to build on our GSK CH Priorities of Innovation, Performance and Trust
as part of our commitment to deliver game changing business results. The focus on ensuring
that our strategy was advocated through strong leadership, employee development and our
continued focus on being a Modern Employer.

Our GSK CH expectations of Courage, Accountability, Development and Teamwork
re-iterated through our global #Let's Talk initiatives & HR Connect Sessions 2020 across the
Company, coupled with our values of Consumer First, Transparency, Respect and Integrity, all
form the basis of ‘Our DNA', guiding us to be one of the world's most innovative, best
performing and trusted healthcare companies.

INNOVATION PERFORMANCE TRUST

Coupled with our renewed This continued to be a focal This will continue to be a key
focus on “Business First” and  point for HR, as we focus on HR pillar, intertwined across
‘Making it Easier’ for our enhancing the quality and all our performance
customers, we aim to focus depth of talent, especially for measures, by supporting our
on optimizing the business’ critical roles along with leadership team in
organization design, improving the diversity of our inculcating a culture of clear
leveraging the GSK CH talent and also, we are communication, trust and
performance system to drive  focusing on young talent, openness. We are committed
and develop high quality through which we aim to to building trust through our
leaders and drive the achieve industry-leading approach to engagement
development of critical growth by investing and excellent customer
business capabilities and effectively in our business, experience.

skills needed to develop and developing our people and

launch a pipeline of new delivering flawlessly when it

products that meet the needs comes to business results.
of patients and consumers.
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DIVERSITY & INCLUSION

The year 2020, marked further success of
GSK's Women Leadership Initiative (WLI).
Reawakening self-awareness and Mental
Health awareness sessions were conducted
virtually.

WLI team led the international women'’s day
celebrations and ‘Let's Connect and Learn’
sessions, under the Modern Employer Agenda,
providing an opportunity for all employees to
connect with leaders. These sessions had
employee development follow through with a
discussion around what WLI means for all
employees and not only women.

The WLI team received very positive feedback
from the business after all these sessions as
employees were encouraged to learn
inclusivity and better ways of communication
by overcoming subconscious biases and
gender stereotypes.

EMPLOYEE HEALTH & WELL
BEING

At GSK CH, our purpose to help people do
more, feel better, live longer starts with our
employees. Throughout the COVID-19 period
in 2020 - HR has taken multiple initiatives
such as keeping the workforce updated on
Corona Virus updates and how they can adopt
to virtual ways of working and leverage our
digital capabilities to work, engage with
internal and external stakeholders.

Employees heath & well-being has been the
top priority throughout, time to time updates
on COVID-19 precautions and SOPs were
shared to keep the employees updated.
Communications to engage employees on the

new ways of work includes Return to work
guidelines whereby the process for joining
back office post COVID-19 recovery was shared
and guidelines for reporting COVID-19
confirmed or suspected cases were shared.
The new way of claiming medical expenses
was introduced in 2020 to facilitate the timely
processing of claims.

For the first time, Ergonomics Allowance is
introduced in 2020 to support the well-being
of our employees during work from home for
the office-based desk jobs as they require long
hours while sittings which require
comfortable posture in line with Ergonomics
guidelines

HR has promoted the use of Employee
Assistance Program and other Health and
Wellbeing programmes and services, webinars
and GIFs on mindfulness, EAP, sleep well were
also organized.

Moreover, 2020 we continue the focus on
mental health awareness sessions, part of
World Mental Health Day celebrations and
under the umbrella of GSK's Modern
Employer agenda. These were virtual sessions
whereby renowned psychiatrists addressed
and discussed any mental health concerns
that employees are facing at work / work from
home. These sessions were appreciated by
employees at all levels of the organization
since they provided an opportunity to learn
more about mental health and get
themselves assessed on psychological distress
levels.

At GSK CH, we are also focused on promoting
the Environment Health and Safety agenda -

by including the reporting of unsafe incidents
in employee objectives.
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GSK CH is committed to providing such
programs and facilities that enable employees
to understand and protect their health and
make healthy choices - to feel healthier,
happier and energized

DEVELOPING OUR PEOPLE

Our continued commitment to developing
and sustaining our talent pipeline by
attracting and retaining the most talented
people is a key success factor in GSK CH's
outstanding results. In 2020, as part of our
ongoing focus to make our systems and
processes easier for our customers, we have
improved recruitment process which can be
directly facilitated through Workday. This uses
innovative technology to deliver a
cutting-edge global recruitment platform that
not only makes it quicker and easier for
recruiters and managers to fill vacancies with
the best candidates but also makes it easier
and a better experience, for external
candidates and employees to find new job
opportunities.

At GSK CH, we view career development as a
bridge towards building experience and
capability instead of focusing solely on
promotion and advancement. We inspire our
managers to promote a culture where straight
talk is encouraged, and diverse opinions are
accepted. This is further strengthened through
regular check-in sessions between employee
and his / her line manager and the use of
One80 survey tool in which employees give
anonymous feedback to their managers to
help them adopt a better leadership style,
suited for their team’s needs.

FUTURE LEADERS PROGRAM

GSK CH's Future Leaders Program is a key
driver of our talent pipeline, designed to
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attract, develop and nurture talented
individuals. We aim to enable them to
become our Future Leaders through our
robust program which provides ambitious
individuals with various opportunities to lead
GSK CH into the future whilst developing their
own long-term careers. We place immense
focus on our values when we hire future
leaders; these are consumer first, integrity,
respect for people and transparency.

Our motto is to select the best talent and
facilitate them to hone their technical skills
and business acumen and enable them to not
only deliver but drive successful business
results so that they are prepared to perform at
home and abroad.

MAKING IT EASIER INITIATIVES

In 2020, we promoted the use of HR chatbot
by the name of ‘HR KAY’ available for 24/7
support to answer common HR queries in less
than 20 seconds. This not only promoted
self-service but also encouraged employees to
acquaint themselves with a variety of GSK
CH's online facilities, especially in the times of
remote working. HR Kay can help employees
with a wide range of different HR queries.
Total of 757 users have interacted with HR Kay
in 2020, and 6,586 queries were addressed.

In 2020, HR announced the launch of a new
chatbot as well namely Workday Assistant.
Workday Assistant is Workday's purpose-built
chatbot that can help you complete common
Workday tasks like entering your absence or
feedback, finding information and helping
you navigate around Workday. The Assistant
makes interacting with Workday as simple as
starting a conversation and works from the
Workday mobile App as well as on desktop. It
can display data quickly and easily and even
transact some items like ‘request time off.
The Workday Assistant will keep improving
over time, try asking it ‘How can you help me?




Further, adopting to the new ways of working,
Virtual Onboarding program was launched in
2020, whereby the new joiners gets the invite
for a virtual session in the first week of their
hiring and they are briefed about the various
GSK platforms and any questions they have
are addressed by concerned member of HR
team.

Another achievement marked in 2020 is the
successful transformation to e-letters.
Employee letters such as for job changes no
more require the manual process of sending
the hard copies to the employees, these are
now provided in PDFs and are available in
their workday as well.

RESILIENCE AND WORK-LIFE
BALANCE

We at GSK CH, under the Modern Employer
Agenda 2020, were focused to give our
employees a congenial environment that
Mmakes them feel at ease - where their work is
more valued than adherence to a strict work
schedule.

Furthermore, we designed certain
communications to further facilitate this
agenda and connected it to our value of
Respect for People e.g. the launch of respect
for work hours where employees were
encouraged to be respectful of each other’s
personal and family time, make efforts to
disconnect ourselves from work after business
hours and reflect twice before contacting a
fellow colleague via call / text / emails unless
there's an emergency to connect immediately.

Our priority will always be the safety and
wellbeing of our people. For now, how we
work follow local COVID-19 guidelines, but as
restrictions lift it's really important we hold

onto the great ways of working we've seen in
2020, balanced with the power of face to face
collaboration, to drive performance and
delivery of our IPTC priorities. Employees want
more flexibility and options about how and
where they work. Hence as part of global
initiative, GSK CH has rolled out the
Performance with Choice guidelines. We're
starting with people who do office-based
work - and piloting other role types to see
where we can introduce more flexibility
without impacting performance.

ENGAGEMENT

At GSK CH, we see employee engagement, to
strengthen ties at all levels of the organization
and build on our culture. In 2020, HR and the
Leadership Team led the engagement
agenda. These included driving the Diversity &
Inclusion agenda (WLI Pakistan Chapter),
supporting Employee Health & Well-being
initiatives, virtual engagement activities,
effectively promoting modern employer
agenda; Be you, feel good and keep growing
themes country wide by conducting
engagement activities as well as
seminars/webinars, organized different
engagement activities during COVID-19 period
to motivate our employees.

In line with our value of Transparency, the
Global GSK Engagement Survey was rolled
out company wide, allowing employees’ a
chance to put forward their views on a variety
of areas, including our GSK CH Values and
Priorities. The 2020 GSK Engagement Survey
results reported Employee Engagement levels
of 96%, proves that GSK CH'’s strength lies in
our ability to create a lasting bond with our
employees and goes to show that everyone
has a role to play in contributing to our
culture.
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More accountability for
decision making which
means we will feel more
ownership to grow the
business.




FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE AT A GLANCE

Rupees in millions 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
Net Sales 19,846 16,317 14,875 8,298 5,376
Gross Profit 5,328 4,986 4,404 3,101 1,509
Operating Profit 1,832 1,892 1,688 1179 858
Profit Before Tax 1,774 1,700 1,463 1,171 856
Taxation (512) (442) (388) (464) (311)
Profit after taxation 1,262 1,258 1,075 707 545
Earnings per share Rs. 10.78 10.74 9.18 7.39 7.60
Dividend per share Rs.* 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 -
Return on equity 24.44% 2794%  28.02% 30.77% 3416%
Market capitalisation (Rs. In millions) 31,035 30,015 31,182 30,986 -
Paid-up Capital (in million) 1,170.5 1170.5 1170.5 956 956

* Represents final cash dividend @ Rs 5 per share proposed by the Board of Directors subsequent to the year end.
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KEY OPERATING FINANCIAL DATA & RATIOS

Balance Sheet (rs. in million) 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
Assets employed
Fixed Assets - property, plant and equipment 3,493 2,915 2,650 125 132
Intangible asset - Goodwill 128 128 128 - -
Deferred taxation - - - 8 17
Long-term loans and deposits 17 17 n 1 1
Net current assets 1,765 1,626 1174 2,183 1,456
5,404 4,685 3,962 2,316 1,605

Less: Non-Current Liabilities

Staff retirement benefits - Staff gratuity 88 54 38 20 9
Deferred taxation 152 131 90 - -
240 185 127 20 9
Net assets employed 5,164 4,501 3,835 2,297 1,597
Financed by
Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital 117 1171 1171 956 956
Reserves 3,993 3,330 2,664 1,341 641
Shareholders' Equity 5,164 4,501 3,835 2,297 1,597

Statement of financial position - Assets employed

2016
2017
2018
2019
2020

1,000 2,000 3,000 4,000 5,000 6,000

Years

Rs.inmillions

mFixed Assets - property, plant and equipment = Intangible asset- Goodwill m Deferred taxation

= Long-term loans and deposits = Netcurrent assets
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Statement of financial position - Non Current Liabilities &

Shareholder’s equity

2016

(7]
-
g o
(]
>
) 1,000 2,000 3,000 4,000 5,000
Rs. in millions
B staff retirement benefits - B Deferred M issued, subscribedand M Reserves
Staff gratuity taxation paid-up capital
Turnover and profit (rs.in million) 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
Net sales 19,846 16,317 14,875 8,298 5,376
Gross profit 5,328 4,986 4,404 3,101 1,509
Operating profit 1,832 1,892 1,688 1179 858
Profit before taxation 1,774 1,700 1,463 1171 856
Taxation (512) (442) (388) (464) (317)
Profit after taxation 1,262 1,258 1,075 707 545
EBTIDA 2,101 2,146 1,899 1,202 866
Cash Dividend including bonus shares 585,273 585,273 585,273 477,751 -
Sales per employee 40,338 32,830 30,990 131,717 97,742
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Statement of Profit or Loss - Net sales & other income (Rs. in millions)

20,000

18,000

16,000

14,000

12,000

10,000

8,000

6,000
4,000

2,000

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

m Net sales m Otherincome

Statment of Profit or Loss - Expenses (Rs. in million)

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

-1000 1000 3000 5000 7000 9000 11000 13000 15000

= Taxation = Financial charges u Other operating expenses

= Administrative expenses  m Selling, marketing and distribution expenses mCost of sales
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Cashflows 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
Rupees in Millions

Operating Activities Rs. in million 2,914 1,334 (426) 559 950
Investing Activities Rs. in million (814) (487) (223) 72 (1,049)
Financing Activities Rs. in million (82) (83) (78) - -
Changes in Cash equivalents Rs. in million 2,018 764 (727) 631 (29)
Cash & equivalents - Year end Rs. in million 1,898 (120) (884) 1,302 670
Financial Highlights 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
Cash dividend per share Rupees 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 -
Bonus shares % - e - - -
Market value per share - year end Rupees 265.13 25642 26639 32429 -
Market value per share - high Rupees 330.03 353.53 529.00 365.00 -
Market value per share - low Rupees 199.56 16410 258.00 100.63 -
Market capitalization Rs.in million 31,035 30,015 31182 30,986 -
Profitability Ratios 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
Profit before tax ratio % 8.94 10.42 9.83 1411 15.92
Gross Yield on Earning Assets % 1.51 298 8.76 814 353
Gross Spread ratio Times 0.24 0.25 0.24 0.23 0.36
Cost / Income ratio Times 0.66 0.63 0.63 0.64 0.58
Return on Equity % 24.44 27.94 28.02 30.77 3416
Return on Capital employed % 23.35 26.83 27.12 30.51 33.98
Gross Profit ratio % 2685 30.56 29.61 37.37 28.07
Net Profit to Sales % 6.36 7.71 7.22 852 10.15
EBITDA Margin to Sales % 10.59 13.15 12.77 14.48 16.14
Operating leverage ratio - 0.0 12 0.5 0.7 -
Investment / Market Ratios 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
Earnings per share (EPS) Rupees 10.78 10.74 918 740 7.60
Price Earnings ratio Times 24.59 23.88 29.02 43.88 2.20
Price to Book ratio Times 6.16 6.86 8.41 13.49 -
Dividend Yield ratio % 1.89 1.95 1.88 1.54 -
Dividend Payout ratio Times 0.46 0.47 0.54 0.68 -
Dividend Cover ratio Times 2.16 215 1.84 148 -
Break-up Value per share Rupees 43.02 37.36 3276 24.04 16.71

N4
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Statement of cash flows (Rs. in millions)
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Capital Structure Ratios 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
Earning assets to total assets ratio % 19.43 716 8.89 32.9 234
Net assets per share Times 4412 3845 3276 24.0 16.7
Debt to Equity ratio Times - 0.03 0.24 - -
Financial leverage ratio Times = 0.18 0.43 - -
Weighted average cost of debt % - n 6 - -
Interest Cover ratio Times 66.63 15.65 1n.18 281.0 856.1
Liquidity Ratios 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
Current ratio Times 1.32 1.38 1.29 23 216
Quick / Acid test ratio Times 0.78 0.72 0.72 1.8 172
Cash to Current Liabilities Times 0.38 0.15 0.18 0.8 0.53
Cash flow from Operations to Sales % 14.68 8.17 (2.806) 6.7 17.67
Activity / Turnover Ratios 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
Inventory turnover ratio Times 5.0 4.4 6.8 7.5 7.0
No. of Days in Inventory Days 73 83 55 49 53
Debtor turnover ratio Times 25.8 20.1 29.0 283 17.0
No. of Days in Receivables Days 15 19 13 13 22
Creditor turnover ratio Times 20.0 15.4 17.1 14.3 14.4
No. of Days in Creditors Days 19 24 22 26 26
Total Assets turnover ratio Times 1.81 1.82 1.87 21 1.9
Fixed Assets turnover ratio Times 5.7 5.60 5.61 66.5 40.8
Operating Cycle Days 69 78 46 36 49

Methods and assumptions used in compiling the indicators.

Financial indicators are computed using formulae which are widely used in the industry and are
relevant to different stakeholders such as shareholders, bankers and regulators. The data used is

generated through our internal management information systems, together with audited financial

statements.
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GRAPHICAL PRESENTATION

Variance analysis of profit after tax (2019-2020)
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Share price (Rs.)
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COMMENTS ON FINANCIAL RATIOS

PROFITABILITY RATIOS

Profitability ratios of the Company, in general, have decreased versus last year, mainly on account of
currency devaluation, change in portfolio mix and inflation.

Profit after tax increased by 0.36% compared to prior year. Gross profit margin declined to 26.85%
versus 30.56% last year. Net profit margin dropped to 6.36% versus 7.71% during 2019 which is in line
with the reasons mentioned above.

LIQUIDITY RATIOS

Cash inflows from operating activities has significantly improved versus last year primarily on account
of increase in profitability and better working capital management. The Company remains sufficiently
liquid and has Rs. 1,898 million of cash and cash equivalents as of 31st December 2020 to meet its
investment and operational cash requirements.

Quick / Acid test ratio (2020: 0.78, 2019: 0.72) and cash to current liabilities (2020: 0.38, 2019: 0.15)
improved versus last year, whereas, current ratio (2020:1.32, 2019: 1.38) has declined versus last year
mainly on account of higher payable balances.

ACTIVITY / TURNOVER RATIOS

Operating cycle has decreased to 69 days in 2020 from 78 days in 2019 mainly due to improvement in
inventory and debtor days as compared to last year. Total assets turnover ratio (average assets)
decreased to 1.81in 2020 from 1.82 in 2019 mainly due to increase in capital expenditure during the
year. Fixed assets turnover ratio (average assets) increased to 5.70 in 2020 from 5.60 in 2019 mainly
due to significant increase in sales during the year.

INVESTMENT / MARKET RATIOS

Earnings per share jumped to Rs. 10.78 in 2020 from Rs. 10.74 in 2019 as a result of increase in profit
after tax by 0.36% as mentioned above.

Price Earnings ratio has increased to 24.59 in 2020 from 23.88 in 2019, mainly due to increase in price
per share. Dividend yield ratio remained stagnant at 1.9%

Dividend pay-out ratio decreased to 0.46 (times) in 2020 from 0.47 (times) in 2019, on account of
increase in profit after tax by 0.36% as mentioned above.

Break-up value per share has increased to Rs. 43.02 in 2020 from Rs. 37.36 in 2019 due to increase in
total equity by Rs. 663 million as compared to prior year on account of increase in profitability.

Market capitalisation has increased to Rs. 31,035 million in 2020 from Rs. 30,015 million in 2019 due
to increase in market price per share to Rs. 265.13 in 2020 from Rs. 256.42 in 2019.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE ADEQUACY ANALYSIS
Total equity increased by 14.74% to Rs. 5,164 million comprising of share capital amounting to Rs.
1,170.55 million which consists of issued share capital of 117,054,508 shares of Rs. 10.00 each.

GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare B.V. and its nominees is the major shareholder of the
Company, having 100,423,259 shares being 85.79% of total paid-up capital.

m GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Ltd.




COMMENTS ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

SALES

Looking at the overall market conditions, the Company managed to achieve 22% growth as compared
to last year. which was supported by the increase in OTC and FMCG portfolio by 28% and 11%
(excluding divestments) respectively. This progress was marginally offset by decrease in exports.

COST OF SALES

Cost of sales of the Company increased primarily on account of increase in currency devaluation
and inflation.

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Selling and distribution expenses during the year increased by 13% mainly attributable to advertising,
sales promotion and handling & freight expenditure.

OTHER CHARGES

Increase in other charges during the current year by 8% is primarily on account of increase in statutory
charges (WPPF, WWF and CRF) which is in line with the increase in profitability of the Company.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment have witnessed an increase over prior year due to investment in
production facilities and infrastructure to support growing scale of business. Major capital expenditure
incurred during the year was for expanding manufacturing capacity, enhancement of productivity,
and improvement of plant efficiency.

CURRENT ASSETS

The increase in current assets is mainly due to increase in inventories, loans and advances, advance tax
payments and bank balances primarily on account of increase in sales and profitability. This has been
partially offset by decrease in trade debts and other receivables.

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables have increased over prior year mainly on account of increase in accrued
liabilities due to delay in invoicing by vendors.

EQUITY

Equity increased from prior year primarily due to increase in profitability.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

There has been a significant increase in net cash flows from operating activities mainly due to
favourable working capital changes versus last year.

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Net cash outflows from investing activities have increased from prior year primarily due to increase in
capital expenditure.

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net cash outflow from financing activities decreased during the current year primarily on account of
payment of lease rentals and unpaid dividend.

FORWARD LOOKING
STATEMENT

A detailed insight on the Company’s Future Outlook and Challenges by the Board of Directors is
present in the Director’'s Report on pg. 83. Moreover, significant factors affecting external environment
and the Company’s responses to those factors are disclosed on pg.36.

Sources of Information and Assumptions Used for Forecasts / Projections

The Company makes a statutory budget every year in line with the objectives and strategies of the
Company. These plans are approved by the Board of Directors annually. Periodic reviews of
performance are carried out against these plans to ensure adequate monitoring and control.
Number of different assumptions and data are used in preparing the plans, including, but not limited
to, historical figures, market growth rates, pricing policy, capital expenditure plans etc. Further,
macro-economic indicators such as inflation, GDP growth rate etc. are also considered to account for
the uncontrollable factors in future.

Status of the projects in progress and were disclosed in the forward-Looking Statement in the
previous year

The Company successfully deployed Commercial ERP in October, 2020 replacing the system 3.D
Edwards. This was disclosed as a future plan in last year's Forward-Looking Statement. The
deployment has resulted in GSK using one ERP system and one set of global processes and wiill
increase efficiency for processes and operations.
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QUARTERLY ANALYSIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

Qi Q2 Q3 Q4 Total

Revenue from contracts with customers - net  4,308,054,833 4,900,326,883 5,281,070,998 5,356,653,486 19,846,106,200

Cost of sales (2,903,678,819) (3,679,207,625) (3,921,720,533)  (4,013,636,524) (14,518,243,501)
Gross profit 1,404,376,014  1,221,119,258 1,359,350,465 1,343,016,962 5,327,862,699
Selling, marketing and distribution expenses (872,916,471)  (577134,475) (814,537,355) (833,850,776) (3,098,439,077)
Administrative expenses (65,210,967)  (55,658,755)  (79,578,523) (89,311,022)  (289,759,267)
Other operating expenses (34,942,188) (48,129,845) (36,770,392) (34,443,866) (154,286,291)
Other income 7.454,355 15,830,363 18,133,428 5,504,325 46,922,471
Operating profit 438,760,743 556,026,546 446,597,623 390,915,623 1,832,300,535
Financial charges (21,405,568) (18,338,387) (20,174,878) 1,910,652 (58,008,181)
Profit before taxation 417,355,175 537,688,159 426,422,745 392,826,275 1,774,292,354
Taxation - net (116,693,901)  (154,750,776) (130,463,408) (110,375,682) (512,283,767)
Profit after taxation 300,661,274 382,937,383 295,959,337 282,450,593 1,262,008,587
Quarterly Analysis
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Sales during the foruth quarter represented 27% (highest) of total revenue, whereas profit during the
same period was only 22% of total profit after tax mainly due to devaluation of the Pakistani Rupee
and inflation. Sales during the first quarter was only 21% (lowest) of total revenue, following the chal-
lenging economic and regulatory environment. Sales improved during the second quarter and repre-
sented 25% of total revenue.
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DUPONT ANALYSIS

Rupees in Millions

For the year ended 31st December 2020

Return
on Equity
24.44%

*Total Cost includes COGS, Selling, Admin, Other Expenses,

Net Profit
Margin
6.36%

Return
on Assets
11.50%

Assets
Turnover
1.81 Times

Owners
Equity
Rs. 5,164

Ownership
Ratio
47.06%

Total
Assets
Rs. 10,974

Financial charges, (less: Other income) and Taxation.

Comments on Dupont Analysis

Net Profit
Rs.1,262

Sales
Rs. 19,846

Total
Assets
Rs. 10,974

Total
Liabilities
Rs. 5,810

Owners
Equity
Rs. 5,164

Sales
Rs. 19,846

Total
Cost*
Rs. 18,584

Non-Current
Assets
Rs. 3,638

Current
Assets
Rs. 7,336

Non-Current
Liabilities
Rs. 240

Current
Liabilities
Rs. 5,570

The Company's Return on Equity declined by 3.5% majorly due to devaluation of Pakistani Rupee coupled with inflation.
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FREE CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

December 31,
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
Profit before taxation 1,774,292,354  1,699,777968  1,462,692,352  1,170,838,613 856,063,755
Adjustment for non-cash items:
Depreciation 268,412,236 231,400,913 210,635,453 22,964,631 10,147,985
Operating assets written off - - - 1,641,963 -
Interest expense 37,067,184 123,894,333 143,996,225 - -
Gain on disposal of operating assets (1,525,926) (7,907,067) (2,413,577) (2,510,570) (278,683)
Interest income (32,091,469) (19,147,292) (61,984,940)| (105,970,375) (23,671,109)
Provision / (reversal) for slow moving, obsolete
and damaged stock - net of stock written off 197,658,163 130,630,520 114,024,886 4,340,498 (2,11,796)

Allowance for impairment of trade debts 3,706,175 23,929,083 23,302 158,196 152,035
Provision for impairment of fixed assets - 22,500,000 - - -
Provision for staff retirement benefits 77,060,921 67,944,287 57,046,298 9,106,715 5,202,470

550,287,284 573,244,777 461,327,647 (70,268,942) (10,559,098)
Working capital changes 1,334,413,530 | (165,329,986) | (1,411,637,059)| (264,856,374)| 430,982,829
Staff retirement benefits paid (60,898,020) (61,189,122) (52,738,206) (7,492,213) (5,019,828)
Interest paid (59,863,320) (140,971147) | (139,780,490) = 5
Income taxes paid (624,481199) | (565,408911) | (743,788,903)| (268,655,682)| (321,665,543)
Decrease / (increase) in long-term loans to employees 1,333,606 (3,232,511 (1,840,854) (215,575) 56,395
Increase in long-term deposits (1,573,700) (3,106,198) - - -

588,930,897  (939,237,875) (2,349,785,512)  (541,219,844) 104,353,853
Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities 2,913,510,535 1,333,784,870 (425,765,513) 559,349,827 949,858,510
Fixed capital expenditure (851,268,417)  (524,793,174) (314,785,896)  (28,387,509)  (71,003,854)
Free cash flows 2,062,242,118 808,991,696 (740,551,409) 530,962,318 878,854,656
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Comments on Free Cash Flows

Company’s free cash flows increased significantly versus last year mainly on account of increase in
cash flows from operating activities contributed primarily by increase in profit before taxation, favoura-
ble working capital changes: decrease in trade debts and other receivables and an increase in paya-
bles of the Company. Moreover, lower interest payments due to improvement in liquidity position also
benefitted the Company. This increase in cash flows from operating activites was offset by an increase

in capital expenditure which led to a partial decline in the free cash flows.

m GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Ltd.
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DIRECT CASHFLOW

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

2020 2019
Rupees

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash receipts from customers 20,194,744,160 16,302,866,159
Cash paid to suppliers / service providers (15,042,918,535) (13,040,633,124)
Cash paid to employees (1,348,965,406) (1,066,774,516)
Payment of indirect taxes and other statutory duties (144,107,145) (94,104,469)
Staff retirement benefits paid (60,898,020) (61,189,122)
Interest paid (59,863,320) (140,971,147)
Income taxes paid (624,481,199) (565,408,911)
Net cash generated from operating activities 2,913,510,535 1,333,784,870
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Fixed capital expenditure (851,268,417) (524,793,174)
Proceeds from sale of operating assets 5,960,664 19,018,527
Return received 31,628,977 18,969,210
Net cash used in investing activities (813,678,776) (486,805,437)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Dividend paid (79,951,144) (80,744,750)
Lease rental paid (1,767,593) (2,236,079)
Net cash used in financing activities (81,718,737) (82,980,829)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 2,018,113,022 763,998,604
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year (120,338,720) (884,337,324)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 1,897,774,302 (120,338,720)
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Horizontal
Analysis

Statement of Financial Position Analysis 2020 2019 2018* 2017 2016
Share Capital and Reserves 14.7 17.4 67.0 439 100.0
Non Current Liabilities 285 46.6 552.0 1285 100.0
Current Liabilities 297 7.6 143.8 303 100.0
Total Equity and Liabilities 222 12.9 1012 38.2 100.0
Non Current Assets 18.9 9.7 1,983.7 (10.6) 100.0
Current Assets 239 14.7 352 40.9 100.0
Total Assets 222 12.9 1012 382 100.0
Profit and Loss Analysis 2020 2019 2018* 2017 2016
Net sales 216 97 793 54.4 100.0
Cost of sales 281 82 101.5 344 100.0
Gross profit 6.9 13.2 42.0 105.6 100.0
Selling, marketing and distribution expenses 131 122 34.0 85.1 100.0
Administrative expenses 23 (1.9) 497 46.2 100.0
Other operating expenses 82 121 438 35.8 100.0
Other operating income (34.5) (49.3) (22.0) (65.8) 100.0
Operating profit (3.2) 121 432 375 100.0
Financial charges (69.8) (14.8) 2,676.1 4232 100.0
Profit before taxation 44 16.2 249 36.8 100.0
Taxation 15.8 13.9 (16.4) 494 100.0
Profit after taxation 0.4 17.0 52.0 29.6 100.0
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COMMENTS ON HORIZONTAL ANALYSIS

Statement of Financial Position Analysis

The increase in non current liabilities pertains to an increase in the staff retirement benefits and
additional deferred tax liabilites booked on accelerated tax depreciation and amortisation.
Furthermore, the increase in current liabilities is mainly due to accrued liabilities caused by delay in
invoicing. Moreover, the increase in non-current assets pertains to investment in production facilities
and infrastructure to support growing scale of business. And the increase in current assets is mainly
due to increase in inventories, loans and advances, advance tax payments and bank balances primarily
on account of increase in sales and profitability.

PROFIT AND LOSS ANALYSIS

SALES

Looking at the overall market conditions, the Company managed to achieve 22% growth as compared
to last year which was supported by the increase in OTC and FMCG portfolio by 28% and 11%
(excluding divestments) respectively. This progress was marginally offset by decrease in exports.

COST OF SALES

Cost of sales of the Company increased primarily on account of increase in currency devaluation and inflation.

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Selling and distribution expenses during the year increased by 13% mainly attributable to advertising,
sales promotion and handling & freight expenditure.

OTHER CHARGES

Increase in other charges during the current year by 8% is primarily on account of increase in statutory
charges (WPPF, WWF and CRF) which is in line with the increase in profitability of the Company.

*The Horizontal analysis for 2018 numbers includes the entire business of GSK OTC (Private) Limited as it
stood merged with and into GSK Consumer Pakistan Healthcare Limited with effect from January 1, 2018.
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VERTICAL
ANALYSIS

Statement of Financial Position Analysis (%) 2020 2019 2018* 2017 2016
Share Capital and Reserves 471 501 482 581 55.8
Non Current Liabilities 22 21 1.6 0.5 03
Current Liabilities 50.8 47.8 50.2 414 439
Total Equity and Liabilities 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0
Non Current Assets 332 341 351 34 52
Current Assets 66.8 65.9 64.9 96.6 94.8
Total Assets 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0
Profit and Loss Analysis (%) 2020 2019 2018* 2017 2016
Net sales 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0
Cost of sales (73.2) (69.4) (70.4) (62.6) (71.9)
Gross profit 26.8 30.6 29.6 374 28.1
Selling, marketing and distribution expenses (15.6) (16.8) (16.4) (22.0) (18.3)
Administrative expenses (1.5) (1.7) (1.9) (2.3) (2.5)
Other operating expenses (0.8) (0.9) (0.9) (1.1) (1.2)
Other operating income 0.2 0.4 1.0 2.2 9.9
Operating profit 92 1.6 1.4 14.2 16.0
Financial charges (0.3) (1.2) (1.5) (0.1) (0.0)
Profit before taxation 8.9 10.4 9.8 14.1 15.9
Taxation (2.6) (2.7) (2.6) (5.6) (5.8)
Profit after taxation 6.4 7.7 7.2 8.5 10.1
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COMMENTS ON VERTICAL ANALYSIS

Statement of Financial Position Analysis

The increase in non current liabilities pertains to an increase in the staff retirement benefits and
additional deferred tax liabilites booked on accelerated tax depreciation and amortisation.
Furthermore, the increase in current liabilities is mainly due to accrued liabilities caused by delay in
invoicing. Moreover, the increase in non-current assets pertains to investment in production facilities
and infrastructure to support growing scale of business. And the increase in current assets is mainly
due to increase in inventories, loans and advances, advance tax payments and bank balances primarily
on account of increase in sales and profitability.

PROFIT AND LOSS ANALYSIS

SALES

Looking at the overall market conditions, the Company managed to achieve 22% growth as compared
to last year which was supported by the increase in OTC and FMCG portfolio by 28% and 11%
(excluding divestments) respectively. This progress was marginally offset by decrease in exports.

COST OF SALES

Cost of sales of the Company increased primarily on account of increase in currency devaluation and inflation.

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Selling and distribution expenses during the year increased by 13% mainly attributable to advertising,
sales promotion and handling & freight expenditure.

OTHER CHARGES

Increase in other charges during the current year by 8% is primarily on account of increase in statutory
charges (WPPF, WWF and CRF) which is in line with the increase in profitability of the Company.

*The Vertical analysis for 2018 numbers includes the entire business of GSK OTC (Private) Limited as it
stood merged with and into GSK Consumer Pakistan Healthcare Limited with effect from January 1, 2018.
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STATEMENT OF VALUE ADDED

2020
Rs. 000
Rupees %

Revenue generated
Total revenue 20,519,403 100.0
Revenue distributed
Bought-in-materials and services 13,743,690 67.0
Selling, marketing and distribution expenses 2,571,842 12.5
Administrative expenses and financial charges 216,166 1.1
Income tax 512,284 2.5
Worker's funds and Central research fund 154,286 0.8
Sales tax 626,374 3.1
To Government 1,292,944 6.3
Salaries, wages and other benefits 1,426,363 7.0
To Employees 1,426,363 7.0
Donations 0.0
To Society 6,390 0.03
Cash dividend per share 585,273 29
To Shareholders* 585,273 2.9
Retained in the Business 676,736 3.3

20,519,403 100.0
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2019 2018 2017 2016

Rs. 000 Rs. 000 Rs. 000 Rs. 000
Rupees % Rupees % Rupees % Rupees %
17,013,794 100.0 15,592,219 100.0 8,964,312 100.0 6,240,136 100.0

10,725,828 63.0 9,778,493 62.7 5,191,856 57.9 3,861,819 61.9
2,332,364 13.7 2,168,821 13.9 1,682,861 18.8 882,265 14.1
358,475 21 414,601 2.7 109,104 1.2 74,604 1.2
442,259 2.6 388,140 2.5 464,023 5.2 310,598 5.0
142,593 0.8 127,198 0.8 88,464 1.0 65,156 1.0
625,378 3.7 575,589 3.7 484,964 5.4 334,137 5.4
1,210,230 7.1 1,090,927 7.0 1,037,451 1.6 709,891 1n.4
1,129,379 6.6 1,064,825 6.8 236,224 2.6 166,091 2.7
1,129,379 6.6 1,064,825 6.8 236,224 2.6 166,091 2.7
585,273 3.4 585,273 3.8 477,751 s3 [ -] -
585,273 34 585,273 3.8 477,751 5.3 - -
672,246 4.0 489,279 3.1 229,065 2.6 545,465 8.7
17,013,794 100.0 15,592,219 100.0 8,964,312 100.0 6,240,136 100.0

* Represents final cash dividend @ Rs 5 per share proposed by the Board of Directors subsequent to the year end.
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Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Limited
Year ended 31 December 2020

The Company has complied with the requirements of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019 (‘Regulations’) in the following manner:

1. The total number of Directors are 7 with following diversity:

a) Male: 6
b) Female: T

2. The composition of the Board is as follows:
Category Name

Independent Directors* . Syed Anwar Mahmood
Mr. M. Z. Moin Mohajir

Executive Directors . Mr. Sohail Ahmed Matin
Mr. Dilawar Meghani

Non-Executive Directors . Mr. Talal Javed Ahmed**
Mr. Oussama Abbas
Ms. Erum Shakir Rahim

Female Director** . Ms. Erum Shakir Rahim

*The requirement of the Regulations w.r.t Independent Directors is at least two or one third members of the board, whichever is
higher. Two independent directors were appointed on the Company’s Board and the fraction of 0.33 was not rounded up as one
since the two Independent Directors have robustly protected the interests of the minority shareholders.

**Ms. Ayes Aziz was appointed on 3 March 2021 as a Non-Executive Independent Director to fill the casual vacancy created upon
the resignation of Mr. Talal Javed Ahmed, Non-Executive Director. This resulted in a change in the composition of the Board (i.e.

Male: 5, Female: 2).

3. The Directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a Director on more than seven listed
companies, including this Company; (excluding the listed subsidiaries of listed holding companies
where applicable).

4. The Company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been
taken to disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and procedures.

5. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant
policies of the Company. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of the significant
policies along with the date of approval or updating is maintained by the Company.
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6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been
taken by Board/shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these
Regulations.

7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairperson and in his absence, by a Director
elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with requirements of the Companies

Act, 2017 (‘Act’) and the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of

meetings of the Board.

8. The Board has a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of Directors in
accordance with the Act and these Regulations.

9. Majority of the Board members have attained training under Directors’ Training Program in prior
years and collectively meet the requirements of the Regulations.

10. The Board has approved the appointment of the Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and
Chief Internal Auditor, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and

complied with relevant requirements of the Regulations.

11. The Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer duly endorsed the financial statements
before approval of the Board.

12. The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

a) Audit Committee

i. Syed Anwar Mahmood - Non Executive & Independent Director (Chairperson)
ii. Mr. M.Z. Moin Mohajir = Non Executive & Independent Director
iii. Mr. Talal Javed Ahmed* - Non Executive Director

b) Human Resources and Remuneration Committee

i. Syed Anwar Mahmood - Non Executive & Independent Director (Chairperson)
ii. Mr. M.Z. Moin Mohajir - Non Executive & Independent Director
iii. Mr. Talal Javed Ahmed* - Non Executive Director

c) Integration Supply and Network Optimization Committee

i. Mr. Oussama Abbas - Non Executive Director (Chairperson)
ii. ~ Mr. Sohail Ahmed Matin - Executive Director

iii. Mr. Dilawar Meghani - Executive Director

iv.  Mr. Talal Javed Ahmed* - Non Executive Director

*Ms. Ayesha Aziz was appointed on 3 March 2021 as a Non-Executive Independent Director to fill the casual vacancy created
upon the resignation of Mr. Talal Javed Ahmed, Non-Executive Director.
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13. The Terms of Reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised
to the committee for compliance.

14. The frequency of the meetings (quarterly/half yearly/yearly) of the committees were as per following:

a) Audit Committee Quarterly
b) HR and Remuneration Committee Ist & 4th Quarter
c) Integration & SNO Committee 4th Quarter

15. The Board has outsourced the internal audit function to Ernst & Young Ford Rhodes, who are
considered suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the policies
and procedures of the Company;

16. The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory
rating under the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan,
and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners are in
compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as
adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the partners of the
firm involved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent
children) of the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Internal Auditor, Company
Secretary or Director of the Company;

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide
other services except in accordance with the Act, these Regulations or any other regulatory requirement
and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard; and

18. We confirm that all requirements of the regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations
have been complied with.

gaL_

Karachi Mr. M.Z. Moin Mohajir
5 March 2021 Chairperson
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INDEPENDENT
AUDITOR’S REVIEW REPORT

To the members of GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Limited

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of
GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Limited (the Company) for the year ended December
31,2020 in accordance with the requirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the
Company. Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of
the Company’s compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to
highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily
to inquiries of the Company’s personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company
to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit
approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal
control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls,
the Company’'s corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and
approval, its related party transactions. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this
requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors
upon recommendation of the Audit Committee.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the
Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material

respects, with the requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the
year ended December 31, 2020.

Chartered Accountants

Place: Karachi
Date: March 20, 2021

E GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Ltd.




INDEPENDENT
AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the members of GlaxoSmithKline Consumer HealthCare Pakistan Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of GlaxoSmithKline Consumer HealthCare Pakistan
Limited (the Company), which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2020,
and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in
equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we
state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge
and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
statement of financial position, statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part
thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and
respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at December 31, 2020 and of
the profit and other comprehensive loss, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable
in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan
(the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and

we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Following are the Key audit matters;
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S.No | Key audit matters How the matter was addressed
in our audit
1 Impairment assessment of intangible asset - goodwill
As disclosed in note 5 to the financial statements, the In response to this matter, we performed the
Company has an intangible asset in the form of following procedures:
goodwill having carrying value of Rs. 127.67 million
(2019: Rs. 127.67 million) at year end. Obtained understanding of management’s
process over the impairment assessment of
The goodwill was recorded as a result of an acquisition goodwill.
of business from Novartis Pakistan (Private) Limited
(NPPL) by then GSK OTC (Private) Limited which was Obtained management’s future cash flow
merged into the Company in the year ended December forecasts and tested arithmetical accuracy
31,2018, and hence on merger, this goodwill became of underlying value-in-use calculations.
asset of the Company.
Assessed the reasonableness of key
As per the accounting and reporting standards as assumptions used in the calculations,
applicable in Pakistan, the Company is required to, comprising sales growth rates, gross profit
at-least annually, perform impairment assessment of margin, net profit margin, terminal growth
goodwiill. rate and discount rates. When assessing
these key assumptions, we discussed them
For performing impairment, management has with management to understand and
allocated goodwiill to appropriate cash generating units evaluate management’s basis for
(“CGUs"). The recoverable amount of the underlying determining the assumptions, and
CGUs is supported by value-in-use calculations which compared them to economic growth
are based on future discounted cash flows. forecasts from available external sources.
Management concluded that goodwill was not We also engaged our internal experts to
impaired as of December 31, 2020. assist us in assessing the reasonableness of
the key assumptions used by management.
We focused on this area as the assessments made by
management involved significant estimates and - Performed sensitivity analysis around some
judgments, including sales growth rates, gross profit assumptions to ascertain that selected
margin, net profit margin and terminal growth rates adverse changes to discount rate and
used to estimate future cash flows and discount rates terminal growth rate would not cause the
applied to these forecasted future cash flows of the carrying amount of goodwill to exceed the
underlying CGUs. These estimates and judgments may recoverable amount.
be affected by unexpected changes in future market or
economic conditions or discount rates applied,
therefore, impairment assessment has been considered
as key audit matter
140
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Valuation of inventories

Impairment assessment of intangible asset - goodwill

Refer to note 3.4 and 7 to the financial statements
relating to valuation of inventories.

Inventory forms a significant part of the

Company’s assets. As at December 31, 2020, the gross
carrying amount of Company’s inventories amounts to
Rs. 3,039.66 million against which adjustment for
provision for slow moving, obsolete and damaged stock
of Rs. 137.44 million has been recorded.

We identified valuation of inventories as a key audit
matter as it involves significant management
judgement with respect to standard costs,
determination of net realizable value and
determination of obsolescence of stock.

In this respect, we performed the following audit
procedures:

Obtained an understanding of procedures
followed by the Company with respect to
valuation of inventories;

Assessed appropriateness of the Company’s
accounting policies for valuation of
inventories and compliance of those
policies with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan;

On a sample basis, verified supporting
documents for purchases of inventories and
the production costs;

Obtained working of variances recorded by
management and tested the amounts,
which were incurred and retained to
actualize the standard cost of inventories at
year end;

Obtained an understanding and assessed
reasonableness of the management’s
process for determination of net realizable
value (NRV) and the key estimates adopted,
including future selling prices, future costs
to complete and costs necessary to make
the sales and their basis;

Compared the NRV, on a sample basis, to
the carrying value of inventories to assess
whether any adjustments were required to
carrying value of inventories in accordance
with the policy;

For valuation of goods in transit we have
verified the supporting documents on
sample basis; and

Tested provision recorded for obsolete
stock to ensure that whether it was as per
the policy of the Company.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2020, but does not

include the financial statements, our auditor's report thereon, and review report issued on statement of
compliance with Code of Corporate Governance

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
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information and, in doing so when available, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial

statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the
requirements of the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management'’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

142 GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Ltd.




Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters commmunicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act,
2017 (XIX of 2017);

b) statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes
thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in
agreement with the books of account and returns;

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the
purpose of the Company's business; and

d) zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Usher Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980), was
deducted by the Company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7
of that Ordinance.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Naresh Kumar.

e

Chartered Accountants

Place: Karachi
Date: March 20, 2021
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2020
2020 2019
ASSETS Note Rupees
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4 3,493,313,411 2,914,891,968
Intangible 5 127,674,000 127,674,000
Long-term loans to employees 6 9,259,701 10,593,307
Long-term deposits 8,069,898 6,496,198
3,638,317,010 3,059,655,473
Current assets
Stores and spares 61,955,626 52,489,669
Inventories 7 2,902,221,833 2,769,124,471
Trade debts 8 669,584,857 866,168,074
Loans and advances 9 491,187,380 307,289,523
Trade deposits and prepayments 10 42,947,491 60,034,056
Interest accrued 640,574 178,082
Refunds due from Government n 32,391,291 17,172,528
Other receivables 12 333,738,818 676,633,822
Taxation - payments less provision 668,936,184 530,637,270
Bank balances 13 2,132,049,617 643,240,843
7,335,653,671 5,922,968,338
Total assets 10,973,970,681 8,982,623,811
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share capital and reserves
Share capital 14 1,170,545,080 1,170,545,080
Reserves 15 3,993,383,399 3,330,058,855
5,163,928,479 4,500,603,935
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Staff retirement benefits 16 88,029,023 53,665,103
Deferred taxation 17 151,724,857 130,975,506
Lease liability - 1,989,219
239,753,880 186,629,828
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 18 4,155,521,907 2,599,790,956
Running finance 19 - 763,579,563
Accrued mark-up 2,768,521 25,874,258
Unpaid dividend 20 1,409,697,057 904,375,661
Current portion of lease liability 2,300,837 1,769,610
5,570,288,322 4,295,390,048
Total liabilities 5,810,042,202 4,482,019,876
Total equity and liabilities 10,973,970,681 8,982,623,811
Contingencies and commitments 21
The annexed notes from 1 to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.
\ Py 4T \ode

Chief Financial Officer
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GLAXOSMITHKLINE CONSUMER HEALTHCARE PAKISTAN LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

2020 2019
Note Rupees

Revenue from contracts with customers - net 22 19,846,106,200 16,316,744,549
Cost of sales 23 (14,518,243,501) (11,330,677,070)
Gross profit 5,327,862,699  4,986,067,479
Selling, marketing and distribution expenses 24 (3,098,439,077) (2,739,642,160)
Administrative expenses 25 (289,759,267) (283,361,186)
Other operating expenses 26 (154,286,291) (142,592,667)
Other income 27 46,922,471 71,671,539
Operating profit 1,832,300,535 1,892,143,005
Financial charges 28 (58,008,181) (192,365,037)
Profit before taxation 1,774,292,354 1,699,777,968
Taxation - net 29 (512,283,767) (442,259,158)
Profit after taxation 1,262,008,587 1,257,518,810
Other comprehensive loss
Items that will not be reclassified to statement of
profit or loss:
Remeasurement of staff retirement benefits 16.1.8 (18,763,634) (9,274,488)
Impact of taxation 17.1 5,352,131 2,647,016

(13,411,503) (6,627,472)
Total comprehensive income 1,248,597,084 1,250,891,338
Earnings per share 30 10.78 10.74
The annexed notes from 1to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Chief Financial Officer

Director

Chief Executive Officer
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GLAXOSMITHKLINE CONSUMER HEALTHCARE PAKISTAN LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

Capital Revenue
reserves reserve
Reserve
Reserve o
. . arising on
arising amalgamation
Sh?:el ;'“:e’ thef underthe  Unappropriated Total
capita cheme o Scheme of profit
Arrangement
-notel.l it
: - note 1.4
Rupees
Balance as at January 01, 2019 1170,545,080 101,913,533 728,725,969 1,833,800,555 3,834,985,137
Transactions with owners recorded
directly in equity - distribution
Final dividend for the year ended
December 31,2018 @ Rs. 5 per share - (585,272,540) (585,272,540)
Total comprehensive income for the year
ended December 31, 2019
Profit after taxation for the year ended
December 31,2019 = 1,257,518,810 1,257,518,810
Other comprehensive loss for the year
ended December 31,2019 = (6,627,472) (6,627,472)
= 1,250,891,338 1,250,891,338
Balance as at December 31, 2019 1,170,545,080 101,913,533 728,725,969 2,499,419,353 4,500,603,935
Transactions with owners recorded
directly in equity - distribution
Final dividend for the year ended
December 31,2019 @ Rs. 5 per share - - - (585,272,540) (585,272,540)
Total comprehensive income for the year
ended December 31,2020
Profit after taxation for the year ended
December 31,2020 - - - 1,262,008,587 1,262,008,587
Other comprehensive loss for the year
ended December 31,2020 = - - (13,411,503) (13,411,503)
- - - 1,248,597,084 1,248,597,084
Balance as at December 31,2020 1,170,545,080 101,913,533 728,725,969 3,162,743,897 5,163,928,479
The annexed notes from 1to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

2020 2019
Note Rupees

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash generated from operations 31 3,658,993,168 2,107,692,759
Staff retirement benefits paid (60,898,020) (61,189,122)
Interest paid (59,863,320) (140,971,147)
Income taxes paid (624,481,199) (565,408,911)
Decrease / (increase) in long-term loans to employees 1,333,606 (3,232,511)
Increase in long-term deposits (1,573,700) (3,106,198)
Net cash generated from operating activities 2,913,510,535 1,333,784,870
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Fixed capital expenditures (851,268,417) (524,793,174)
Proceeds from disposal of operating assets 5,960,664 19,018,527
Return received 31,628,977 18,969,210
Net cash used in investing activities (813,678,776) (486,805,437)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Dividend paid 33 (79,951,144) (80,744,750)
Lease rental paid (1,767,593) (2,236,079)
Net cash used in financing activities (81,718,737) (82,980,829)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 2,018,113,022 763,998,604
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year (120,338,720) (884,337,324)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 32 1,897,774,302 (120,338,720)
The annexed notes from 1to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Chief Financial Officer

Director

Chief Executive Officer
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

1. THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

1.1 GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Limited (the Company) was incorporated in
Pakistan as a public unlisted company under the provisions of the repealed Companies Ordinance,
1984 (now Companies Act, 2017) on March 31, 2015 principally to effect the demerger of consumer
healthcare business of GlaxoSmithKline Pakistan Limited (GSK Pakistan) under a Scheme of
Arrangement (the Scheme) which was approved by the Honourable High Court of Sindh (SHC) and its
order was submitted to the Registrar of Companies on April 01, 2016. The Company is a subsidiary of
GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare B.V. The ultimate parent of the Company is GlaxoSmithKline
plc, UK. The Company is engaged in manufacturing, marketing and sale of consumer healthcare
products. The Company has been listed at the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited since March 22, 2017.
The registered office of the Company is situated at 35-Dockyard Road, West Wharf, Karachi.

1.2 Due to the pending transfer of marketing authorisations and certain permissions for Over the
Counter (OTC) products of the Company with Drug Regulatory Authority of Pakistan (DRAP), GSK
Pakistan, for and on behalf of the Company was engaged in the procurement, manufacturing and
managing the related inventory and receivable balances pertaining to such products against a service
fee charged by GSK Pakistan. During the year, the marketing authorisations and permissions for
certain OTC products have been transferred to the Company, therefore, the Company has been
involved in procurement, manufacturing and management of such products since the approval date.

1.3 The coronavirus outbreak situation, during the year, was evolving in the country. Up to the date of
these financial statements, the outbreak has not had a material adverse impact on the financial
results of the Company. Presently, healthcare businesses have been allowed to continue their
operations by both provincial and federal governments in order to ensure availability of our products
in the market.

1.4 Merger of GlaxoSmithKline OTC (Private) Limited with and into the Company

In 2018, GlaxoSmithKline OTC (Private) Limited (GSK OTC), a wholly owned subsidiary of
GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare B.V., was merged with and into the Company with effect from
January 01, 2018 through a Scheme of Merger sanctioned by SHC vide its order dated December 12,
2018, which was also endorsed by Drug Regulatory Authority of Pakistan (DRAP) vide its letter no.
F.2-4/88-Lic (Vol-1V) dated March 07, 2019.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
21 Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan
comprise of:

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and Islamic Financial Accounting Standard (IFAS)
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP), as notified under
the Companies Act, 2017; and

Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.
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Where the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the
requirements of IFRS and IFAS, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017
have been followed.

22 Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except as
otherwise disclosed in the accounting policies below.

23 Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Company operates. These financial statements are presented in Pakistani
Rupees which is the Company's functional and presentation currency. All financial information
presented in Pakistani Rupees has been rounded off to the nearest rupee unless otherwise indicated.

2.4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Company's accounting policies.

The matters involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant which have been disclosed in the relevant notes to the financial statements are:

i) Intangibles (note 3.2 and note 5)
i) Provision for retirement benefits (note 3.7 and note 16)
iii) Depreciation and impairment of non-current assets (note 3.1 and note 3.14)

iv) Provision for obsolete and slow moving stock (note 3.4 and note 7)
V) Allowance for impairment of trade debts (note 3.12.4 and note 8)
Vi) Taxation (note 3.18 and note 29)

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the result of which form the basis of
making the judgements about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

25 Application of new standards, amendments and interpretations to the published approved

accounting standards

2,51 New accounting standards /amendments and IFRS interpretations that are effective for the
year ended December 31, 2020

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are effective for the year ended December 3],
2020. These standards, amendments and interpretations are either not relevant to the Company's
operations or are not expected to have significant impact on the Company's financial statements other
than certain additional disclosures.
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Effective from accounting
period beginning on or after

IFRS 14 - Regulatory Deferral Accounts July 01, 2019

- Amendments to the conceptual framework for financial reporting,
including amendments to references to the conceptual framework in IFRS January 01, 2020

- Amendments to IFRS 3 'Business Combinations' - Definition of a business January 01, 2020
- Amendments to IAS 1'Presentation of Financial Statements' and IAS 8

'‘Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors'

- Definition of material January 01, 2020
- Amendments to IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments’, IAS 39 'Financial Instruments:

Recognition and Measurement' and IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments:

Disclosures' - Interest rate benchmark reform January 01, 2020
2.5.2 New accounting standards and IFRS interpretations that are not yet effective
The following standards, amendments and interpretations are only effective for accounting periods,
beginning on or after the date mentioned against each of them. These standards, interpretations and

the amendments are either not relevant to the Company's operations or are not expected to have
significant impact on the Company's financial statements other than certain additional disclosures.

Effective from accounting
periods beginning on or after

- Amendment to IFRS 16 'Leases' - Covid-19 related rent concessions June 01,2020

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
- Phase 2 (Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16) January 01, 2021

. Amendments to IFRS 3 'Business Combinations'
- Reference to the conceptual framework January 01, 2022

Effective from accounting
periods beginning on or after

Amendments to IAS 16 'Property, Plant and Equipment'
- Proceeds before intended use January 01, 2022

Amendments to IAS 37 'Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets' - Onerous Contracts — cost of fulfilling a contract January 01, 2022

- Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements'
- Classification of liabilities as current or non-current January 01,2023

2.5.3 Other than the aforesaid standards, interpretations and amendments, the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) has also issued the following standards which have not been
adopted locally by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan:

IFRS 1 - First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards

IFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out
below.These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented:

31 Property, plant and equipment
311 Operating assets

Operating assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation / amortisation and accumulated
impairment, if any.

Depreciation is charged using the straight line method whereby the carrying value of an asset less
estimated residual value, if not insignificant, is written off over its estimated remaining useful life.
Depreciation / amortisation on assets is charged from the month of addition to the month of disposal.
Cost of leasehold land is amortised over the period of the lease.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,

as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item wiill
flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
Mmaintenance are charged to statement of profit or loss during the year in which they are incurred.

Gains or losses on disposal of operating assets are recognised in statement of profit or loss during the
year in which the asset is disposed off.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values of each item of property, plant and equipment that
is significant in relation to the total cost of the asset are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate annually.

3.1.2 Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less impairment, if any. It consists of expenditure incurred
and advances made in respect of items of property, plant and equipment in the course of their
acquisition, construction and installation. Transfers are made to the relevant category of assets when
assets are available for intended use.

3.2 Intangibles

In a business combination, goodwiill is recognised at the acquisition date and measured at the fair
value of consideration paid less the fair value of net assets acquired. After initial recognition, it is
carried at cost less accumulated impairment, if any. Goodwill is assessed annually for impairment.

33 Stores and spares

These are valued at lower of cost, determined using weighted average method, and net realisable
value, less provision for obsolete items, if any. ltems in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice
value plus other charges incurred thereon up to the reporting date. Provision is made for items which
are obsolete and slow moving and is determined based on management estimate regarding their
future usability.

3.4 Inventories

These are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using first-in first-out method.
Cost of raw and packing materials comprise of purchase price including directly related expenses less

trade discounts, if any. Cost of work-in-process and finished goods include cost of raw and packing
materials, direct labour and related production overheads.
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Net realisable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less costs
necessary to be incurred to make the sale. Provision is made for slow moving and expired inventory
where considered necessary. Stock in transit is carried at accumulated cost incurred upto reporting date.

35 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at cost / amortised cost. For
the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise of bank balances in
current, savings and deposit accounts, short-term borrowings under running finance and book overdraft.

3.6 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity and are recognised at their face value. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the issue of shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

3.7 Staff retirement benefits
3.71 Defined benefit plan
The Company operates an approved funded gratuity plan (the Plan) for its permanent employees.

Gratuity is based on employees' last drawn salary. Provisions are made to cover the obligations under
the scheme on the basis of actuarial recommendations. The actuarial valuations are carried out using
the Projected Unit Credit Method. Actuarial gain or loss (remeasurements) are immediately recognised
in ‘Other Comprehensive Income’ as they occur. The amount recognised in the statement of financial
position represents the present value of defined benefit obligation as reduced by the fair value of the
plan assets. Current service costs and any past service costs together with net interest cost are charged
to profit or loss.

Retirement benefits are payable to employees on completion of prescribed qualifying period of
service under the Plan.

38 Defined contribution plan

3.8.1 The Company also operates approved contributory provident fund for all its permanent
employees. Equal monthly contributions are made both by the Company and the employee at the
rate of 10% per annum of the basic salary.

3.9 Compensated absences

The Company provides for compensated absences of its non-management employees on un-availed
balance of leave in the period in which the leaves are earned.

3.10 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted to reflect current best estimate.

The amount recognised as provision is the best estimate of consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of reporting period, taking into account the risk and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation.

3n Share based payments

Cash settled share based payments provided to employees are recorded as liability in the financial
statements at fair value over the period the services are received.
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312 Financial assets and liabilities

3.12.1 Initial recognition

All financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at their fair value plus or minus, in the
case of a financial asset or financial liability not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset and financial liability.
These are subsequently measured at fair value or amortised cost as the case may be. The Company
recognises financialassets and financial liabilities on the date it becomes party to the contractual

provisions of the instruments.

Financial liabilities are not recognised unless one of the parties has performed its part of the contract
or the contract is a derivative contract.

3.12.2 Classification
(i) Financial assets
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories:
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"),
at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"), or
at amortised cost (“AC").
The Company determines the classification of financial assets at initial recognition.
The classification of instruments (other than equity instruments) is driven by the Company’s
business model for managing the financial assets and their contractual cash flow characteristics.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost:

the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

By default, all other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL.
(i) Financial liabilities
The Company classifies its financial liabilities in the following categories:

at fair value through profit or loss (‘FVTPL"), or
at amortised cost (‘AC").

Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost, unless they are required to be measured at
FVTPL or the Company has opted to measure them at FVTPL.
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3.12.3 Subsequent measurement
(i) Financial assets at FVTOCI

Elected investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are initially recognised at fair value
plus transaction costs. Subsequently they are measured at fair value, with gains or losses
arising from changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive (loss) income.

(i) Financial assets and liabilities at amortised cost

Financial assets and liabilities at amortised cost are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs, and subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, and in the case of financial assets, less any impairment.

Gains or losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when financial
instrument are derecognised or impaired or through the amortisation process.

(iii) Financial assets and liabilities at FVTPL

Financial assets and liabilities carried at FVTPL are initially recorded at fair value and
transaction costs are expensed in the statement of profit or loss. Realised and
unrealised gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the financial assets
and liabilities held at FVTPL are included in the statement of profit or loss in the period
in which they arise. Where management has opted to recognise a financial liability at
FVTPL, any changes associated with the Company’s own credit risk will be recognised in
other comprehensive (loss) income.

3.12.4 Impairment of financial assets

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, recognition of impairment based on expected credit
loss (ECL) model. The Company measures loss allowance of an amount equal to lifetime ECL or 12
months ECL based on credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative
and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience and informed
credit assessment and including forward-looking information.

The Company recognises lifetime ECL for trade debts. The ECL on these financial assets are estimated
using a provision matrix based on the Company’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of both the current
as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date, including time value of money
where appropriate.

For other financial assets, majority of the assets of the Company exposed to credit risk pertain to
counter parties which have high credit rating or where credit risk has not been increased since initial
recognition. Therefore, management believes that the impact of ECL would be very minimal and
hence, the same has not been accounted for in these financial statements.

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has no reasonable
expectations of recovering of a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. The Company
individually makes an assessment with respect to the timing and amount of write-off based on
whether there is a reasonable expectation of recovery. The Company expects no significant recovery
from the amount written off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to
enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.
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3.12.5 Derecoghnition
(i) Financial assets

The Company derecognises financial assets only when the contractual rights to cash
flows from the financial assets expire, or when it transfers the financial assets and
substantially all the associated risks and rewards of ownership to another entity. On
derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the difference between
the asset’s carrying value and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

(i) Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities only when its obligations under the
financial liabilities are discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised
in profit or loss.

313 Off-setting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are off-set and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if the Company has a legal right to set off the transaction and also intends either to settle on a
net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

3.14 Impairment of non-financial assets

Carrying values of non financial assets are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists,
assets or cash-generating units are tested for impairment. Cash-generating units to which goodwill is
allocated are tested for impairment annually. Where the carrying values of assets or cash-generating
units exceed the estimated recoverable amount, these are written down to their recoverable amount
and the resulting impairment is charged to statement of profit or loss.

Impairment is reversed only if there has been a change in estimates used to determine recoverable amounts
and only to the extent that the revised carrying value does not exceed the carrying value that would have
existed, had no impairment been recognised, except impairment of goodwill which is not reversed.

315 Business combination

Business combinations generally are accounted for using acquisition method of accounting in
accordance with the requirements of IFRS 3 Business Combinations. The Company follows
predecessor’s accounting method for business combination falling under common control which are
out of scope of IFRS-3 ‘Business Combinations’.

3.16 Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised at amounts that reflect the consideration that
the Company expects to be entitled to in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer.
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, and is recognised on
the following basis:

Revenue from sale of goods, scrap sales or service fee is recognised when or as control

of goods or services have been transferred to a customer either over time or at a point in
time, when the performance obligations are met.
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Returns on saving accounts, deposit accounts and investments at amortised cost are
recognised using effective interest rate method.

Insurance commission is recognised when performance obligations is met.

Promotional allowance is recognised when the right to receive the allowance is
established.

317 ljarah

In ijarah transactions, significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the
lessor. Islamic Financial Accounting Standard 2 - 'ljrah' requires the recognition of 'Ujrah payments'
(lease rentals) against ijarah financing as an expense in the statement of profit or loss on a straight line
basis over the ijarah term.

318 Taxation
3.18.1 Current

The charge for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rates of taxation after taking
into account applicable tax credits and rebates available, if any, and taxes paid under the final tax regime.

3.18.2 Deferred

Deferred tax is recognised using balance sheet method for all temporary differences at the reporting date
arising between tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits and taxable temporary
differences will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. The
carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits and taxable temporary differences will be
available to allow all or part of the assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the liability is
settled or the asset realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the statement of profit or loss,
except when it relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is
also dealt with in equity. The effect of deferred taxation of the portion of the income subject to final
tax regime is also considered in accordance with the requirement of Technical Release - 27 of Institute
of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan.

3.19 Foreignh currency transactions and translation

Foreign currency transactions are recorded into Pakistani Rupee using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currency are translated into
Pakistani Rupee at the rates of exchange prevailing at the statement of financial position date.
Exchange gains and losses are taken to statement of profit or loss.

3.20 Dividend

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders and appropriations to / from reserves is
recognised in the period in which these are approved.

3.21 Earnings per share

The Company presents basic earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is
calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the

E GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Ltd.




weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.
3.22 Segmentreporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker (CODM) who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing

performance of the operating segments. The management has determined that the Company has a
single reportable segment as the CODM views the Company's operations as one reportable segment.

3.23 Leases

At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease based on
whether the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which the
leased asset is available for use by the Company.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, and subsequently at cost less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses if any, and adjusted for certain re-measurements of the lease
liability. The right-of-use asset is depreciated using the straight line method over the shorter of the
lease term and the asset’s useful life. The estimated useful lives of assets are determined on the same
basis as that for owned assets. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment
losses, if any.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at
the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot
be readily determined, the Company’s incremental borrowing rate.

The lease liability is subsequently increased by the interest cost on the lease liability and decreased by
lease payments made. It is re-measured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from
a change in an index or rate, a change in assessment of whether extension option is reasonably certain
to be exercised or a termination option is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to
statement of profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

The Company has elected to apply the practical expedient not to recognise right-of-use asset and
lease liabilities for short term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value
assets. The lease payments associated with these leases is recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

2020 2019
Note = —— Rupees
4, PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Operating assets 4.1 2,655,046,783 2,484,606,742
Capital work-in-progress 4.4 836,283,266 426,729,845
Right-of-use assets - building 1,983,362 3,555,381

3,493,313,411 2,914,891,968
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4.1 Operating assets

Net carrying value basis

Year ended December 31,2020

Opening net book value
Additions (at cost)

Disposals
- Cost
- Accumulated depreciation

Depreciation / amortisation
charge

Closing net book value

Gross carrying value basis

At December 31,2020

Cost

Accumulated depreciation
/ amortisation

Net book value

Depreciation rate
% per annum

Net carrying value basis

Year ended December 31, 2019

Opening net book value

Additions (at cost)

Disposals
- Cost
- Accumulated depreciation

Depreciation / amortisation
charge

Closing net book value

Gross carrying value basis

At December 31,2019

Cost

Accumulated depreciation
/amortisation

Net book value

Depreciation rate
% per annum
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Leasehold Building and

land improvements Plarft & Furnlture Vehicles O.fflce Total
(note4.3) ©°" Leasehold Machinery & fixtures equipment
land
Rupees
6,438,294 693,696,708 1,460,660,062 28,046,666 154,219,814 141545198  2/484,606,742
- 12,432,303 258,523,452 81,598,855 37,490,725 51,669,661 441,714,996
- - (11,093,000) (559,279) (50,000) (688,127) (12,390,406)
= - 703,406 21,186 16,667 403,067 7,544,326
- - (3,989,594) (538,093) (33,333) (285,060) (4,846,080)
(300,621) (23,944,138) (153,861,423) (17,882,265) (47,408,573) (23,031,855) (266,428,875)
6,137,673 682,184,873 1,561,332,497 91,225,163 144,268,633 169,897,944  2,655,046,783
7,646,000 784,311,044  2]138,040,952 133,655,385 294,114,367 276,054,704 3,633,822,452
(1,508,327) (102126,171) (576,708,455)  (42,430,222) (149,845,734)  (106,156,760) (978,775,669)
6,137,673 682,184,873 1,561,332,497 91,225,163 144,268,633 169,897,944  2,655,046,783
4 25and10 6.67 and 25 10 25 10t033.33
6,738,915 642,577225 1231412,790 31,008,611 134,079,559 52400,01 2,098,217
3 73,987,713 370,076,655 2,687,621 72,126,500 108,245,823 627,124,312
- - - - (20,432,268) (892,546) (21,324.,814)
- - - - 9,320,808 892,546 10,213,354
- - - - (1,111,460) - (11,111,460)
(300,621) (22,868,230) (140,829,383) (5,649,566) (40,874,785) (19,100,636) (229,623,221)
6,438,294 693,696,708  1460,660,062 28,046,666 154,219,814 141,545,198 2484,606,742
7,646,000 771878741 1890,610,500 52,615,809 256,673,642 225073170 3204497862
(1,207,706) (78182,033) (429,950,438) (24,569,143) (102,453,828) (83,527,972) (719,891,120)
6,438,294 693,696,708  1460,660,062 28,046,666 154,219,814 141,545,198 2484,606,742
4 25and10 6.67 and 25 10 25 10t033.33




4.2 Particulars of immovable assets of the Company are as follows:

Location Address Usage of immovable property Total area
4 acres and
Jamshoro Sandoz Nagar, Factory 1ghunta

Petaro Road, Jamshoro

4.3 Leasehold land consists of land located at Jamshoro Taluka Kotri, District Dadu. The Company is
the beneficial owner of the land, however, the title and lease is yet to be transferred in the name of the
Company. The land is currently in the name of Novartis Pharma (Pakistan) Limited.

2020 2019
Note @ — — Rupees

4b Capital work-in-progress

Opening balance 426,729,845 551,560,983
Additions during the year 851,268,417 524793174
Transfers during the year (441,714,996) (627,124,312)
Less: Provision for impairment 441 - (22,500,000)
Closing balance 4.5 836,283,266 426,729,845

4.4.1 Last year the company has recorded impairment on office equipments which is reversed in the
current year as these were identified by the management subsequently.

4.5 As at December 31, capital work-in-progress represents:

- Civil works 39,076,603 16,330,559

Plant and machinery 614,557,538 263,822,738
- Furniture and fixtures 34,512,426 36,517,815
- Office equipments 81,123,009 94,416,269
- Advances to suppliers 451 67,013,690 15,642,464

836,283,266 426,729,845

4.5.1 The advances to supplier do not carry any interest or markup.
5. INTANGIBLE

This represents intangible acquired by the Company under the Scheme of Merger (note 1.4) which
comprise of goodwill arised on the business acquisition of Novartis Pharma (Pakistan) Limited (NPPL)
by GSK OTC which is the difference between the purchase consideration and the fair value of assets
acquired.

The recoverable amount of goodwill is the higher of value-in-use and fair value less cost to sell.
Value-in-use is calculated as the net present value of the projected cash flows of the Cash Generating
Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs, discounted at risk-adjusted discount rate.

Details relating to the discounted cash flow model used in the impairment test are as follows:

Valuation basis Value-in-use
Key assumptions Sales growth rates
Determination of assumptions Growth rates are internal forecasts based on both internal and

external market information and past performance.
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Cost reflects past experience, adjusted for inflation and expected changes.
Discount rate is primarily based on weighted average cost of capital.
Terminal growth rate 4.0%

Period of specific projected
cash flows 5years

Discount rate 15.27%

The valuation indicates sufficient headroom such that a 1% change in the terminal growth and
discount rate has not resulted in an impairment of the intangible.

2020 2019
Note — Rupees
6. LONG-TERM LOANS TO EMPLOYEES
Secured - considered good 6.1 14,272,132 14,369,440
Recoverable within one year 9 (5,012,431) (3,776,133)
9,259,701 10,593,307

6.1 These loans have been given in accordance with the terms of employment for purchase of motor
car, motor cycle and for the purpose of house relocation and are repayable in 18 to 60 equal monthly
installments. These loans are interest free. All loans are secured against the retirement fund balances.

2020 2019
Note ————— Rupees

7. INVENTORIES

1,582,789,812 1490,083,243
Raw and packing materials [including in transit
Rs. 104.39 million (2019: Rs. 465.08 million)] 14,374,923 35,441,780

Work-in-process
1,442,493,038 1,392,293,893

Finished goods [including in transit Rs. 130.31 million

(2019: Rs. 145.9 million)] 7.1 3,039,657,773 2,917,818,916
7.2 (137,435,940) (148,694,445)
Less: Provision for slow moving, obsolete and damaged stock 2,902,221,833 2,769,124,471

7.1 Detail of inventories held with third parties is as follows:
For use in third party manufacturing
- Roomi Enterprises (Private) Limited 557,063,663 208,890,747

Stock held at third party warehouse

- Emirates Supply Chain Services (Private) Limited 393,053,813 331,131,601
- Connect Logistics (Private) Limited 684,779,946 414,371,785
- Glaciers (Private) Limited 147,710,696 144,465,577
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7.2 During the year, inventories of Rs. 159.87 million (2019: Rs. 6.69 million) have been written off
against provision.

7.3 Inventories include items costing Rs. 1,312.18 million (2019: Rs. 41.00 million) valued at net realisable
value of Rs. 1,312.18 million (2019: Rs. 36.10 million).

2020 2019
Note —  Rupees
8. TRADE DEBTS
Trade debts 81 700,436,852 893,313,894
Less: Allowance for impairment of trade debts (30,851,995) (27145,820)

669,584,857 866,168,074

8.1 These include Rs. 452.46 million (2019: 467.01 million) receivable from NPPL against toll
manufacturing and sale of goods.

8.2 The ageing analysis of trade debts past due but not impaired is as follows:

2020 2019
Note —  Rupees
- Up to 3 months 7,288,436 37,114,960
-3 to 6 months 34,799,470 8,725,031
- 6 to 12 months 2,151,885 5103,525
- Over 1year 146,833 26,993,747
44,386,624 77,937,263
2020 2019
Note —  Rupees
9. LOANS AND ADVANCES - CONSIDERED GOOD
Current portion of long-term loans to employees 6 5,012,431 3,776,133
Advances to:
- employees 9.1 7,139,173 7,378,287
- suppliers 303,314,885 91,284,699
- against letter of credit 175,720,891 204,850,404

491,187,380 307,289,523

9.1 Advances to employees are provided to meet business expenses and are settled as and when the
expenses are incurred.

2020 2019
Note — Rupees
10. TRADE DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
Deposits - considered good 4,838,488 9,633,060
Prepayments 38,109,003 50,400,996

42,947,491 60,034,056
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1. REFUNDS DUE FROM GOVERNMENT

These represent sales tax refundable due from Government which are considered good.

Note
12. OTHER RECEIVABLES
Due from associated companies 12.1
Workers' Profits Participation Fund 12.4
Others 12.5

12.1 Due from associated companies - considered good

GlaxoSmithKline Pakistan Limited
GlaxoSmithKline Services Unlimited

2020 2019
Rupees

o 387,937,558
25,765,570 -
307,973,248 288,696,264

333,738,818 676,633,822

o 387,356,336
o 581,222

o 387,937,558

12.2 The maximum aggregate amount due from related parties at the end of any month during the

year was Rs. 567.74 million (2019: Rs. 748.33 million).

12.3 As at December 31, 2020, the age analysis of these related parties receivables are:

Note
Upto 3 months
124  Workers' Profits Participation Fund
Opening balance (liability) / asset 18
Allocation for the year 26

Payment to the fund
Closing balance asset / (liability)

12.5 This includes receivables against annual volume bonus.

Note

13. BANK BALANCES

With banks:

- in deposit accounts (other financial asset at amortised cost) 13.1
- in PLS savings account 13.1

- in current accounts [including foreign currency account
Rs.1.99 million (2019: Rs. 8.61 million)]

m GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Ltd.

2020 2019
Rupees
- 387,937,558
(3,488,937) 10,501,694
(96,428,932) (92,118,533)
125,683,439 78,127,902
25,765,570 (3,488,937)
2020 2019
Rupees

1,300,000,000 500,000,000
561,897,202 1,911,363

270,152,415 141,329,480

2,132,049,617 643,240,843




13.1 At December 31, 2020 the rates of mark-up on term deposit accounts and on PLS savings account
were 5.5% to 6.5% (2019: 13%) per annum and 6.25% to 6.3% (2019: 8% to 11.25%) per annum
respectively. The TDRs has a maturity date of January 04, 2021 and January 07, 2021.

14. SHARE CAPITAL

2020 2019 2020 2019
Number of shares —  Rupees

Authorised share capital

200,000,000 200,000,000 oOrdinary shares of Rs. 10 each 2,000,000,000 2,000,000,000
2020 2019 2020 2019
Number of shares Note —— Rupees

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each

10,000 10,000 fully paid in cash 100,000 100,000
For consideration other than
95,540,183 95,540,183 cash under the Scheme 11 955,401,830 955,401,830
For consideration other than
21,504,325 21,504,325 cash under the Scheme of Merger 14 215,043,250 215,043,250
117,054,508 117,054,508 1,170,545,080  1170,545,080

14.1 As at December 31, 2020, GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare B.V. and its nominees held
100,423,259 shares (2019: 100,423,259 shares).

14.2 The Company has one class of ordinary shares which carry no rights to fixed income. The holders
of shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote
per share at the meeting of the Company. All shares rank equally with regard to the Company's
residual assets.

2020 2019
Note ——————— Rupees
15. RESERVES
Capital reserves:
- Reserve arising under the Scheme of Arrangement 1.1 101,913,533 101,913,533
- Reserve arising on amalgamation under the Scheme of Merger 15.1 728,725,969 728,725,969
Revenue reserve - unappropriated profit 3,162,743,897 2,499,419,353

3,993,383,399 3,330,058,855

15.1 This represents reserve arising from merger of GSK OTC with and into the Company effective from
January 01, 2018 (refer note 1.4).
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16. STAFF RETIREMENT BENEFITS

16.1 Funded gratuity scheme

16.1.1 The Company operates an approved funded gratuity scheme for all its eligible employees.
Actuarial valuation of the Plan is carried out every year and the latest actuarial valuation was carried

out as of December 31, 2020 using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

16.1.2 Plan assets held in trust are governed by local regulations which mainly include Trust Act, 1882;
the Companies Act, 2017; Income Tax Rules, 2002 and the Rules under the trust deeds. Responsibility
for governance of the Plans, including investment decisions and contribution schedules, rests with the
Board of Trustees. The Company appoints the trustees and all trustees are employees of the Company.

16.1.3 Details of the Plan as per the actuarial valuation are as follows:

16.14 Statement of financial position reconciliation

Present value of defined benefit obligation
Fair value of plan assets

Deficit

16.1.5 Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligation
Balance at January 1
Benefits paid during the year
Current service cost
Interest cost
Remeasurement loss on obligation
Balance transferred (from) / to GSK Pakistan
Balance at December 31

16.1.6  Movement in the fair value of plan assets
Balance at January 1
Contributions made during the year
Benefits paid during the year
Interest income
Remeasurement (loss) / gain on plan assets
Balance at December 31

16.1.7 Expense recognised in statement of profit or loss

Current service cost
Net interest cost

16.1.8 Remeasurements recognised in other comprehensive income

Remeasurement loss on obligation arising due to change in:
Experience adjustment

Financial assumptions

Remeasurement loss / (gain) on plan assets

16.1.9. Net recognised liability
Net liability at beginning of the year
Expense recognised in statement of profit or loss
Contribution made to the Plan during the year
Remeasurements recognised in other comprehensive income

Recognised liability as at December 31

E GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Ltd.

Note

16.1.5
16.1.6

16.1.15

16.1.15

2020 2019
Rupees

194,808,835 156,520,711
(106,779,812) (102,855,608)
88,029,023 53,665,103
156,520,711 108,057,269
(21,309,199) (5,506,844)
34,623,446 26,802,681
20,355,681 16,115,007
12,673,135 10,307,717
(8,054,939) 744,881
194,808,835 156,520,711
102,855,608 70,421,819
25,926,250 28,723,735
(21,309,199) (5,506,844)
13,452,591 7.438,788
(6,090,499) 1,033,229
(8,054,939) 744,881
106,779,812 102,855,608
34,623,446 26,802,681
6,903,090 8,676,219
41,526,536 35,478,900
2,541,444 11,092,541
10,131,691 (784,824)
6,090,499 (1,033,229)
18,763,634 9,274,488
53,665,103 37,635,450
41,526,536 35,478,900
(25,926,250) (28,723,735)
18,763,634 9,274,488
88,029,023 53,665,103




16.1.10 Detail of plan assets

Plan assets of the Company comprise of the following:

2019 2018
Note Rupees % Rupees %
Pakistan Investment Bonds 42,123,967 39% 44,317,046 43%
Regular Income Certificates 25,613,282 24% 24,266,800 24%
- Defence Saving Certificates 21,652,715 20% 21,652,715 21%
- Term Finance Certificates 7,388,164 7% - 0%
- Bank balances 6,202,164 6% 11,874,166 1%
. Others 16.1.10.1 3,799,520 4% 744,881 1%
106,779,812 100% 102,855,608 100%
16.1.10.1 This includes investments in equity instruments.
2020 2019
. ° o . . % %
16.1.11 Significant actuarial assumptions
Discount rate 10.25 1.75
Future salary increases 10.25 11.75

16.1.12 Mortality was assumed to be based on SLIC (2001-05) Ultimate mortality tables rated down one year.
16.1.13 In case of the funded plans, investment positions are managed within an asset-liability
matching (ALM) framework that has been developed to achieve long-term investments that are in line
with the obligations under the retirement benefit plan. Within this framework, the ALM objective is to
match assets to the retirement benefit obligations by investing in long-term fixed interest securities
with maturities that match the benefit payments as they fall due.

16.1.14 The Company’s gratuity expense for the year ending December 31, 2021 is expected to be
Rs. 48.85 million.

16.1.15 During the current year, certain employees were transferred to GlaxoSmithKline Pakistan
Limited from the Company. Accordingly, their defined benefit obligations and related assets are
transferred to GlaxoSmithKline Pakistan gratuity fund.

16.2 Sensitivity analysis of the Company for actuarial assumptions

The Gratuity scheme exposes the entity to the following risks:

« Mortality risks:

The risk that the actual mortality experience is different. The effect depends on the beneficiaries’
service/age distribution and the benefit.

+ Investment risks:
The risk of the investment underperforming and not being sufficient to meet the liabilities.
- Final salary risks:

The risk that the final salary at the time of cessation of service is higher than what we assumed.
Since the benefit is calculated on the final salary, the benefit amount increases similarly.
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« Withdrawal risks:

The risk of higher or lower withdrawal experience than assumed. The final effect could go either way
depending on the beneficiaries’ service/age distribution and the benefit.

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is:

Impact on defined

benefit obligation
Changein Increasein Decreasein
assumption assumption assumption

Rupees
Discount rate 1% (18,936,221) 22,295,999
Future salary increases 1% 14,359,989 (12,693,537)

If longevity increases by 1year, the resultant increase in obligation is insignificant.

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other
assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions
may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant
actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated
with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied as when
calculating the gratuity liability recognised within the statement of financial position.

16.3 Experience adjustments 2020 2019
Loss / (gain) on obligation
(as percentage of plan obligation) 1.30% -0.50%
Loss / (gain) on plan assets
(as percentage of plan assets) 5.70% -1.00%

16.4 The weighted average duration of approved funded gratuity scheme for its permanent employees
is 10.52 years. (2019: 9.51 years).

16.5 Expected maturity analysis of undiscounted retirement benefit plan of the Company:

Less than Between Between Between Total
ayear 1-2years 2-5years 5-10years
Rupees
At December 31,2020 12,868,110 16,046,579 70,019,206 230,617,760 329,551,655
At December 31,2019 14,753,339 14,429,132 60,107,805 234,217,317 323,507,593
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17. DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred tax liability on taxable
temporary differences

Accelerated tax depreciation
and amortisation

Right-of-use assets - building

Deferred tax asset on deductible
temporary differences

Allowance for impairment of
trade debts

Lease liability

Provision for slow moving,
obsolete and damaged stock

Staff retirement benefits

December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019
Opening Closing Opening Closing
liability/ (fer",ae'i:{) liability/ liability/ (fek\‘/aerrz:{) liability/
(asset) (asset) (asset) (asset)
197,214,484 28,366,920 225,581,404 122,848,358 74,366,126 197,214,484
1,014,508 (448,775) 565,733 - 1,014,508 1,014,508
198,228,992 27,918,145 226,147,137 122,848,358  75380,634 198,228,992
(7,745,907) (1,054,302) (8,800,209) (824,753) (6,921154)  (7,745,907)
(1,072,561) 416,272 (656,289) - (1,072,561) (1,072,561)
(43121,390) 3,264,967 (39,856,423) (21,926,669) (21194,721)  (43]21,390)
(15,313,628) (9,795,731) (25,109,359) (10,391,680) (4,921,948)  (15,313,628)
(67,253,486) (7,168,794) (74,422,280) (33143102)  (34110,384) (67,253,486)
130,975,506 20,749,351 151,724,857 89705256 41270250 130,975,506

17.1 Charge of deferred tax has been allocated to the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as follows:

- taken to profit or loss for the year

Note

29

- taken to other comprehensive income being tax impact
of remeasurement loss on staff retirement benefits

2020 2019
Rupees
26,101,482 43,917,266
(5,352,131) (2,647,016)
20,749,351 41,270,250
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2020 2019

Note — Rupees

18. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Creditors:
- Associated companies 18.1 48,031,611 369,265,291
- Others 250,629,186 238,470,833
Bills payable:
- Associated companies 18.2 263,885,239 19,081,716
- Others 189,878,837 71,216,664
Accrued liabilities 18.3 2,502,990,755 1,390,080,621
Contract liabilities 18.4 442,748,225 290,693,482
Taxes deducted at source and payable to
statutory authorities 68,474,821 44,953 487
Workers' Welfare Fund 73,339,705 108,419,978
Workers' Profits Participation Fund 12.4 - 3,488,937
Sindh Services Sales tax 1,814,621 2,605,971
Central Research Fund 19,208,940 18,346,860
Payable to provident fund 562,615 -
Book overdraft 18.5 234,275,315 -
Others 59,682,037 43,167,116

4,155,521,907 2,599,790,956
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2020 2019

Rupees
18.1 Creditors include payable to the following associated companies:
GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Trading Services Limited - 51,170,271
GlaxoSmithKline Pakistan Limited 48,031,611 -
GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Health S.A. = 318,095,020

48,031,611 369,265,291

18.2 Bills payable include payable to the following associated companies:

GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Trading Services Limited 164,018,739 -
GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Health S.A. 99,078,115 -
GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Health Care Trading Limited - 18,313,673
GlaxoSmithKline Biologicals S.A. 788,385 768,043

263,885,239 19,081,716

18.3 This includes liability for share based compensation amounting to Rs. 57.31 million (2019: Rs. 46.45
million).

18.4 This includes advance from customers amounting to Rs. 262.29 million (2019: Rs. 165.88 million).

18.5 This balance represents book overdraft against the cheques issued but not yet presented. As per
arrangement with the bank, the payments to these cheques will be made by transferring balance from
the savings account as and when presented.

19 RUNNING FINANCE

As at December 31, 2020, the facility for running finance available from a bank amounted to Rs. 1.86
billion (2019: Rs. 1.84 billion). Rate of mark-up is one/three month KIBOR plus 0.3% to 1% (2019: one
month KIBOR plus 0.3% to 1%) per annum. The arrangement is secured by a Stand-by Letter of Credit
issued by the Company's parent.

20 UNPAID DIVIDEND

This includes part of final dividend for the year ended December 31, 2017, December 31, 2018 and
December 31, 2019 which remained unpaid to the Company's shareholders. Out of total amount of
unpaid dividend Rs. 1,398.83 million pertains to the Company's foreign shareholder GlaxoSmithKline
Consumer Healthcare B.V. The dividend repatriation requires approval from the State Bank of Pakistan
which is in process.
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21. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
21.1 Contingencies
21.11 Income tax

21.1.1.1 GlaxoSmithKline OTC (Private) Limited (now GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan
Limited) received a notice issued under section 161(1A) / 205 of the Income tax Ordinance, 2001
(Ordinance) for tax year 2017 whereby the authorities alleged that the Company did not deduct /
withhold / collect tax on certain expenses and intended to recover Rs. 19.35 million along with default
surcharge of Rs. 2.32 million. Subsequent to the show cause notice, the authorities passed the order
dated January 30, 2019, raising demand of Rs. 4.43 million (inclusive of default surcharge Rs. 436,215
and penalty Rs. 363,512). Against the order, the Company has filed appeal before Commissioner Inland
Revenue (Appeals) (CIRA) which is pending adjudication.

21.1.1.2 As a result of monitoring proceedings of withholding taxes for tax year 2017, the Assessing
Officer (AO) has issued order and raised the demand of Rs.15.04 million (inclusive of default surcharge
Rs. 2,694,502 and penalty Rs. 1,122,709) on account of non-withholding of tax on certain expenses
including meeting and symposia under section 156 of the Ordinance. The CIRA, through his order
dated October 31, 2019, has confirmed demand related to Travelling and Legal & Professional expenses
whereas the demand related to publication & subscription, advertisement, vehicle running expenses
and fixed asset has been set-aside or deleted by CIRA. The company filed an appeal before Appellate
Tribunal Inland Revenue which is pending adjudication.

21.1.1.3 During the year ended December 31, 2020, the AO amended the assessment of the Company
and passed an order under section 122(5A) of the Ordinance raising demand of Rs. 80.45 million. Such
demand is on account of Apportionment of various expenditures, Non declaration of FTR receipts of
imports, Intercompany loan of Rs.1,000 million added back, stock written off and provision for
obsolete stock. The Company has filed an appeal against the said order before Commissioner Inland
Revenue Appeals which is due for hearing and has also obtained stay order from Honourable Sindh
High Court against any recovery proceedings.

The management is confident that the ultimate decisions in the above cases will be in favour of the
Company, hence, no provision has been made in respect of the aforementioned tax demands.

21.2 Sales tax

21.2.1 The Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR), LTU-II, Karachi, passed the Order-in-Original,
dated November 28, 2018, to establish sales tax demand aggregating to Rs. 27.53 million on various
issues mainly on the admissibility of input tax covering the tax periods from July 2016 to June 2018.
The Company made under protest payment of the principal amount of sales tax at Rs. 21.89 million
which included default surcharge amounting Rs. 4.24 million. Further, the Company filed the appeal
before the CIRA, challenging the input tax claims as treated inadmissible and levies of the default
surcharge and penalty.
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21.2.2 The Assistant Commissioner Inland Revenue passed the order dated July 04, 2019 demanding
sales tax of Rs. 5.76 million (inclusive of default surcharge Rs. 634,570 and penalty Rs. 244,066) relating
to inadmissibility of input tax in tax periods from July 2018 to December 2018. The Company has filed
an appeal against the said order before the CIRA which is pending adjudication.

21.2.3 During the year ended December 31, 2020, Assistant Commissioner - Sindh Revenue Board
raised a demand of Rs. 190.56 million (including default surcharge Rs. 92,955,448 and penalty Rs.
4,647,772) in respect of the year ended December 31, 2016. Such demand is on account of
non-withholding of Sindh Sales Tax on certain transactions under various heads of expenses such as
transport, advertisement and third-party manufacturing services. The Company has filed an appeal
against the said order before CIRA which is due for hearing and has also obtained stay order from
Honourable Sindh High Court against any recovery proceedings.

The management is confident that the ultimate decisions in the above cases will be in favour of the
Company, hence, no provision has been made in respect of the aforementioned tax demands.

2.3 Commitments

21.3.1 The facilities for opening letters of credit and guarantees as at December 31, 2020, amounted to
Rs. 1,061 million (2019: Rs. 1,068 million) and Rs. 110 million (2019: Rs. 110 million) respectively of which
the amount remaining unutilised at year end was Rs. 136 million (2019: Rs. 879 million) and Rs. 70
million (2019: Rs. 82 million) respectively.

21.3.2 Commitments for capital expenditure outstanding as at December 31, 2020, amounted to Rs.
400.07 million (2019: Rs. 238.78 million).

21.3.3 As at December 31, 2020, commitments for rentals under ijarah arrangements amounted to Rs.
Nil (2019: Rs. 7.47 million) as it is fully settled in the current year.

2020 2019
Note ———— Rupees

Not later than 1year - 5,882,324
Later than 1year but not later than 5 years - 1,584,832

- 7,467,156
22. REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS - NET
Gross sales
- Local 221/222 20,703,883,426 17,065,525,084
- Export 248,676,217 332,139,336
Less:
Commissions, returns and discounts (480,079,217) (455,542,191)
Sales tax (626,374,226) (625,377,680)

(1,106,453,443) (1,080,919,871)

19,846,106,200 16,316,744,549
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22.1 This includes sales amounting to Rs. 1.66 billion (2019: Rs. 7.06 billion) made by GSK Pakistan on
behalf of the Company (refer note 1.2).

22.2 This includes sales amounting to Rs. 2.25 billion and 6.5 billion (2019: 1.86 billion and 5.9 billion) to
NPPL and Premier Agencies respectively.

2020 2019
Note — Rupees

23. COST OF SALES

Raw and packing materials consumed 8,793,734,946 3,977,320,378
Manufacturing costs charged by third parties 1,763,848,417 304,187,722
Stores and spares consumed 80,492,604 70,896,707
Salaries, wages and other benefits 231 774,553,915 604,849,265
Fuel and power 182,494,627 158,559,169
Rent, rates and taxes 28,190,783 68,438,417
Insurance 33,402,517 33,135,219
Repairs and maintenance 268,094,656 165,039,332
Travelling and entertainment 10,239,153 19,790,003
Vehicle running 6,665,346 5,474,624
Ujrah payments 4,022,052 5,685,597
Canteen expenses 68,212,530 56,205,889
Security expenses 15,073,374 17,770,627
Printing and stationery 7,459,094 6,454,939
Communication and entertainment 4,953,220 6,600,496
Depreciation 213,218,347 190,199,666
Handling, freight and transportation 51,322,123 19,977,697
Stock written-off 49,044,017 28,125,665
Provision for slow moving, obsolete and damaged stock 148,614,146 102,504,855
Provision for impairment of capital work-in-progress 4.4 = 22,500,000
Others 86,553,049 76,064,939

12,590,188,916  5,939,781,206

Add: Opening stock of work-in-process 35,441,780 18,643,062
Less: Closing stock of work-in-process (14,374,923) (35,441,780)
Cost of goods manufactured 12,611,255,773 5,922,982,488
Add: Opening stock of finished goods 1,392,293,893 1,366,678,049
Add: Purchase of finished goods 1,957,186,873  5,433,310,426

15,960,736,539 12,722,970,963

Less: Closing stock of finished goods (1,442,493,038) (1,392,293,893)

14,518,243,501 11,330,677,070

23.1 Salaries, wages and other benefits include Rs. 23.13 million (2019: Rs. 17.28 million) and Rs. 20.08
(2019: Rs. 17.69 million) in respect of defined benefit plans and contributory provident fund
respectively.
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2020 2019
Note — Rupees

24, SELLING, MARKETING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES
Salaries, wages and other benefits 241 526,597,460 407,278,374
Sales promotion 671,314,132 838,704,762
Advertising 1,380,441,609 979,969,106
Handling, freight and transportation 348,825,107 292,335,731
Travelling and entertainment 27,706,323 72,950,188
Depreciation 31,700,910 31,933,521
Vehicle running 17,247,320 17,564,879
Allowance for impairment of trade debts 3,706,175 23,929,083
Repairs and maintenance 9,118,770 7,785,001
Insurance 1,777,578 1,402,093
Printing and stationery 1,470,525 2,743,599
Security expenses 2,177,703 4,185,624
Shared services cost 24.2 61,551,993 52,419,096
Other expenses 14,803,472 6,441,103

3,098,439,077 2,739,642,160

24.1 Salaries, wages and other benefits include Rs. 15.34 million (2019: Rs. 14.63 million) and Rs. 14.78
million (2019: Rs. 12.55 million) in respect of defined benefit plan and contributory provident fund

respectively.

24.2 These represent cost reimbursements to GSK Pakistan in respect of costs of various functions /

services provided to the Company under a cost sharing agreement.

2020 2019
Note —  Rupees

25. Administrative expenses
Salaries, wages and other benefits 251 125,211,374 17,251,540
Depreciation 23,492,979 9,267,726
Legal and professional charges 19,639,313 35,922,858
Travelling and entertainment 2,662,228 16,891,449
Repairs and maintenance 6,935,687 4,960,326
Auditors’ remuneration 252 6,128,853 5,930,500
Vehicle running 1,815,550 4,823,814
Publication and subscriptions 6,300,106 1,931,006
Insurance 8,028,169 3,475,328
Printing and stationery 1,629,727 4,772,739
Service fees 12 12,000,000 12,000,000
Ujrah payments 2,362,157 3,357,676
Shared services cost 24.2 44,546,915 48,897,192
Donations 253 6,390,000 E
Others 22,616,209 13,879,032

289,759,267 283,361,186

25.1 Salaries, wages and other benefits include Rs. 3.16 million (2019: Rs. 3.15 million) and Rs. 0.58 million
(2019: Rs. 2.72 million) in respect of defined benefit plan and contributory provident fund respectively.
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25.2

Auditors' remuneration

Audit fee

Fee for limited review of half yearly financial statements

and other certifications
Out-of-pocket expenses

2020 2019
Rupees
3,392,900 3,392,900
2,335,000 2,185,000
400,953 352,600
6,128,853 5,930,500

25.3 Donations to a single party exceeding 10% of total donations i.e. Rs. 6.39 million are as follows:

26.

27.

174

Al-Khidmat Foundation Pakistan
Green Crescent Trust
Pakistan Association of the Deaf

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
Workers' Profits Participation Fund

Workers' Welfare Fund
Central Research Fund

OTHER INCOME
Income from financial assets

Return on deposit accounts
Income on savings accounts

Income from non-financial asset

Gain on disposal of operating assets - net
Others

Insurance claim recovery

Insurance commission

Scrap sales
Other

GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Ltd.

Note

12.4

2020 2019
Rupees

1,500,000 -
4,140,000 -
750,000 -
6,390,000 -
96,428,932 92,118,533
38,571,573 32,050,428
19,285,786 18,423,706
154,286,291 142,592,667
2,033,623 16,650,140
30,057,846 2,497,152
1,525,926 7,907,067
= 3,905,469
= 5,451,394
13,305,076 10,562,260
- 24,698,057
46,922,471 71,671,539




28. FINANCIAL CHARGES
Interest on running finance
Exchange loss - net
Bank charges
Interest on lease liability

29. TAXATION - NET
Current

- for the year

- for prior year
Deferred

29.1 Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit
Profit before taxation

Applicable tax rate

Tax calculated at applicable tax rate

Impact of taxability at Final Tax Regime

Effect of prior year tax

Effect of tax credits
Tax effect of other than temporary differences

30. EARNINGS PER SHARE
Profit after taxation (Rupees)
Weighted average number of outstanding shares (Numbers)

Earnings per share (Rupees)

27,034,313 116,019,713
20,940,997 68,470,704
9,723,270 7,212,785
309,601 661,835
58,008,181 192,365,037
469,425,076 441,401,792
16,757,209 (43,059,900)
26,101,482 43,917,266
512,283,767 442,259,158
1,774,292,354  1,699,777,968
29% 29%
514,544,783 492,935,611
31,067,188 28,419,419
16,757,209 (43,059,900)
(51,930,368) (57,645,438)
1,844,955 21,609,466
512,283,767 442,259,158
2020 2019

1,262,008,587

117,054,508

1,257,518,810

117,054,508

10.78

10.74
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30.1 A diluted earnings per share has not been presented as the Company did not have any convertible
instruments in issue as at December 31, 2020 and 2019 which would have any effect on the earnings

per share if the option to convert is exercised.

Note

31. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
Profit before taxation
Add / (less): Adjustments for non-cash charges and other items

Depreciation and amortization
Interest expense
Gain on disposal of operating assets
Interest income
Provision for slow moving, obsolete
and damaged stock - net of stock written off
Allowance for impairment of trade debts
Provision for impairment of capital work-in-progress
Provision for staff retirement benefits

Profit before working capital changes
Effect on cash flow due to working capital changes
(Increase) / decrease in current assets

Stores and spares

Inventories

Trade debts

Loans and advances

Trade deposits and prepayments
Refunds due from Government
Other receivables

Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities

Trade and other payables

32. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Bank balances 13
Running finance 19
Book overdraft 18.5

176 GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Ltd.

2020

2019

Rupees

1,774,292,354

1,699,777,968

268,412,236 231,400,913
37,067,184 123,894,333
(1,525,926) (7,907,067)
(32,091,469) (19,147,292)
197,658,163 130,630,520
3,706,175 23,929,083

= 22,500,000

77,060,921 67,944,287
550,287,284 573,244,777
2,324,579,638  2,273,022,745
(9,465,957) (4,489,669)
(330,755,525) (668,393,915)
192,877,042 (135,234,181)
(183,897,857) (45,456,777)
17,086,565 17,451,484
(15,218,763) 90,167,445
342,895,004 (62,475,109)
13,520,509 (808,430,722)
1,320,893,021 643,100,736
1,334,413,530 (165,329,986)
3,658,993,168 2,107,692,759
2,132,049,617 643,240,843
- (763,579,563)
(234,275,315) -
1,897,774,302 (120,338,720)




Unpaid dividend

2020 2019
Rupees
33. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Balance as at January O1 904,375,661 399,847,871
Non cash changes - dividend declared 585,272,540 585 272 540
Financing cash outflows (79,951,144) (80,744,750)
Balance as on December 31 1,409,697,057 904.375.661

34. SEGMENT INFORMATION

34.1 For management purposes, the activities of the Company are organised into one operating
segment i.e. consumer healthcare segment. The Company operates in the said reportable operating
segment based on the nature of the products, risks and returns, organisational and management
structure and internal financial reporting systems. Accordingly, the figures reported in these financial
statements are related to the Company’s only reportable segment.

35. REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTOR AND EXECUTIVES

The amounts charged in these financial statements for remuneration of the Chief Executive, Director
and Executives are as follows:

Chief Executive Director Executives
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
Rupees

Managerial remuneration 28,395,798 26,160,711 7,405,054 6,875,298 182,116,169 158,778,754

Bonus - note 35.2 10,687,353 10,763,331 7,169,841 7,862,542 56,413,254 85,617,114
Retirement benefits* g - 1,497,302 1,394,998 34,769,611 30,586,254
House rent - - 3,332,274 3,093,885 76,504,583 67,622,361
Utilities - - 740,506 687,528 17,001,047 15,074,534
Medical expenses - 76,164 26,667 53,043 4,257,291 3,600,965
Others 911,387 1,529,620 1,723,636 1,787,370 52,847,127 38,231,363

39,994,538 38,529,826 21,895,280 21,754,664 423,909,082 399,511,345
Number of person 1 1 2* 1 74 60

* Retirement benefits represent amount contributed towards various retirement benefit plans.

** During the year, Mr. Talal Ahmed resigned on October 15, 2020 and Mr. Dilawar Meghani was
appointed as Finance Director on October 15, 2020.

35.1 In addition to the above, fee paid to 4 (2019: 2) non-executive directors for attending Board of
Directors meetings during the year amounted to Rs. 1.98 million (2019: Rs. 1.20 million).

35.2 Bonus includes share based payments as Share Appreciation Rights (SARs) given to the Chief

Executive, Executive Director and Executives amounting to Rs. 45.07 million (2019: Rs. 61.05 million).
These are granted every year and are payable upon completion of three years of qualifying period of
service. These are linked with the share value of ultimate parent company, GlaxoSmithKline plc, UK.
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Chief Executive and Executive Director are also provided with free use of Company maintained cars in
accordance with the Company policy.

36. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The related parties include holding company, associated companies, directors of the Company,
companies where directors also hold directorship and key management personnel of the Company.
The transactions with related parties are carried out in the normal course of business at contracted
rates. Details of transactions with related parties and balances with them at year end, other than those
which have been disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, are as follows:

Relationship Nature of transactions 2020 2019
—  Rupees

Associated

companies: a. Purchase of goods 2,730,156,967 6,414,715,779
b. Service fees charged by GlaxoSmithKline Pakistan Limited 12,000,000 12,000,000
c. Expenses cross charged by GlaxoSmithKline Pakistan Limited 106,098,908 101,316,288

Staff retirement

funds: a. Payments to retirement benefit plans 60,898,020 61,189,122

Key management a. Salaries and other employee benefits 144,140,640 155,151,698

personnel: b. Post employment benefits 8,400,745 14,658,388

36.1 Balances of related parties as at December 31, 2020, are included in the respective notes to the
financial statements. The receivables and payables are mainly unsecured in nature and bear no
interest.

36.2 Details of related parties

S.No Company Country of Registered Basis of Aggregate % of
Name incorporation address association shareholding
1 GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Netherlands Huis ter Heideweg 62, Holding 85.79%
Healthcare B.V. 3705 LZ, Zeist Company
2 GlaxoSmithKline Consumer England 980 GCreat West Road, Associated N/A
Healthcare (UK) Trading Limited Brentford, Middlesex, company
TW8 9GS
3 GlaxoSmithKline Biologicals SA Belgium Rue de I'Institut 89, B-1330 Associated N/A
Rixensart, Belgium company
4 GlaxoSmithKline Consumer England 980 Great West Road, Associated N/A
Trading Services Limited Brentford, Middlesex, company
TW8 9GS
5 GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Switzerland Route de I'Etraz, Case Associated N/A
Healthcare S.A Postale 1279, 1260 Nyon 1 company
6 Archroma Pakistan Limited Pakistan Plot # 1-A/1, Sector 20,Korangi Associated N/A

Industrial Area, Karachi, Pakistan = company

v GlaxoSmithKline Pakistan Limited Pakistan 35 - Dockyard Road, Associated N/A
West Wharf, Karachi company

37. PLANT CAPACITY AND ACTUAL PRODUCTION

The capacity and production of the Company's plants are indeterminable as these are multi-product
and involve varying processes of manufacture.
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38.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 2020 2019
Rupees

38.1 Financial assets as per statement of financial position
Financial assets measured at amortised cost
- Loans to employees 14,272,132 14,369,440
- Advances and deposits 203,838,348 234,854,147
- Trade debts 669,584,857 866,168,074
- Interest accrued 640,574 178,082
- Other receivables 307,973,248 676,633,822
- Bank balances 2,132,049,617 643,240,843

3,328,358,776  2,435444,408
2020 2019
Note Rupees

38.2 Financial liabilities as per statement of financial position
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
- Trade and other payables 3,291,016,369 1,946,083,364
- Running finance 19 - 763,579,563
- Accrued mark-up 2,768,521 25,874,258
- Unpaid dividend 1,409,697,057 904,375,661
- Lease liability 2,300,837 3,758,829

4,705,782,784  3,643,671,675

38.2.1 The management expects to settle the above liabilities within one year.

38.3 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities
(@) Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability

in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Company is a going concern without
any intention or requirement to curtail materially the scale of its operations or to undertake a

transaction on adverse terms.

(b) Fair value estimation

The Company discloses the financial instruments carried at fair value in the statement of financial

position in accordance with the following fair value hierarchy:

« Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
« Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices).

« Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data

(unobservable inputs).
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As at December 31, 2020, the Company does not have any financial instruments carried at fair values
which are measured using methods falling under above categories, and the carrying values of financial
assets and financial liabilities approximate their fair values at the reporting date.

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
39.1 Financial risk factors
Introduction and overview
The Company has exposure to the following risks from financial instruments:

- market risk
- credit risk
- liquidity risk

This note presents information about the Company's exposure to each of the above risks, Company's
objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, fair value of financial instruments
and the Company's management of capital.

Financial risk factors and risk management framework

The Company'’s overall risk management programme focuses on having cost effective funding as well
as to manage financial risk to minimize earnings volatility and provide maximum return to
shareholders.

The Company's objective in managing risk is the creation and protection of shareholders' value. Risk is
inherent in Company's activities but it is managed through monitoring and controlling activities which
are based on limits established by the internal controls set on different activities of the Company by
the Board of Directors. These controls and limits reflect the business strategy and market environment
of the Company as well as the level of the risk that the Company is willing to accept.

The Company'’s finance and treasury department oversees the management of the financial risk
reflecting changes in the market conditions and also the Company's risk taking activities, and provide
assurance that these activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that the
financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company's policies and
risk appetite.

(a) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument may fluctuate as a result of changes in
market interest rates, foreign exchange rates or the equity prices due to a change in credit rating of the
issuer or the instrument, change in market sentiments, speculative activities, supply and demand of
securities and liquidity in the market. There has been no change in the Company's exposure to market
risk or the manner in which this risk is managed and measured.

Under market risk the Company is exposed to currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk
(equity price risk).

(i) Currency risk
Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The liability is mainly denominated in US Dollars. Net
payables exposed to foreign currency risk as at December 31, 2020, amount to Rs. 263.89 million (2019:
Rs. 387.77 million).
At December 31,2020, if the Pakistan Rupee had weakened / strengthened by 5% against the US
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Dollar with all other variables held constant, profit before tax for the year would have been lower /
higher by Rs. 13.19 million (2019: Rs. 19.39 million), mainly as a result of foreigh exchange losses / gains
on translation of US Dollar-denominated trade payables, trade debts and bank balances.

(ii) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

The Company’s interest rate risk arises from balances held in savings account with banks and running
finance. These are benchmarked to variable rates which exposes the Company to cash flow interest
rate risk only.

Carrying amount

2020 2019
Rupees
Fixed rate instruments
Financial assets
- bank balance on deposit accounts 1,300,000,000 500,000,000
Variable rate instruments
Financial assets
- bank balance on PLS savings account 561,897,202 1,911,363
Financial liabilities
- running finance 19 - 763,579,563

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss. Therefore, a change in interest rate at the reporting date would not affect profit or loss.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instrument

A change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the year end would have increased or decreased the
profit for the year and shareholder's equity by Rs. 5.62 million (2019: Rs. 7.62 million). This analysis
assumes that all other variables remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis as for 2019.

(iii) Equity price risk
Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from currency risk or interest rate risk),
whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its
issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.

As at December 31, 2020, there are no equity investments of the Company measured at fair value,
hence no equity price risk exists.

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and
cause the other party to incur a financial loss, without taking into account the fair value of any
collateral. Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of counter parties are engaged in similar
business activities or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual
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obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions.
Concentration of credit risk indicates the relative sensitivity of the Company's performance to
developments affecting a particular industry.

Credit risk arises from balances with banks , trade debts, loans, advances, deposits and other
receivables. The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counter parties are banks with
reasonably high credit rating.

2020 2019
Rupees
Loans to employees, interest accrued and other receivables 322,885,954 691,181,344
Trade debts 669,584,857 866,168,074
Advances and deposits 203,838,348 228,357,949
Bank balances 2,132,049,617 643,240,843

3,328,358,776 2,428,948,210

As at December 31, 2020, the Company's greatest concentration of credit risk was in trade debts;
amounted to Rs. 598.31 million and Rs. 117.73 million with NPPL and Premier Agencies respectively.

Trade debts of the Company are not exposed to significant credit risk as the Company trades with
credit worthy third parties. Trade debts of Rs. 75.24 million (2019: Rs. 105.09 million) are past due of
which Rs. 30.85 million (2019: Rs. 27.15 million) have been provided for. Past due but not provided for
balances include Rs. 37.10 million (2019: Rs. 40.82 million) outstanding for more than three months.
Trade debts are written off when the company do not have realistic prospect of recovery.

Loans to employees are secured against their retirement benefits.

The credit quality of Company's bank balances can be assessed with reference to external credit
ratings as follows:

Bank Date of Rating Rating

rating agency Short term Long term
Citibank N.A. March, 2019 Moody's P-1 AA3
Standard Chartered Bank (Pakistan) Limited December, 2019 PACRA Al+ AAA

Trade receivables are grouped into customer segments that have similar loss patterns to assess credit
risk while other financial assets are assessed individually. Historical and forward - looking information
is considered to determine the appropriate expected credit loss allowance, the Company believes that
there is no further credit risk provision required in excess of the allowance for expected credit losses
already recognised.

Settlement risk

Settlement risk is the risk of loss due to the failure of an entity to honour its obligations to deliver cash
or other assets as contractually agreed on sale. The risk is addressed more or less in accordance with
the parameters set out in the credit risk management above.

(c) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk represents the risk that the Company will encounter difficulties in meeting obligations
associated with financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.
Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities,

the availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities. Due to dynamic
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nature of the business the Company maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining committed credit
lines available.

The Company'’s liquidity management involves projecting cash flows and considering the level of
liquid assets necessary to meet the monitoring of liquidity ratios and maintaining debt financing
plans. As at year end, all the financial liabilities are due within one year.

40. PROVIDENT FUND RELATED DISCLOSURE

The investments out of the Funds have been made in accordance with the provisions of Section 218 of
the Companies Act, 2017 and the rules formulated for this purpose.

41. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES 2020 2019

Number of employees including 492 497
contractual employees at the end of year

Average number of employees including 489 476
contractual employees during the year

42, CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company's ability to continue
as a going concern so that it can continue to provide adequate returns for shareholders and benefits
for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Company finances its operations through equity, borrowings and management of working capital
with a view to maintain appropriate mix between various sources of finance to minimise risk. The
Company calculates debt to capital ratio by dividing borrowings with equity as at year end.

The debt to capital ratio as at December 31, 2020 is Nil (2019: 0.03).

43, BUSINESS UNITS - GEOGRAPHICAL LOCATION AND ADDRESSES

Business units Addresses
Factory Petaro Road, Jamshoro, Pakistan
Distribution / Sales offices - North Sales Office - Aleem House, Plot no. 409, Sector I-9,

Industrial Area, Islamabad - 54000
Central Sales Office - 880-B, Faisal Town, Lahore - 54700

Warehouses and storage - Connect Logistics (Private) Limited - Plot no. 73 B,C,D,
facilities Main Mauripur Road, Hawks bay Phase 2, Karachi, Pakistan

Emirates Supply Chain Services (Private) Limited - 46 KM,
Multan Road, Nathy Khalsa, Manga Mandi, Lahore Pakistan

Emirates Supply Chain Services (Private) Limited - Plot no. 409,
Sector I-9, Industrial Area, Islamabad, Pakistan

Glaciers (Private) Limited - Bahawalpur Bypass, Gopal Purrah, Multan,
Pakistan

Jamshoro - Petaro Road, Jamshoro, Pakistan

Plot B-3, SITE, Kotri
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L4, SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Board of Directors in its meeting held on March 05, 2021 proposed a cash dividend of Rs. 5 per
share (2019: Rs. 5 per share) amounting to Rs. 585.27 million (2019: Rs. 585.27 million) subject to the
approval of the members in the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

45, CORRESPONDING FIGURES

Corresponding figures have been reclassified in these financial statements, wherever necessary to
facilitate the comparison and to conform with changes and presentation in the current year. However,
no significant reclassifications were made in the financial statements.

46. DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of the
Company on March 05, 2021.

%- 2 A LA A T

Chief Financial Officer Director Chief Executive Officer
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SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS

Share Price Sensitivity

Share price of GSK CH is affected by a combination of internal and external factors. The various factors
that impact the share price are Company’s performance, economic events and circumstances, political
environment, interest rates and the product demand and supply, etc. In 2020, the highest share price
was recorded at Rs. 330.03 whereas the lowest price was recorded at Rs. 199.56. The closing price
recorded at 31st December 2020 was Rs. 265.13.

Market Capitalization Sensitivity

AAs at December 31,2020, GSK CH’'s market capitalization stood at Rs. 31,035 million. A consequent
change of 5% in the market price of the Company’s share would result in a change of Rs. 1,552 million
in the market capitalization.

Foreign Currency Sensitivity

At December 31, 2020, if the Pakistan Rupee had weakened / strengthened by 5% against the US
Dollar with all other variables held constant, profit before tax for the year would have been lower /
higher by Rs. 13.19 million (2019: Rs. 19.39 million), mainly as a result of foreign exchange losses / gains
on translation of US Dollar-denominated trade payables, trade debts and bank balances.

BUSINESS RATIONALE OF
MAJOR CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND PROJECTS

GSK CH prioritizes projects that adhere to and ensure structural integrity. The Company operates in a
dynamic environment which requires technological and manufacturing enhancements and therefore
requires allocation of the funds. With Board of directors' continuous oversight, the Company of
Directors continued to invest in the pivotal projects to ensure optimum utilisation of cash flow in
efficient manner.

The capital expenditure during the year included investment in the enhancement of the
Manufacturing Capacity for one of leading product worth Rs. 374 million. Further, to ensure the
optimum quality of our products, the Company spent Rs.126 million on quality related equipment.

The Company ensures a healthy, stable and secure working environment for all the employees of the
Company and for this reason, investments in the EHS equipment and tools were made of Rs. 68
million. Other investments for Electrical switchgear replacement were made at Jamshoro site to
replace High & Low Voltage Switchgear, Transformer along with related equipment of worth Rs. 36
million.
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A very significant project of the Company during the year was the implementation of SAP within the
commercial division which required capital investments to bring all of the GSK under single ERP and
aligned set of standards. This has led to an integrated system that enhanced efficiency, diminished
costs, increased sales and profitability but most importantly, enabled the Company to make accurate,
informed and strategic decisions.

SECMENTAL REVIEW

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker (CODM) who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing

performance of the operating segments. The management has determined that the Company has a
single reportable segment as the CODM views the Company's operations as one reportable segment.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

We are pleased to present the Annual Audit Committee’s report for the year ended 31 December 2020.

COMPOSITION OF THE COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises of three members, all of whom are Non-Executive Directors and two
of whom are Independent Directors. Syed Anwar Mahmood, the Chairman of the Committee,
graduated with honors in Economics and later obtained a master's degree in the same discipline.

Mr. M. Z. Moin Mohajir and Mr. Talal Ahmed Javed* are the other two members of the Audit
Committee and they are considered as “financially literate” as per the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019. A detailed profile of the directors is mentioned on page 54.

The Audit Committee members have extensive experience in the fields of Financial Management,
Accounting, Consumer Business operations, Economics and Business Management.

* Ms. Ayesha Aziz was appointed on 3 March 2021 as a Non-Executive Independent Director to fill the
casual vacancy created upon the resignation of Mr. Talal Javed Ahmed, Non-Executive Director

EVALUATION OF THE COMMITTEE

Evaluation of the committees of the Company is mentioned in detail on page 67.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE LISTED COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS,
2019

The Company has complied with the mandatory requirements specified under the Regulations.
The Committee would like to state that:

The Company has issued a Statement of Compliance with the Regulations which has also been
reviewed and certified by the external auditors of the Company

They have reviewed the effectiveness of the Ethics and Compliance function

The Company's Code of Conduct has been disseminated across the organization

The Committee reviewed the Annual Report and concluded that it is fair, balanced and
understandable.

The Committee reviewed the integrity of the financial statements, including annual reports,
half-year reports, and quarterly financial statements; and recommended them for approval of the
Board

These Financial statements present a true and fair view and provide all necessary information to
assess the Company'’s position and performance, business model and strategy. Further, the
committee has reviewed all related party transactions carried out during the year. Both were
subsequently approved by the board.

The Committee also reviewed the preliminary announcements of results prior to publication.
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TERMS OF REFERENCE OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Terms of Reference of the audit committee are mentioned in detail on pages 65.

INTERNAL AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT

Internal audit has a crucial part to play given its role of providing independent, objective assurance
related to the operating effectiveness of risk management, governance, and internal control processes
of the Company. During 2020, the Audit Committee took account of the impact of disruptions caused
by the pandemic, that indicated towards an event-driven reassessment of the audit risks. Hence, in
consultation with the Audit Committee the management revisited the Annual Internal Audit plan and
adjusted various audit activities given on-ground COVID-19 restrictions and new emerging audit risks.

EXTERNAL AUDIT

Given the shift in dynamics post COVID-19, the Audit Committee met the external auditors
without the presence of the management and discussed how their audit procedures were
affected or adjusted according to the new Control environment. Additionally, they also focused
on the external auditor's perspective regarding potential changes in audit risk, management’s
process for developing significant estimates related to the impact of COVID-19 and the resulting
impact on internal controls over financial reporting. Furthermore, the audit committee reviewed
the audit work that was performed over significant transactions or accounting judgments during
the interim and annual reporting period.

All internal audit reports were made available for review to the external auditors during the year
The external auditors Yousuf Adil Chartered Accountants have been engaged as the external
auditors of the Company and have completed their audit assignment and review of the
Statement of Compliance in line with the Listed Regulations. They shall retire as the auditors on
the conclusion of 6th Annual General Meeting

Being eligible for reappointment as auditors of the Company, the Audit Committee has
recommended the appointment of Yousuf Adil Chartered Accountants as external auditors of the
Company for the year ending 31 December 2021

The Company does not obtain any non-audit services from Deloitte Yousuf Adil, Chartered
Accountants.

The Audit Committee believes that it has carried out responsibilities to the full, in accordance with the
Terms of Reference approved by the Board and as stipulated under the Regulations.

Do

Syed Anwar Mehmood
Chairman Audit Committee
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INTEGRATED
REPORTING FRAMEWORK

An integrated report is a concise communication about how an’organisation’s strategy, governance,
performance and prospects, in the context of its external environment, lead to the creation ofwalue
over the short, medium and long term. It is to be prepared in accordance with the Integrated
Reporting Framework (the framework) issued by the International Integrated Reporting Council (lIRC).
The integrated reporting framework follows a principles based approach, including'the following
guiding principles:

- Strategic focus and future orientation . Connectivity of information
- Stakeholder relationships - Materiality - Conciseness - Reliability and
completeness - Consistency.and comparability

Integrated Report is to be presented by those charged with governance acknowledging the integrity
and compliance with the framework, including the following content:

- Organisational overview and external environment . Governance . Business model
- Risks and opportunities - Strategy and resource allocation - Performance
- Outlook . Basis of preparation and presentation.

At present, the requirement to publish an integrated report is not mandatory in Pakistan.

The Company is reviewing-the reporting requirements of an integrated report mandated by the local
authorities, so that compliance can be ensured timely, when required.

UNRESERVED STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

The management of the Company strongly believes in adherence to unreserved compliance with all
the applicable International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) and as adopted by SECP necessary for fair preparation and presentation of
financial information. Compliance to IFRS encourages sufficient disclosures of the financial statements
that are beneficial for informed decisions of stakeholders.

Financial statements for the year have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and
reporting standards issued by IASB as are applicable in Pakistan.

IFRS adoption/status is in detail is explained in note 2.6 of the annexed financial statements.
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STAKEHOLDERS'
INFORMATION

On 31 December 2020 there were 4,931 members on the record of the Company’s ordinary shares.
DIVIDEND PAYMENT

The Board of Directors of the Company has recommended 50% final dividend for the year ended
2020. The proposal shall be placed before the shareholders of the company in the Annual General
Meeting for their consideration and approval on 21 April 2021. The dividend, if approved by the
shareholders, shall be directly credited to their designated bank accounts to the shareholders listed in
the company’s share register at the close of business on 14 April 2021 and shall be subject to the zakat
and tax deductions as per law.

FINANCIAL CALENDAR

RESULTS

Q1-2020 Approved and Announced on 20 May 2020

Q2-2020 Approved and Announced on 26 August 2020

Q3-2020 Approved and Announced on 27 October 2020

YE 2020 Approved and Announced on 5 March 2021

DIVIDEND

Final Cash (2019) Approved on 21 May 2020
Entitlement date 14 May 2020
Statutory Limit up to which available 17 June 2020
Paid on 12 June 2020

6TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING TO BE HELD ON 21 April 2021
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GLAXOSMITHKLINE CONSUMER HEALTHCARE PAKISTAN LIMITED
PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDINGS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020

No. of Shareholders Having shares Total Shares Held
1,663 1 to 100 61,934
1,604 101 to 500 415,914

543 501 to 1000 422,200
775 1001 to 5000 1,760,814
166 5001 to 10000 1,205,768
63 10001 to 15000 786,378
27 15001 to 20000 467,057
20 20001 to 25000 448,067
13 25001 to 30000 354,413
9 30001 to 35000 292,699

7 35001 to 40000 259,801

3 40001 to 45000 129,286

4 45001 to 50000 195,500

4 50001 to 55000 210,037

6 55001 to 60000 353,661

1 60001 to 65000 65,000

4 65001 to 70000 271,500

1 70001 to 75000 73,359

1 75001 to 80000 77,065

2 80001 to 85000 165,900

1 90001 to 95000 90,774

1 95001 to 100000 96,327

1 110001 to 115000 112,500

1 145001 to 150000 148,200

1 165001 to 170000 169,390

1 250001 to 255000 254,043

1 255001 to 260000 257,700

1 360001 to 365000 364,656

1 385001 to 390000 389,040

1 420001 to 425000 421,200

1 1255001 to 1260000 1,258,657

1 2295001 to 2300000 2,299,405

1 2750001 to 2755000 2,753,004

1 21500001 to 21505000 21,504,325

1 78915001 to 78920000 78,918,934
4,931 117,054,508
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KEY SHAREHOLDING

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020

Categories of Shareholders Shareholders Shares Held Percentage
Directors and their spouse(s) and minor children
SOHAIL AHMED MATIN 1 1 0.00
SYED ANWAR MAHMOOD 1 1 0.00
MUHAMMAD ZINDAH MOIN MOHAJIR 1 330 0.00
SAMBREEN AHMED 1 1,300 0.00
Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties
GLAXOSMITHKLINE CONSUMER HEALTHCARE B.V. 2 100,423,259 85.79
NIT and ICP 3 15,549 0.01
Banks Development Financial Institutions,
Non-Banking Financial Institutions n 846,154 0.72
Insurance Companies 5 3,167,210 2.71
Modarabas and Mutual Funds 15 3,135,581 2.68
General Public
a. Local 4,747 6,556,942 5.60
b. Foreign 9 65,613 0.06
Foreign Companies 3 1,337,457 114
Others 132 1,505,111 1.29
4,931 117,054,508 100.00
Shareholders holding 10% or more Shares Held Percentage
GLAXOSMITHKLINE CONSUMER HEALTHCARE B.V. 100,423,259 85.79
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Members Having
5% or More of Voting Rights

No. of
Name of Shareholder(s) Shares Held Percentage
GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare B.V. 100,423,259 85.79%

TRADING IN SHARES
BY DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

No trading of shares has been conducted by any of the Directors and/or Executives of the Company
during the year 2020. All relevant disclosures and updates with regards to the same have been made
on a regular basis with accordance to the rules and law.

SHAREHOLDING POSITION /IBAN

Current Total Number of Current Number of Ratio/Percentage of
Shareholders ason IBAN updated ason IBAN updated
31 December 2020 31 December 2020
Name CDS Total Physical CDS Total %
85.79% 3,342 4.93] 308 3,125 3,433 69.62
Current Total Number of Current Number of IBAN updated
Shareholders as on 31 as on 31 Decembrer 2020
Decembrer 2020
308
’1,589 '
4,931
3,433 3125
3,342
B Physical B cDS M Total B Physical B cDS H Total

FREE FLOAT OF SHARES

Free Float Shares of the Company are 15,529,300 i.e. (13.26%) out of the total 117,054,508 Shares of the
Company as at 31 December 2020.
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GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Limited
Notice of Annual General Meeting 2020

Notice is hereby given to shareholders that the 6th Annual General Meeting ((AGM’) of GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare
Pakistan Limited (‘Company’) will be held on Wednesday, 21 April 2021 at 01:30 pm through/ via WEBEX video link to transact
the following business:

- ORDINARY BUSINESS

(1) To receive, consider and adopt the audited financial statements together with the Directors' and Auditors' Report thereon for
the year ended 31 December 2020.

(2) To consider, approve and declare the dividend on the ordinary shares of the Company. The Directors have recommended a
final cash dividend of 50% (Rs.5.00 per ordinary share of Rs. 10 each), for the year ended 31 December 2020.

(3) To appoint External Auditors of the Company for the ensuing year, and to fix their remuneration. The Board of Directors, on
the recommendation of Audit Committee of the Company, has proposed re-appointment of M/s Yousuf Adil, Chartered
Accountants as external auditors, for the year ending 31 December 2021.

« SPECIAL BUSINESS

(&4) To approve the donation to one or more charitable trust(s) / welfare association(s) or any other institution / organization
engaged in the welfare of human beings, by passing the following ordinary resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT the donation of the net sale proceeds of 4,913 fractional shares held by Mr. Farhan Muhammad Haroon,
trustee to the fraction (demerger) to one or more charitable trust(s) / Welfare Association(s) or any other institution / organization
engaged in the welfare of human beings, name(s) of which will be approved by the CEO of the Company, be and is hereby
approved.”

« ANY OTHER BUSINESS
(5) To transact any other business with the permission of the Chair.
A statement of material facts under Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2017 pertaining to the Special Business referred above

is annexed to this Notice below.

By Order of the Board

4

Karachi MASHAL MOHAMMAD
31 March 2021 Company Secretary
Notes:

1. Pursuant to the SECP Circular No. 6 of 2021 dated 3 March 2021, the proceedings of the AGM shall be held virtually. In view of
the surge of COVID-19 cases, travel restrictions in place for foreign directors and the safety of all esteemed shareholders,
Directors and management, the 6th AGM is being held virtually. All shareholders / investors attending the AGM through WebEx
are requested to post/send their respective questions/comments/suggestions along with their Name and Folio Number on the
following link/QR Code OR email address according to their convenience. The Annual Report shall be circulated via email to
those shareholders whose email addresses are present in the records/database of the Share Registrar. The Annual Report has
also been uploaded at the Company’s website and is readily accessible to all shareholders at
www.pk-consumerhealthcare.gsk.com

Please scan the QR code or access the link below to post any questions for the AGM as the telecon will automatically mute all
microphones:

Join at: vevox.app
1D: 177-154-790

[m] 7 [m]
[=]!

https://vevox.app/m#/177154790
Session ID: 177-154-790

Email Address: chc.shareinfo@gsk.com
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Those shareholders who do not wish to attend the AGM in person may attend live proceedings of the AGM by logging on to the
following link:

WebEX Link for meeting:
https://gskmeeting.webex.com/gskmeeting/onstage/g.php?MTID=e893a69a334f0821cb4aech4512a38e90

Please note that those shareholders attending virtually will be able to view the Directors and hear the live proceedings of the
AGM but will remain on mute so as to avoid any connectivity disruptions. The shareholders attending AGM through WebEx, may
post/send their respective questions/comments/suggestions along with their name and folio number on the link/QR Code/email
address, provided above in this notice ahead of or during the AGM.

The Company continues to monitor the impact of COVID-19 and any relevant updates regarding the AGM will be announced on
the Company’'s website (www.pk-consumerhealthcare.gsk.com) and through PUCARS.

2. The share transfer books of the Company will be closed for determining the entitlement for the payment of final dividend
from 17 April 2021 to 21 April 2021 (both days inclusive). Transfer requests received at the office of the share registrar of the
Company at CDC Share Registrar Services Limited, CDC House, 99-B, Block - B, S.M.C.H.S., Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi (‘Share
Registrar’) at the close of business on 14 April 2021 (Wednesday) will be treated in time for the purposes of entitlement to the
transferees.

3. A shareholder entitled to attend and vote at the AGM may appoint another shareholder as his/her proxy to attend, speak and
vote at the AGM on his/her behalf. The instrument appointing proxy must be deposited duly signed and stamped at the Office of
the Share Registrar of the Company at CDC Share Registrar Services Limited, CDC House, 99-B, Block — B, S.M.C.H.S., Main
Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi not later than forty eight (48) hours before the time of the AGM . An attested copy of the shareholder’s
Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) must be attached with the proxy form. Please refer to section 137 of the Companies
Act, 2017 for further information. The proxy form is available on the Company’'s website (www.pk-consumerhealthcare.gsk.com ).

4. Shareholders are requested to notify the Company's Share Registrar if there is any change in their registered postal addresses.

5. CDC Account Holders will further have to follow the below guidelines as specified by the Securities and Exchange Commission
of Pakistan (SECP).

a) Attending the AGM

i) In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and/or the person whose securities are in a group account,
and their registration details are uploaded as per the applicable regulations, and shall authenticate his/her identity by showing
his/her original Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) or original passport at the time of attending the meeting.

i) In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors' Resolution/Power of Attorney with specimen signature of the nominee shall
be produced (unless it has been provided earlier) at the time of the meeting.

b) Appointing Proxies:

i) In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and/or the person whose securities are in group account and
their registration details are uploaded as per the CDC Regulations, shall submit the proxy form as per the above requirement.

ii) The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers shall be mentioned on the form.

iii) Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished with the proxy form.

iv) The proxy shall produce his/her original CNIC or original passport at the time of the AGM.

V) In case of a corporate entity, the Board of Directors' Resolution/Power of Attorney with specimen signature shall be submitted

(unless it has been provided earlier) along with proxy form to the Company.
vi) The proxy form is available on the Company’s website: www.pk-consumerhealthcare.gsk.com

6. Shareholders holding physical shares are also required to bring their original CNIC and/or copy of CNIC of shareholder(s) of
whom he/she/they hold proxy(ies). Such shareholder(s) shall not be allowed to attend and/or sign the Register of
Shareholders/Members at the AGM without such CNIC(s).

7. Submission of CNIC/NTN Copy - Electronic Dividend (MANDATORY):

a) According to the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan’s (SECP) SRO 831(1)/2012 dated July 05, 2012 read with SRO

19(1) 2014 dated 10 January 2014 and other relevant rules, the electronic dividend should also bear the CNIC number of the
registered shareholder or the authorized person, except in the case of minor(s) and Corporate Shareholders.

b) Further, as per Regulation Nos. 4 and 6 of the Companies (Distribution of Dividend) Regulations, 2017, the Company shall be
constrained to withhold the payment of dividend to the shareholders, In case of non-availability of identification number
(CNIC or National Tax Number) of the Shareholder or authorized person.

c) Accordingly, those shareholders who have not yet submitted a copy of their valid CNIC or NTN certificate, are once again
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requested to immediately submit the same to the Company’s Share Registrar at CDC Share Registrar Services Limited, CDC
House, 99-B, Block - B, S.M.C.H.S., Main Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi. Corporate entities are requested to provide their National Tax
Number (NTN) and Folio Number along with the authorized representative’s CNIC copy.

8. Payment of Cash Dividend Through Electronic Mode (Mandatory):

a) In accordance with SECP Circular No. 18 of 2017 dated 1 August 2017 and instructions related to distribution of dividend
indicated in Companies (Distribution of Dividend) Regulations, 2017 and Section 242 of Companies Act, 2017, all listed
companies are required to ensure that with effect from 1 November 2017, cash dividends shall be paid through electronic
mode only. Therefore, shareholders are requested to provide the details of their bank mandate specifying: (i) title of account,
(ii) account number, (iii) IBAN number (iv) bank name and (v) branch name, code & address and (vi) Mobile number to the
Company's Share Registrar. Those Shareholders who hold shares with Participants / Central Depository Company of Pakistan
(CDC) are advised to provide the same to their concerned participant/CDC.

b) Please note that as per Section 243(3) of the Companies Act, 2017, the Company is entitled to withhold payment of dividend if
the requisite information is not provided by the Shareholders.

c) For the convenience of shareholders, the Company’s e-Dividend Mandate Form is available on the Company’'s website i.e.
www.pk-consumerhealthcare.gsk.com

9. Circulation of Annual Audited Accounts via CD/DVD/USB or Any Other Media:

a) SECP through its SRO 470(1)/2016, dated 31 May 2016, has allowed companies to circulate the annual balance sheet, profit and
loss account, Auditors' Report and Directors' Report etc. to its shareholders through CD/DVD/USB at their registered
addresses. In view of the above, the Company has obtained shareholders' approval in its Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held
on 20 November 2017 in this regard, the Company has sent its Annual Report 2018 to its shareholders in CD format.

b) Pursuant to SRO 787(1)/2014 dated 8 September 2014, and under Section 223(6) of the Companies Act 2017, circulation of
audited financial statements and notice of annual general meeting has been allowed in electronic format through email.
Accordingly, the audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2020, are available on the
Company's website www.pk-consumerhealthcare.gsk.com. Any Shareholder may view complete Annual Report on
Company's website or requiring printed copy or electronic format through email of Annual Report may send a request using a
Standard Request Form as annexed herewith and placed on Company's website as well:
www.pk-consumerhealthcare.gsk.com. Shareholders can request a hard copy of the same, which shall be provided free of
cost within seven (7) days from receipt of such request.

10. Deduction of Withholding Tax on Dividend:

a) Shareholders whose names are not appearing in the Active Tax-payers List (ATL) are advised to immediately make necessary
arrangement to make them active. Otherwise, tax on their cash dividend will be deducted as per law.

b) Further, according to clarification received from Federal Board of Revenue (FBR), withholding tax will be determined
separately on Active/Non-Active Status of Principal Shareholder as well as Joint-Holder(s) based on their shareholding
proportions, in case of joint accounts.

c) In this regard, all shareholders who hold shares with joint shareholders are requested to provide shareholding proportions of
Principal shareholder and Joint Holder(s) in respect of shares held by them to our Share Registrar, in writing as follows:

Principal Shareholder Joint Shareholder
Folio / Name Shareholding Shareholding
CDS s'l;‘otal and Proportion N:;::ﬁ:a; d Proportion
Account # ares CNIC # (No. of Shares) (No. of Shares)

Notes:

i. The required information must reach our Share Registrar by 14 April 2021. Otherwise, it will be assumed that the shares are
equally held by the principal and joint holder(s) and tax will be deducted accordingly

ii. Shareholders are therefore requested to ensure that their CNIC/Passport number has been recorded by the
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Participant/Investor Account Services or by the Company’s Share Registrar (in case of physical shareholding).

iii. Those corporate shareholders having CDC accounts are requested to have their National Tax Number (NTN) updated with
their respective participants. Corporate physical shareholders should send a copy of their NTN Certificate to the Company's
Share Registrar. All shareholders must specify their company name and their respective folio numbers while sending NTN or
NTN certificates, as the case may be.

iv. Withholding tax exemption from dividend income shall only be allowed if a copy of valid tax exemption certificate is made
available to the Company's Share Registrar by 13 May 2020.

1. Postal Ballot/E-Voting

Further to the Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations, 2018, for the purpose of election of Directors and for any other agenda
item subject to the requirements of Section 143 and 144 of the Companies Act, 2017, Shareholders holding in aggregate 10% or
more shareholding as per law, will be allowed to exercise their right of vote through postal ballot i.e. by post or e-voting, in the
manner and subject to conditions contained in the said Regulations.

12. Deposit of Physical Shares into CDC Account

As per Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017, every existing listed company shall be required to replace its physical shares with
book-entry form in a manner as may be specified and from the date notified by the SECP, within a period not exceeding four (4)
years from the commencement of the Act, i.e., 30 May 2017. Those shareholders having physical shareholding(s) are encouraged
to open a CDC sub - account with any broker or Investor Account directly with CDC to place their physical shares into scrip less
form. This is beneficial in many ways, including safe custody and sale of shares, any time they want, as the trading of physical
shares is not permitted as per existing regulations of the Pakistan Stock Exchange.

13. Consent for Video Conference Facility
a) In accordance with Section 132(2) of the Companies Act, 2017, shareholders are entitled to avail video conference facility.

b) If the Company receives consent from shareholders holding in aggregate 10% or more shareholding residing at a
geographical location other than the city of the AGM, to participate in the AGM through video conference at least seven (7)
days prior to the date of the AGM, the Company will arrange video conference facility in that city subject to availability of such
facility in that city. In this regard, please fill the following form and submit the same to the registered address of the Company
seven (7) days before holding of the AGM.

c) The Company will intimate to shareholders regarding the venue of video conference facility at least five (5) days before the
date of the AGM along with complete information necessary to enable them to access such facility.

I/We, of , being a member of GlaxoSmithKline Consumer

Healthcare Pakistan Limited, holder of ordinary share (s) as per Registered Folio/CDC Account No.

hereby opt for video conference facility at

Signature of Shareholder

14. Statutory Code of Conduct at AGM

Section 215 of the Companies Act, 2017 and Regulation 28 of the Companies (General Provisions and Forms) Regulations, 2018,
state the Code of Conduct of Shareholders, as follows: Shareholders are not permitted to exert influence or approach the
management directly for decisions which may lead to creation of hurdles in the smooth functioning of management. The law
states that Shareholders shall not bring material that may cause threat to participants or premises where the AGM is being held,
confine themselves to the agenda items covered in the notice of the AGM and shall not conduct themselves in a manner to
disclose any political affiliation. Additionally, the Company is not permitted to distribute gifts in any form to its shareholders in
its meetings as per Section 185 of Companies Act, 2017.
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STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 134 (3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017

This statement is annexed to the notice of the 6th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on 21 April 2021 at which
the special business specified in agenda item no. 4 of this Notice, will be transacted. The purpose of this statement is to set out
the material facts concerning such special business.

Item No. 4:

DONATION OF THE NET SALE PROCEEDS OF 4,913 FRACTIONAL SHARES HELD BY MR. FARHAN HAROON, TRUSTEE TO THE
FRACTION (DEMERGER) TO ONE OR MORE CHARITABLE TRUST(S) / WELFARE ASSOCIATION(S) OR ANY OTHER INSTITUTION /
ORGANIZATION ENGAGED IN THE WELFARE OF HUMAN BEINGS, NAME(S) OF WHICH WILL BE APPROVED BY THE CEO OF
THE COMPANY, BE AND IS HEREBY APPROVED.

The global GSK and NVS transaction in 2015 resulted in the demerger of the consumer healthcare business of GSK Pakistan
Limited (‘GSK Pakistan’) into GSK Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Limited (‘GSK CH Pakistan’). The Scheme of Arrangement
(which specified that in the event the allotment of shares resulted in fractional entitlement of shares in GSK CH Pakistan, GSK
CH Pakistan would not issue fractional shares to such shareholders of GSK Pakistan), along with the valuation and swap ratio 3:10
shares calculated by Deloitte Yousaf Adil-Chartered Accountants, was approved by the Board of Directors on 25 August 2015.

Accordingly, Mr. Farhan Muhammad Haroon, the then CFO of the Company, held 4,913 fractional shares as trustee to the fraction
(demerger) which have remained undisposed till date.

The shareholders of GSK Pakistan approved the Scheme of Arrangement at the Extra Ordinary General Meeting of GSK Pakistan
held on 30 November 2015.

The Honorable High Court of Sindh sanctioned the Scheme of Arrangement filed for and on behalf of GSK Pakistan pertaining to
the demerger of the consumer healthcare business of GSK Pakistan vide its order dated 29 February 2016. The demerger of GSK
CH Pakistan from GSK Pakistan was effective on 1 April 2016.

In this connection, the Board of the Company in its meeting held on 5 March 2021 recommended that with the approval of the
shareholders, the net sale proceeds of the 4,913 fractional shares be donated to one or more charitable trust(s) / welfare
association(s) or any other institution / organization engaged in the welfare of human beings.

Therefore, approval of the Company’s shareholders is sought for donating the net sale proceeds of 4,913 fractional shares held by
Mr. Farhan Haroon, trustee to the fraction (demerger) to one or more charitable trust(s) / welfare association(s) or any other
institution / organization engaged in the welfare of human beings, name(s) of which will be approved by the CEO of the
company, be and is hereby approved.

The Directors of the Company, directly or indirectly, are not personally interested in this business except to the extent of their
shareholding in the Company.
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GLAXOSMITHKLINE CONSUMER HEALTHCARE PAKISTAN LIMITED
PROXY FORM

I/ We of , being a Member of
GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Limited holding ordinary shares, HEREBY
APPOINT of , another Member of the Company,

failing him/her of as my/our proxy in my/our absence to attend
and to vote and act for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held virtually
on Wednesday, 21 April 2021 and at any adjournment thereof.

Rs. 5/-

As witness my/our hand(s) this _____ dayof ________ 20_____ Revenue
Stamps

(Signature of Witness 1) (Signature of Witness 2)

Name of Witness: Name of Witness:

CNIC No.: CNIC No.:

LI PP f-1] HEEEEDEEEEEEEEE
Passport No. (Non-Pakistani): Passport No. (Non-Pakistani):
Address: Address:
______ (Name in Block letters) Signature of the Shareholder
Folio No.
Notes:

1. The Member is requested:
(@) to affix revenue stamp of Rs. 5/- at the place indicated above;
(b) tosignin the same style of signature as is registered with the Company;
(c) to write down his/her folio number.

2. For the appointment of the above proxy to be valid, this instrument of proxy must be received at the office of the
GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Limited, 35 Dockyard Road, West Wharf, Karachi-74000, at least 48 hours
before the time fixed for the meeting.

3. Any alteration made in this instrument of proxy should be initialled by the person who signs it.

4. In the case of joint holders, the vote of the senior who tenders a vote whether in person or by proxy will be accepted to the
exclusion of the votes of the other joint holders, and for this purpose seniority will be determined by the order in which the
names stand in the Register of Members.

For CDC Account Holders / Corporate Entities
In addition to the above, the following requirements have to be met:

(i) The proxy form must be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers shall be mentioned on the form.

(ii) Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and of the proxy must be furnished with the proxy form.

(iii) The proxy must produce his / her original CNIC or original passport at the time of the Meeting.

(iv) In case of corporate entities, the Board of Directors’ resolution/power of attorney and specimen sighature must be
submitted (unless it has been provided earlier) along with the proxy form(s) to the Share Registrar.
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E-Dividend
Mandate Form

To: Date:

Subject: BANK ACCOUNT DETAILS FOR PAYMENT OF DIVIDEND THROUGH ELECTRONIC MODE

Dear Sir,

|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
:
|
| I/We/Messts., . being a/the
| shareholder(s) of GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Limited (the “Company”), hereby, authorize the
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|

Company, to directly credit cash dividends declared by it, in my bank account as detailed below:

Name of the Shareholder

Folio No./CDC Participant ID & Sub-Account No. /CDC IAS

CNIC/NICOP/Passport/NTN No. (please attach copy)

~ o Contact Number(s) (Telephone and Mobile Nos.)

Shareholder’'s Postal Address

Shareholder’'s Bank account details

Title of Bank Account

International Bank Account Number (IBAN)

Bank's Name

Branch Name

Branch Code No

Branch Address

It is stated that the above particulars given by me are correct and | shall keep the Company,informed in case of any changes
in the said particulars in future.

Yours truly,

Signature of Shareholder
(Please affix company stamp in case of corporate entity)
Notes:

1. Those shareholders who hold shares in book-entry form are requested to fill the above-mentioned E-Dividend Mandate Form
and send it to the relevant Broker/Participants/Investor Account Services of the Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
where the shareholder's CDC account is being dealt.

2. Those shareholders who hold shares in physical form are requested to fill the above-mentioned E-Dividend Mandate Form
and send it to the Company’'s Share Registrar address; i.e.; CDC Share Registrar Services Limited, Share Registrar Department,
CDC House, 99-B, Block B, Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi-74400, Pakistan. Tel: 0800-23275 (CDCSRSL).

3.In case of non-receipt of IBAN with bank details as requested above, future cash dividend, if any, could be withheld according
to the directives of the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

4. GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Limited and CDCSRSL shall not be responsible for any loss, damage, liability
or claim arising, directly or indirectly, from any error, or failure in performance of any of its obligations whatsoever, caused due to
incorrect payment instructions provided by the shareholder and/or due to any event beyond the control of the bank.
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REQUEST FORM FOR TRANSMISSION OF ANNUAL REPORT & NOTICE OF
. ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (AGM) THROUGH EMAIL OR IN HARD COPY

CDC Registrar Services Limited

CDC House,

Main Shahra-e-Faisal, 99-B, Block ‘B’, SSM.C.H.S,
Karachi - 74400

Sub: Request for transmission of Annual Reports and Notice of AGM through Email or in Hard copy

I/we hereby request to receive the Annual Report and Notice of AGM through email or in hard copy instead of
receiving the same through CD/DVD/USB as mentioned below:

Name of the Shareholder(s)

Folio No. / CDC Participants ID A/C No.

CNIC No.

Telephone Number

Mobile Number

Passport No. (in case of foreign shareholder)

Valid Email Address

Valid Postal Address

MODE OF RECEIVING ALL FUTURE ANNUAL REPORTS ALONG WITH NOTICE OF AGM THROUGH EMAIL OR IN
HARD COPY UNDER SECTION 223 (6) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017, INSTEAD OF RECEIVING THEM THROUGH
CD/DVD/USB

(Please select any one option)

OPTION 1: Through email on the valid email address provided above |:|

OPTION 2: Hard copies on my registered postal address |:|

abovementioned information to the Company and / or the concerned Share Registrar as soon as these occur.
I/we hereby further authorize the Company to update my/our particulars mentioned above in the member
register of the Company along with email address mentioned.

I/we undertake that by sending the Audited Financial Statements and Notices through e-mail by the Company,
the Company shall be considered compliant with the relevant requirements of section 223(6) of the Companies
Act, 2017. In case a hard copy of Audited Financial Statements and/or Notice of AGM of the Company is desired,
a specific request for the same will be made.

Signature of the Shareholder(s)

Notes:

Please attach attested photocopy of the valid CNIC / valid Passport
This Request Form is optional and not compulsory

|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
:
|
LIt is stated that the above-mentioned information is correct and that I/We will intimate the changes in the
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
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